

# **Lindhurst High School**

4446 Olive Avenue Olivehurst, CA 95961 (530)741-6150 Ph (530)741-6171 Fax

Bob Eckardt, Principal Christine Vahldick, Assistant Principal Chris Schmidt, Assistant Principal

Presentation to the Board 10/8/19

As the new school year began, we hit the ground running at Lindhurst High School. It seemed like we had never left. For a number of staff and students, that was close to the truth. This past summer, we were fortunate enough to offer summer school for those students who not only fell short in a class or two, but also offer some enrichment courses for students as well. Lindhurst was able to enroll and maintain 191 students that were able to earn 227 semester classes worth of units. This made a significant difference with those students who had started to or are credit deficient and not on track to graduate.

Our front line for student achievement is our Tier I instruction. Through the training and implementation of our transformation into Professional Learning Community, this Tier I instruction is getting stronger. We have established a Guiding Coalition here at Lindhurst comprised of 18 staff members from teachers, counselors, and administrators. The goal of the Lindhurst High School Guiding Coalition is to support student learning and achievement through learning, sharing, and implementing the true Professional Learning Community process with teachers and staff. To that end, this coalition meets regularly to discuss and research best teaching practices to then adapt and bring them to the faculty and staff of Lindhurst High School, share successes and best practices as identified during the regular teacher collaboration time, review data to drive our next steps, and identify our areas of needs/focus.

In addition to using CAASPP scores in Math and English as measures for academic growth and student achievement, the latest scores indicated slight growth in both English and Math, we are using other measures to track and gauge the student success in learning. Those measures include: increase/decrease in school overall G.P.A., students' progress on the CCI dashboard, grade level overall on track credit completion, students who meet our Rising Star criteria (any student who raises their G.P.A. by 1 full point) Advance Placement testing data as well as ELPAC data and subsequent reclassifications. The long term look into student academic growth and student achievement shows that for the most part student achievement has plateaued. We recognize that to obtain increased results, we must look at instruction differently or we will stay in a perpetual cycle of status quo. This is what has reaffirmed that the Professional Learning Community model is the best practice for student learning and achievement. To that end, in addition to researching and implementing best Tier I practices, we are working on developing

Blazers for Life



the framework for creating an effective Tier II intervention/acceleration for Lindhurst High School.

Student climate and moral is strong this year. Lunch time activities and student government events are well attended and very positive. There is a big support from our staff. That shouldn't be a surprise since 27 of 109 employees here at Lindhurst High School are also alumni. That is the greatest testament to the care and devotion we have for our students. "We CHOSE to come back."

We are very pleased with some of the new partnerships that we have developed with the community in recent months. A long term community agency is the Yuba Water Agency. We are very excited to partner with them on various projects relating to water conservation and health. One of the newest members to our community is the Hard Rock Café. We are proud to say that we have three members from the Hard Rock Café on our Culinary Advisory Board including their Michelin Star Chef, Chef Richard. To prove that partnerships are two-way streets, the Hard Rock Café used our culinary arts kitchen to hold its interviews and tastings for their perspective head chefs of their various restaurants. That was an amazing experience to be a part of, and their head pastry chef is looking forward to coming and presenting to our classes later this year.

Overall, we are very pleased with the start of the school year and the direction we are heading. Every day is a great day to be a Blazer!

2. Blazers for Life

**Quote** # 2181772

PO Box 8036, Wisconsin Rapids, WI 54495-8036 Phone: (800) 338-4204 | Fax: (877) 280-7642

Federal I.D. 39-1559474 www.renaissance.com

Marysville Joint Unified School District - 288097

1919 B St

Marysville, CA 95901-3731

Contact: Amy Stratton - (530) 741-6000 Email: astratton@mjusd.k12.ca.us Reference ID: 431505

Created: 09/30/2019

Quote Summary	
School Count: 21	
Renaissance Products & Services Total	\$5,225.00
Shipping and Processing	\$0.00
Sales Tax	\$0.00
Grand Total	USD \$5,225.00

### This quote includes: Renaissance Star 360.

This Quote and your use of the Applications, the Hosting Services and Services are subject to the terms and conditions you or your state department, district, purchasing cooperative or archdiocese previously agreed to with Renaissance which terms and conditions are incorporated herein. To accept this offer and place an order, please sign and return this Quote.

Renaissance will issue an invoice pursuant to this Quote on the Invoice Date you specify below. If no Invoice Date is listed, Renaissance will issue an invoice within 30 days from the date of this Quote. If your organization requires a purchase order prior to invoicing, please check the box below and issue your purchase order to the Renaissance address below no later than 15 days prior to the Invoice Date. Payment is due net 30 days from the Invoice Date.

If your billing address is different from the address at the top of this Quote, please add that billing address below.

Please check here if your organization requires a purchase order prior to invoicing: [ ]

Renaissance Learning, Inc.	Marysville Joint Unified School District - 288097
Ted Los	Ву:
Name: Ted Wolf	Name: Gand Cena
Title: VP - Corporate Controller	Title: Superitendent
Date: 09/30/2019	Date: 10 9 19
	Invoice Date: 11119

Mail: PO Box 8036, Wisconsin Rapids, WI 54495-8036

Fax: (877)280-7642

Email: electronicorders@renaissance.com

Phone: (877)444-3172

If changes are necessary, or additional information is required, please contact your account executive Paul Ackerman at (866)560-3913, Thank You.

Use your Prop 98 funding to lock in multi-year discounts on the solutions you need.

Superintendent Approval

Date: 4

**Quote** # 2181772

PO Box 8036, Wisconsin Rapids, WI 54495-8036 Phone: (800) 338-4204 | Fax: (877) 280-7642 Federal I.D. 39-1559474 www.renaissance.com

This quote is valid for 30 days. All quotes and orders are subject to availability of merchandise, Professional development expires one year from purchase date. Alterations to this quote will not be honored without Renaissance approval. Please note: Any pricing or discount indicated is subject to change with alterations to the quote, Tax has been estimated and is subject to change without notice. Unless you provide Renaissance with a valid and correct tax exemption certificate applicable to your purchase of product and the product ship-to location, you are responsible for sales and other taxes associated with this order.

United States government and agency transactions into Arizona: The Tax or AZ-TPT item(s) listed on this quote and subsequent invoice(s) is a charge to recover the cost of the Arizona Transaction Privilege Tax ('TPT'). The incidence of the TPT is on Renaissance Learning for the privilege of conducting business in the State of Arizona. Since the tax is not directly imposed on the United States, the constitutional immunity of the United States does not apply.

Hawaii residents only: Orders shipped to Hawaii residents will be subject to the 4.166% (4.712% O'ahu Is.) Hawaii General Excise tax. United States government and agency transactions into Hawaii: The Tax or General Excise Tax item(s) listed on this quote and subsequent invoice(s) is a charge to recover the cost of the Hawaii General Excise Tax. The incidence of the General Excise Tax is on Renaissance Learning for the privilege of conducting business in the State of Hawaii. Since the tax is not directly imposed on the United States, the constitutional immunity of the United States does not apply.

New Mexico residents only: Orders shipped to New Mexico residents will be subject to the 5.125% (Location Code: 88-888) Gross Receipts tax. United States government and agency transactions into New Mexico: The Tax or Gross Receipts Tax item(s) listed on this quote and subsequent invoice(s) is a charge to recover the cost of the New Mexico Gross Receipts Tax. The incidence of the Gross Receipts Tax is on Renaissance Learning for the privilege of conducting business in the State of New Mexico, Since the tax is not directly imposed on the United States, the constitutional immunity of the United States does not apply.

Students can become their most amazing selves — only when teachers truly shine. Renaissance amplifies teachers' effectiveness in the classroom — transforming data into actionable insights to improve learning outcomes. Remember, we're here to ensure your successful implementation. Please allow 30-90 days for installation and set-up.

**Quote** # 2181772

PO Box 8036, Wisconsin Rapids, WI 54495-8036 Phone: (800) 338-4204 | Fax: (877) 280-7642

Federal I.D. 39-1559474 www.renaissance.com

	Quote Details			
Arboga Elementary School - 288086				
Products & Services	Subscription Period	Quantity	Unit Price	Total
Renaissance Applications				
Star 360 Subscription Add-On	10/01/2019 - 06/30/2020	23	\$10.45	\$240.35
	Arboga Elementa	ry School Total		JSD \$240.35

Browns Valley Elementary School - 288176					
Products & Services	Subscription Period	Quantity	Unit Price	Total	
Renaissance Applications					
Star 360 Subscription Add-On	10/01/2019 - 06/30/2020	23	\$10,45	\$240.35	
	Browns Valley Elementa	ry School Total		USD \$240.35	

Cedar Lane Elementary School - 288128					
Products & Services	Subscription Period	Quantity	Unit Price	Total	
Renaissance Applications					
Star 360 Subscription Add-On	10/01/2019 - 06/30/2020	23	\$10.45	\$240.35	
	Cedar Lane Elementa	ry School Total		USD \$240.35	

Community Day School - 375304						
Products & Services	Subscription Period	Quantity	Unit Price	Total		
Renaissance Applications						
Star 360 Subscription Add-On	10/01/2019 - 06/30/2020	23	\$10.45	\$240.35		
	Community Da	ay School Total		USD \$240.35		

Cordua Elementary School - 288103					
Products & Services	Subscription Period	Quantity	Unit Price	Total	
Renaissance Applications					
Star 360 Subscription Add-On	10/01/2019 - 06/30/2020	23	\$10.45	\$240.35	
	Cordua Elementa	ry School Total		USD \$240.35	

Covillaud Elementary School - 288123						
Products & Services	Subscription	Period Quantity	y Unit Price	Total		
Renaissance Applications						
Star 360 Subscription Add-On	5 10/01/2019 - 06	/30/2020 23	\$10.45	\$240.35		

**Quote** # 2181772

PO Box 8036, Wisconsin Rapids, WI 54495-8036 Phone: (800) 338-4204 | Fax: (877) 280-7642

Federal I.D. 39-1559474 www.renaissance.com

USD \$240.35

Dobbins Elementary School - 288269					
Products & Services	Subscription Period	Quantity	Unit Price	Total	
Renaissance Applications					
Star 360 Subscription Add-On	10/01/2019 - 06/30/2020	23	\$10.45	\$240,35	
	Dobbins Elementa	ry School Total		USD \$240.35	

Edgewater Elementary School - 2654170					
Products & Services	Subscription Period	Quantity	Unit Price	Total	
Renaissance Applications					
Star 360 Subscription Add-On	10/01/2019 - 06/30/2020	23	\$10,45	\$240.35	
	Edgewater Elementa	ry School Total		USD \$240.35	

Elia Elementary School - 288464					
Products & Services	Subscription Period	Quantity	Unit Price	Total	
Renaissance Applications					
Star 360 Subscription Add-On	10/01/2019 - 06/30/2020	23	\$10.45	\$240,35	
	Ella Elementa	ry School Total		USD \$240.35	

Foothill Interm	ediate School - 288117			
Products & Services	Subscription Period	Quantity	Unit Price	Total
Renaissance Applications				
Star 360 Subscription Add-On	10/01/2019 - 06/30/2020	23	\$10.45	\$240.35
	Foothill Intermedia	te School Total		USD \$240.35

Joh	nson Park Elementary School - 288109			
Products & Services	Subscription Period	Quantity	Unit Price	Total
Renaissance Applications				
Star 360 Subscription Add-On	10/01/2019 - 06/30/2020	23	\$10.45	\$240.35
	Johnson Park Elementa	ry School Total		USD \$240.35

Kynoch Eler	nentary School - 288088			
Products & Services	Subscription Period	Quantity	Unit Price	Total
Renaissance Applications	6			

**Quote** # 2181772

PO Box 8036, Wisconsin Rapids, WI 54495-8036 Phone: (800) 338-4204 | Fax: (877) 280-7642 Federal I.D. 39-1559474

rederal I.D. 39-133	194/4
www.renaissance.	com

	Kynoch Elementary	School Total		USD \$240.35
Star 360 Subscription Add-On	10/01/2019 - 06/30/2020	23	\$10,45	\$240.35

Linda	Elementary School - 288119			
Products & Services	Subscription Period	Quantity	Unit Price	Total
Renaissance Applications				
Star 360 Subscription Add-On	10/01/2019 - 06/30/2020	23	\$10.45	\$240.35
	Linda Elementa	ry School Total		USD \$240.35

<b>的现在分词</b> 对外,这个种连续的	Lindhurst High School - 288460			
Products & Services	Subscription Period	Quantity	Unit Price	Total
Renaissance Applications				
Star 360 Subscription Add-On	10/01/2019 - 06/30/2020	23	\$10.45	\$240.35
	Lindhurst Hig	gh School Total		USD \$240.35

Loma Rica El	lementary School - 288113			
Products & Services	Subscription Period	Quantity	Unit Price	Total
Renaissance Applications				
Star 360 Subscription Add-On	10/01/2019 - 06/30/2020	23	\$10.45	\$240.35
	Loma Rica Elementa	ry School Total		USD \$240.35

Marysvill	e High School - 288075			
Products & Services	Subscription Period	Quantity	Unit Price	Total
Renaissance Applications				
Star 360 Subscription Add-On	10/01/2019 - 06/30/2020	23	\$10.45	\$240.35
	Marysville Hig	h School Total		USD \$240.35

Mc	Kenney Intermediate School - 288090			
Products & Services	Subscription Period	Quantity	Unit Price	Total
Renaissance Applications	The control of the co			
Star 360 Subscription Add-On	10/01/2019 - 06/30/2020	23	\$10.45	\$240.35
	McKenney Intermedia	te School Total		USD \$240.35

Olivehurst El	ementary School - 288455			
Products & Services	Subscription Period	Quantity	Unit Price	Total

**Quote** # 2181772

PO Box 8036, Wisconsin Rapids, WI 54495-8036 Phone: (800) 338-4204 | Fax: (877) 280-7642

Federal I.D. 39-1559474 www.renaissance.com

	Olivehurst Elementary	School Total	U	ISD \$240.35
Star 360 Subscription Add-On	10/01/2019 - 06/30/2020	23	\$10.45	\$240.35
Renaissance Applications				

South Lindhu	rst High School - 375303			
Products & Services	Subscription Period	Quantity	Unit Price	Total
Renaissance Applications				
Star 360 Subscription Add-On	10/01/2019 - 06/30/2020	23	\$10.45	\$240.35
	South Lindhurst Hig	h School Total		USD \$240.35

Yuba Fea	ther School - 288183			
Products & Services	Subscription Period	Quantity	Unit Price	Total
Renaissance Applications				
Star 360 Subscription Add-On	10/01/2019 - 06/30/2020	23	\$10,45	\$240.35
	Yuba Feath	er School Total		USD \$240.35

Yuba Garden	s Intermediate School - 288457	TO VENEZIONE		
Products & Services	Subscription Period	Quantity	Unit Price	Total
Renaissance Applications				
Star 360 Subscription Add-On	10/01/2019 - 06/30/2020	40	\$10.45	\$418.00
	Yuba Gardens Intermedia	te School Total		JSD \$418.00

©Copyright 2019 Renaissance Learning, Inc. All rights reserved.

All logos, designs, and brand names for Renaissance's products and services, including but not limited to Accelerated Math, Accelerated Reader, Accelerated Reader 360, AccelScan, AccelTest, English in a Flash, Freckle, MathFacts in a Flash, mylGDIs, myON, myON Books, myON Reader, myON News, Renaissance, Renaissance Flow 360, Renaissance Learning, Renaissance Place, Renaissance-U, Renaissance Smart Start, Star, Star 360, Star Custom, Star Early Literacy, Star Early Literacy Spanish, Star Math, Star Math Spanish, Star Reading, Star Reading Spanish, and Star Spanish, are trademarks of Renaissance Learning, Inc. All other product and company names should be considered the property of their respective companies and organizations.

**Quote** # 2177288

PO Box 8036, Wisconsin Rapids, WI 54495-8036 Phone: (800) 338-4204 | Fax: (877) 280-7642 Federal I.D. 39-1559474

www.renaissance.com

Lindhurst High School - 288460

4446 Olive Ave

Olivehurst, CA 95961-4738

Contact: Bob Eckhardt - (530) 741-6150 Email: beckardt@mjusd.k12.ca.us Reference ID: 431519

Created: 09/24/2019

Quote Summary	
School Count: 1	
Renaissance Products & Services Total	\$2,978.25
Shipping and Processing	\$0.00
Sales Tax	\$0.00
Grand Total	USD \$2,978.25

### This quote includes: Renaissance Star 360.

This Quote and your use of the Applications, the Hosting Services and Services are subject to the terms and conditions you or your state department, district, purchasing cooperative or archdiocese previously agreed to with Renaissance which terms and conditions are incorporated herein. To accept this offer and place an order, <u>please sign and return this Quote.</u>

Renaissance will issue an invoice pursuant to this Quote on the Invoice Date you specify below. If no Invoice Date is listed, Renaissance will issue an invoice within 30 days from the date of this Quote. If your organization requires a purchase order prior to invoicing, please check the box below and issue your purchase order to the Renaissance address below no later than 15 days prior to the Invoice Date. Payment is due net 30 days from the Invoice Date.

If your billing address is different from the address at the top of this Quote, please add that billing address below.

Please check here if your organization requires a purchase order prior to invoicing: [ ]

Renaissance Learning, Inc.	Lindhurst High School - 288460
Ted Low	Ву:
Name: Ted Wolf	Name: GAM (CAA
Title: VP - Corporate Controller	Title: Superintendent
Date: 09/24/2019	Date: 10/8/2019
	Invoice Date: 11 1 2019

Mail: PO Box 8036, Wisconsin Rapids, WI 54495-8036

Fax: (877)280-7642

Email: electronicorders@renaissance.com

Phone: (877)444-3172

If changes are necessary, or additional information is required, please contact your account executive Paul Ackerman at (866)560-3913, Thank You.

Use your Prop 98 funding to lock in multi-year discounts on the solutions you need.

Superintendent Approval
Signature: 17-19

**Quote** # 2177288

PO Box 8036, Wisconsin Rapids, WI 54495-8036 Phone: (800) 338-4204 | Fax: (877) 280-7642

Federal I.D. 39-1559474 www.renaissance.com

This quote is valid for 30 days, All quotes and orders are subject to availability of merchandise. Professional development expires one year from purchase date. Alterations to this quote will not be honored without Renaissance approval. Please note: Any pricing or discount indicated is subject to change with alterations to the quote. Tax has been estimated and is subject to change without notice. Unless you provide Renaissance with a valid and correct tax exemption certificate applicable to your purchase of product and the product ship-to location, you are responsible for sales and other taxes associated with this order.

United States government and agency transactions into Arizona: The Tax or AZ-TPT item(s) listed on this quote and subsequent invoice(s) is a charge to recover the cost of the Arizona Transaction Privilege Tax ('TPT'). The incidence of the TPT is on Renaissance Learning for the privilege of conducting business in the State of Arizona. Since the tax is not directly imposed on the United States, the constitutional immunity of the United States does not apply.

Hawaii residents only: Orders shipped to Hawaii residents will be subject to the 4.166% (4.712% O'ahu Is.) Hawaii General Excise tax. United States government and agency transactions into Hawaii: The Tax or General Excise Tax item(s) listed on this quote and subsequent invoice(s) is a charge to recover the cost of the Hawaii General Excise Tax. The incidence of the General Excise Tax is on Renaissance Learning for the privilege of conducting business in the State of Hawaii. Since the tax is not directly imposed on the United States, the constitutional immunity of the United States does not apply.

New Mexico residents only: Orders shipped to New Mexico residents will be subject to the 5.125% (Location Code: 88-888) Gross Receipts tax. United States government and agency transactions into New Mexico: The Tax or Gross Receipts Tax item(s) listed on this quote and subsequent invoice(s) is a charge to recover the cost of the New Mexico Gross Receipts Tax. The incidence of the Gross Receipts Tax is on Renaissance Learning for the privilege of conducting business in the State of New Mexico. Since the tax is not directly imposed on the United States, the constitutional immunity of the United States does not apply.

Students can become their most amazing selves — only when teachers truly shine. Renaissance amplifies teachers' effectiveness in the classroom — transforming data into actionable insights to improve learning outcomes. Remember, we're here to ensure your successful implementation. Please allow 30-90 days for installation and set-up.

**Quote** # 2177288

PO Box 8036, Wisconsin Rapids, WI 54495-8036 Phone: (800) 338-4204 | Fax: (877) 280-7642

Federal I.D. 39-1559474 www.renaissance.com

	Quote Details			
15克克尔克里克尔尔克斯克里克 沙多克	Lindhurst High School - 288460			
Products & Services Subscription Period Quantity				Total
Renaissance Applications				
Star 360 Subscription Add-On	10/01/2019 - 06/30/2020	285	\$10.45	\$2,978.25
14-11-11-11-11-11-11-11-11-11-11-11-11-1	Lindhurst Hig	h School Total	Us	SD \$2,978.25

©Copyright 2019 Renaissance Learning, Inc. All rights reserved.

All logos, designs, and brand names for Renaissance's products and services, including but not limited to Accelerated Math, Accelerated Reader, Accelerated Reader 360, AccelScan, AccelTest, English in a Flash, Freckle, MathFacts in a Flash, mylGDls, myON, myON Books, myON Reader, myON News, Renaissance, Renaissance Flow 360, Renaissance Learning, Renaissance Place, Renaissance-U, Renaissance Smart Start, Star, Star 360, Star Custom, Star Early Literacy, Star Early Literacy Spanish, Star Math, Star Math Spanish, Star Reading, Star Reading Spanish, and Star Spanish, are trademarks of Renaissance Learning, Inc. All other product and company names should be considered the property of their respective companies and organizations.

# United States Department of the Interior



BUREAU OF INDIAN AFFAIRS Central California Agency 650 Capitol Mall, Suite 8-500 Sacramento, California 95814

REFER IN REPLY TO: Indian Self Determination Marysville Unified School District FY 2019 JOM Program A19AV00491

September 19, 2019

Ms. Patricia Bennet, Supervisor Maryville Joint Unified School District American Indian Education Program 1919 B Street Marysville, California 95901

Dear Ms. Bennett:

Attached is an electronic version of Modification No. 1 for the Fiscal Year 2019, Johnson O' Malley Program under Contract Number A19AV00491.

We have transmitted all electronic documents via email to Patricia Bennett, at email address: <a href="mailto:pbennett@mjusd.k12.ca.us">pbennett@mjusd.k12.ca.us</a>- for your view and acceptance, please print and sign the attached Award/Contract and complete blocks 19A-C. To expedite the obligation process, return a signed Award/Contract via email to <a href="mailto:tina.fourkiller@bia.gov">tina.fourkiller@bia.gov</a>.

The Tribe is not required to return the originally signed documents to the agency effective June 6, 2014. The Awarding Official will execute the scanned copy and return to the Tribe for their records.

Should you have any questions please contact, Tina Fourkiller-Ramirez, Indian Self-Determination Officer/Awarding Official, at (916) 930-3744. *No hardcopy will follow, please accept this as the original document.* Thank you.

Sincerely,

Tina L. Fourkiller-Ramirez Awarding Official,

BIA-2018-L1-000113

Attachment

# United States Department of the Interior



BUREAU OF INDIAN AFFAIRS Central California Agency 650 Capitol Mall, Suite 8-500 Sacramento, California 95814

REFER IN REPLY TO: Indian Self Determination 2018 Executed Document

September 24, 2019

Ms. Patricia Bennett, Supervisor Marysville Joint Unified School District 1919 B Street Marysville, California 95901

Dear Ms. Bennett:

Enclosed is a fully executed of Modification No. 1 for the FY 2019 Johnson O' Malley Program,

Contract Number A19AV00491. *Please utilize the ASAP.GOV website to withdraw your P638*funds. Should you have any questions regarding this modification document, please contact Tina

Fourkiller, Indian Self-Determination Officer/Awarding Official at (916) 930-3744. *No hard copy*will follow, please consider this as Original Document. Thank you

Sincerely,

Tina Fourkiller-Ramirez
Indian Self-Determination Officer

Awarding Official, BIA-2018-L1-000113

Enclosure

AMENDM	ENT OF SOLICITATION/MODIFIC	ATION OF CONTRACT	-	1. CONTRACT ID CODE		PAGE OF	PAGES 5	
2. AMENDMENT/MODIFICATION NO. 3. EFFECTIVE DATE 4.			TA DE	QUISITION/PURCHASE REQ. NO.	le pr	1	(Manaliantia)	
0001	ENTIMODIFICATION NO.		4. REQUISITION/PURCHASE REQ. NO. 5. PROJECT NO. (Il applicable) 0020188523					
6. ISSUED B	Y CODE	See Block 16C	7. ADMINISTERED BY (If other than Item 6) CODE A13					
2800 CO	CIFIC 00013 OTTAGE WAY ROOM W2820 cting Office ento CA 95825		Con 280	, BIA PACIFIC tracting Office 0 COTTAGE WAY ROOM W28 ramento CA 95825		10.22		
8. NAME AND	DADDRESS OF CONTRACTOR (No., street,	county, State and ZIP Code)	(x) 9A	AMENDMENT OF SOLICITATION NO.			()	
Attn: A' 5150 FR	LLE JOINT UNIFIED SCHO TTN GOVERNMENT POC UITLAND RD	OL DISTRICT	98	DATED (SEE ITEM 11)				
ARYSVI)	LLE CA 95901-9505		ж 10 А	A. MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT/ORDER 19AV00491	I NO.		*	
CODE 00	071316888	FACILITY CODE	4 1	9. DATED (SEE ITEM 13) 4/01/2019				
		11. THIS ITEM ONLY APPLIES TO A	AMENDA	IENTS OF SOLICITATIONS				
reference to	o the solicitation and this amendment, and is TING AND APPROPRIATION DATA (If requi	e received prior to the opening hour and fred) Net	date so	termina	\$3,79	9.56	4.	
CHECK ONE	A. THIS CHANGE ORDER IS ISSUED PO ORDER NO. IN ITEM 10A.	URSUANT TO: (Specify authority) THE	CHANG	ES SET FORTH IN ITEM 14 ARE MADE IN	THE CON	NTRACT		
	B. THE ABOVE NUMBERED CONTRAC appropriation date, etc.) SET FORTH	T/ORDER IS MODIFIED TO REFLECT IN ITEM 14, PURSUANT TO THE AUTI	THE ADI	VINISTRATIVE CHANGES (such es change OF FAR 43,103(b).	ıs in payin	g office,		
	C. THIS SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT	IS ENTERED INTO PURSUANT TO AL	JTHORI	TY OF				
	D. OTHER (Specify type of modification a	and authority)	-					
х	Public Law 93-638 as	Amended						
. IMPORTAN	T: Contractor  le not.	☑ le required to sign this document and	muten b		ing office.			
FDA Num	mber: 15.130			okcitation/contract subject matter where feet	rible.)			
INA FO	JRKILLER-RAMIREZ, AWAR	DING OFFICIAL: BIA	2018-	-L1-000113				
				28/FURTHER ADDITIONAL SH THEIR PERIOD OF AVA			/ TBN	
5, 2019	9).	NDS ARE AVAILABLE II	nkou(	SR TREIR PERIOD OF AVA	THOIL	111.	(JAN.	
	Doc #: IA							
	7: 09/30/2019	77						
ontinue								
	wided herein, all terms and conditions of the ND TITLE OF SIGNER (Type or print)	document referenced in Item 9 A or 10/		etofore changed, remains unchanged and in IAME AND TITLE OF CONTRACTING OFF	A larger to the second second			
Gar	y (eng super	intendent	Tin	a Fourkiller Awarding (			A-2018-L1-000	
	CTOPIOFFERON  W  (Signalum of person sufficient to sign)	16C. DATE SIGNED	16B, U	INTED-STATES OF AMERICAN	3	16C.	DATE/SIGNED	
NSN 7540-01- Previous aditio	152-8070	1 - 11	14		Prescribed		(REV. 10-83)	
			17	٠	(40 0)	, 50:270		

 CONTINUATION SHEET
 REFERENCE NO. OF DOCUMENT BEING CONTINUED A19AV00491/0001
 PAGE OF 2
 2
 2

NAME OF OFFEROR OR CONTRACTOR
MARYSVILLE JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

ITEM NO.	SUPPLIES/SERVICES	QUANTITY		UNIT PRICE	AMOUNT
(A)	(B)	(C)	(D)	(E)	(F)
	Delivery Location Code: 0009062036				
	PHOENIX EDUCATION RESOURCE CENTER		Ш		
	2600 N. CENTRAL AVE, SUITE 800		ΙI		
	PHOENIX AZ 85004 US				
	Account Assignm: K G/L Account: 6100.25210		ΙI		
	Business Area: A000 Commitment Item: 252I00 Cost		Ш		
	Center: AADD50J010 Functional Area:		H		<b>†</b> 1
	A0E904545.999900 Fund: 189A2100DD Fund Center:		П		
	AADD50J010 PR Acct Assign: 01		ш		
	Period of Performance: 10/01/2018 to 01/31/2020		1 1		
0020	JOM Funds Final 2018				3,799.
0020	Obligated Amount: \$3,799.56				3,,,,,,
	obligated Amount. \$3,773.30				
	THIS AWARD IS BEING ISSUED TO FUND ADDITIONAL JOM FUNDS.				
	Tondo.				
	E				
	e a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a				
	Sec				
	IK.				
				l	

Signature: 9-27-19

### AGREEMENT FOR MIGRANT EDUCATION PROGRAM SERVICES

This Agreement for Services ("Agreement") is made and entered into as of October 8, 2019 by and between the **Butte County Office of Education/Migrant Education Region 2**, ("BCOE") and **Marysville Joint Unified School District** ("Program Region"), (together, "Parties").

WHEREAS, the primary objective of the Migrant Education Advisory Program/MEAP ("Program") is to provide middle and high school migrant students the above and beyond individualized support many of the region's migrant students need in order to stay in school, prepare to graduate from high school AND prepare for college admissions or a career path through MEAP Advisors.;

WHEREAS, there is a need for the Program within the Program Region's jurisdiction;

WHEREAS, the Program is administered by BCOE and BCOE agrees to provide the Program services to the Program Region pursuant to the terms of this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows:

- 1. **Services**. This Agreement is made and entered into for the provision of Program services for migrant students within the Program Region's jurisdiction. BCOE's duties, obligations and agreements to provide the Program services under this Agreement are set forth in the attached **Exhibit "A"** ("Services") Program Region's duties, obligations, and agreements are set forth in the attached **Exhibit "B,"** ("Program Region Obligations").
- 2. **Term**. Services shall commence on 10/9/19 and will continue until 06/30/20, unless this Agreement is terminated and/or otherwise cancelled prior to that time.
- 3. **Payment**. Program Region shall pay BCOE for the provision of the Services a total not to exceed amount of Zero Dollars (\$0).
- 4. **Termination**. It is expressly understood and mutually agreed that the success of the Program is the condition for the continuation of this Agreement. Either party may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate this Agreement with a reasonable explanation. Written notice by the terminating party shall be sufficient to stop further provision of Services and Program Region Obligations. Notice shall be deemed given when received by the non-terminating party or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner.
- 5. **Indemnification**. To the furthest extent permitted by California law, Program Region shall, at its sole expense, defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the BCOE, the State of California, and their agents, representatives, officers, employees, trustees, and volunteers (the "indemnified parties") from any and all demands, losses, liabilities, claims, suits, and actions (the "claims") of any kind, nature, and description, including, but not limited to, personal injury, death, property damage, and consultants and/or attorneys' fees and costs, directly or indirectly arising out of, connected with, or resulting from the performance of the Agreement or from any activity, work, or thing done, permitted, or suffered by the Program Region under or in conjunction with this Agreement, unless the claims are caused wholly by the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the indemnified parties. The BCOE shall have the right to accept or reject any legal representation that Program Region proposes to defend the indemnified parties.



- 6. **Insurance**. Each party shall procure and maintain at all times insurance with minimum limits as customary for that party's course of business. Certificates and insurance policies for each party shall name the other party, their representatives, employees, and agents as additional insureds, and provide for not less than thirty (30) days' notice of cancellation or material charge. Parties shall provide each other with a certificate of insurance, for review and approval, stating these conditions prior to the commencement of Services under this Agreement. Such insurance shall be maintained with insurance carriers licensed to transact business in the State of California.
- 7. Anti-Discrimination. It is the policy of the BCOE that in connection with all work performed under contracts there be no discrimination against any person engaged in the work because of race, color, ancestry, national origin, religious creed, physical disability, medical condition, marital status, sexual orientation, gender, or age and therefore Program Region agrees to comply with applicable Federal and California laws including, but not limited to the California Fair Employment and Housing Act beginning with Government Code Section 12900 and Labor Code Section 1735.
- 8. **No Rights in Third Parties.** This Agreement does not create any rights in, or inure to the benefit of, any third party except as expressly provided herein.
- 9. Notice. Any notice required or permitted to be given under this Agreement shall be deemed to have been given, served, and received if given in writing and either personally delivered or deposited in the United States mail, registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt required, or sent by overnight delivery service, or facsimile transmission, addressed as follows:

### If to BCOE:

Butte County Office of Education 1870 Bird Street Oroville, CA 95965

ATTN: Yanet Carrillo PHONE: (530) 532-5750

FAX: (530) 532-3690 EMAIL: ycarrillo@bcoe.org

# If to Program Region:

Marysville Joint Unified School District 1919 B Street

Marysville, CA 95901 ATTN: Lennie Tate PHONE: 530-749-6902 FAX: 530-741-7893

EMAIL: ltate@mjusd.k12.ca.us

Any notice personally given or sent by facsimile transmission shall be effective upon receipt. Any notice sent by overnight delivery service shall be effective the business day next following delivery thereof to the overnight delivery service. Any notice given by mail shall be effective five (5) days after deposit in the United States mail.

- 10. Integration/Entire Agreement of Parties. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the Parties and supersedes all prior discussions, negotiations, and agreements, whether oral or written. This Agreement may be amended or modified only by a written instrument executed by both Parties.
- 11. **Assignment.** The obligations and/or interests of either party under this Agreement shall not be assigned or transferred in anyway without written consent from the other party.
- 12. **California Law**. This Agreement shall be governed by and the rights, duties and obligations of the Parties shall be determined and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of California. The Parties further agree that any action or proceeding brought to enforce the terms and conditions of this Agreement shall be maintained in Butte County.

- 13. **Waiver**. The waiver by either party of any breach of any term, covenant, or condition herein contained shall not be deemed to be a waiver of such term, covenant, condition, or any subsequent breach of the same or any other term, covenant, or condition herein contained.
- 14. **Severability**. If any term, condition or provision of this Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remaining provisions will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or invalidated in any way.
- 15. Provisions Required By Law Deemed Inserted. Each and every provision of law and clause required by law to be inserted in this Agreement shall be deemed to be inserted herein and this Agreement shall be read and enforced as though it were included therein.
- 16. **Authority to Bind Parties.** Neither party in the performance of any and all duties under this Agreement, except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, has any authority to bind the other to any agreements or undertakings.
- 17. **Attorney Fees/Costs.** Should litigation be necessary to enforce any terms or provisions of this Agreement, then each party shall bear its own litigation and collection expenses, witness fees, court costs and attorney's fees.
- 18. Captions and Interpretations. Paragraph headings in this Agreement are used solely for convenience, and shall be wholly disregarded in the construction of this Agreement. No provision of this Agreement shall be interpreted for or against a party because that party or its legal representative drafted such provision, and this Agreement shall be construed as being jointly prepared by the Parties.
- 19. **Signature Authority.** Each party has the full power and authority to enter into and perform this Agreement, and the person signing this Agreement on behalf of each Party has been properly authorized and empowered to enter into this Agreement.
- 20. **Counterparts.** This Agreement and all amendments and supplements to it may be executed in counterparts, and all counterparts together shall be construed as one document.
- 21. **Incorporation of Recitals and Exhibits**. The Recitals and each exhibit attached hereto are hereby incorporated herein by reference.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement on the date(s) indicated below.

BCOE:	Program Region:
Dated:	Dated:
BUTTE COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION	Marysville Joint Unified School District
Signed By:	Signed By:
Print Name:	Print Name:
	rinic Name.
Title:	Title:

# EXHIBIT "A" PROGRAM SERVICES

The MEAP Program will utilize a Pre- and Post-survey for migrant students served at each school site to measure initial need and consequent growth in areas of supplemental services provided in the areas of academic intervention and social-emotional mentoring. Outcomes expected will reflect students' growth in knowledge of high school graduation requirements, college entrance requirements, and career opportunities after high school/college.

Migrant Education Region 2 Responsibilities and Duties:

- 1. The MEAP program will provide services for migrant students by one bilingual college graduate student participating in the MEAP Program who is pursuing the Mașters in Counseling Program at Sacramento State University or National University, as well as current PPS (Pupil Personnel Services) Credential Candidates pursuing the Masters in Counseling.
- 2. BCOE/ME through Sacramento State University or National University will provide Advisor services to migrant students and English Language Learners at Lindhurst High School and Yuba Gardens Intermediate; not to exceed 20 hours each week for 40 weeks. BCOE/ME agrees to pay for 100% of the cost for MEAP services at Lindhurst High School and Yuba Gardens Intermediate.
- 3. MEAP Advisor will be available to provide parent education and outreach, including home visits at Lindhurst High School and Yuba Gardens Intermediate.
- 4. MEAP Advisorshall meet with migrant students during optimal times identified by principal or designee. Students will not be removed from the core instructional program during the school day. MEAP Advisor(s) will be available to meet with migrant students during non-instructional times.

# EXHIBIT "B" PROGRAM REGION DUTIES AND OBLIGATIONS

Marysville Joint Unified's Responsibilities and Duties:

- 1. Lindhurst High School and Yuba Gardens Intermediate will provide appropriate space for the MEAP mentor/advisor(s) including timely access to progress reports/transcripts and a telephone to make contact with migrant parents.
- 2. MEAP Advisors will be given support in accessing student records used in district to facilitate mandated review and use of migrant student data in order to target services.
- 3. Site principals shall be consulted regarding placement of MEAP personnel. The Advisor will then be paired with a site counselor who will meet regularly with the advisor and MEAP School Counseling Specialist to discuss program effectiveness.
- 4. MEAP Advisor will be included in district and site professional development activities (as appropriate), and in regularly scheduled counseling meetings, Student Study Teams, Individual Education Plan Meetings for migrant students being served by the MEAP Advisor.
- 5. MEAP Advisor will assist school personnel as needed with any bilingual services on first days of school, such as student registration.

There will be no charge for this service.



California Department of Education Fiscal Administrative Services Division AO-400 (REV. 09/2014)

GRANTEE N	ard Notification		tal	THE STATE OF	CDE	GRAN	NT NUMBE	R	
Gary Cena, Superintendent		Gary Cena, Superintendent		MUUSD Office	FY	PC	A	Vendor Number	Suffix
1919 B Stree Marysville, C	et CA 95901-3731	SEP	<sup>2 3</sup> 2019	19	239	39	72736	EZ	
Attention Expanded Le	earning Programs C	oordinator	dbylm	THE RESERVE AND ADDRESS OF THE PARTY.	DARDIZ ODE STI	PARTY OF THE PARTY OF	CCOUNT	COUNTY	
Program Office Expanded Learning Office			THE PURCHASING STANDARDS	ource de			58		
<b>Telephone</b> 530-741-6000				6010		8590	INDEX		
	ant Program Education and Safe	ty Program			-			0150	
GRANT DETAILS	Original/Prior Amendments	Amendment Amount	Tota	d	Amend No.	i. ;	Award Starting Date	Award Ending Date	
	\$1,819,099.20		\$1,819,0	99.20			7/01/2019	06/30/2020	
CFDA Number	Federal Grant Number	Federal Grant Name Fed			Federal	Agency			

This award is made contingent upon the availability of funds. If the Legislature takes action to reduce or defer the funding upon which this award is based, then this award will be amended accordingly.

Please return the original, signed Grant Award Notification (AO-400) to:

Andrea Shumate, Associate Governmental Program Analyst Expanded Learning Division California Department of Education 1430 N Street, Suite 3400 Sacramento, CA 95814-5901

California Department of Education Contact	Job Title				
Andrea Shumate	Associate Governmental Program Analyst				
E-mail Address		Telephone			
ashumate@cde.ca.gov	7)	916-445-5620			
Signature of the State Superintendent of Public Instruction	or Designee	Date			
) - Sommond		September 18, 2019			
CERTIFICATION OF ACCEPTANCE OF					
On behalf of the grantee named above, I accept this grant a	ward. I have read	I the applicable certifications,			
assurances, terms, and conditions identified on the grant applications	cation (for grants	with an application process) or			
in this document or both; and I agree to comply with all	requirements as	a condition of funding.			
Printed Name of Authorized Agent	Title	ripho loul			
Gary (eng	- July	MANACHT			
E-mail Address · \		Telephone 100			
ocenal miller com		(530) 149.6/00			
Signature 2		Date /			
,					

# Nonpublic, Nonsectarian School/Agency Services

MASTER CONTRACT

2019-2020

Superintendent Approval
Signature: 19-19

22

# MASTER CONTRACT

GENERAL AGREEMENT FOR NONSECTARIAN, NONPUBLIC SCHOOL AND AGENCY SERVICES

# MARYSVILLE JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL

	LEA		DISTRICT
	40	Contract Year	2019-2020
	<u>x</u>	Nonpublic School Nonpublic Agency	
Type of	Contract:		
X	Master Contract for fisc term of this contract.	cal year with Individual	Service Agreements (ISA) to be approved throughout the
	Individual Master Cont into the terms of this In	ract for a specific stude dividual Master Contra	nt incorporating the Individual Service Agreement (ISA) ct specific to a single student.
	Interim Contract: an ex of this Interim Contract discretion of the LEA.	is to provide for ongoi	fiscal years approved contracts and rates. The sole purpose ng funding at the prior year's rates for 90 days at the sole

When this section is included as part of any Master Contract, the changes specified above shall amend Section 4 – Term of Master Contract.

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

I.	<u>GE</u>	NERAL PROVISIONS	<u>Page</u>
		ALL COURT COLUMN LOSS	1
		MASTER CONTRACT	ε <u>1</u>
	2.	CERTIFICATION AND LICENSES  CONTINUE WITH LAWS STATISTICS PECHINATIONS	2
	3,	COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS, STATUTES, REGULATIONS	2
	4.	TERM OF MASTER CONTRACT	4G <b>Z</b>
	5.	INTEGRATION/CONTINUANCE OF CONTRACT	3
	,	FOLLOWING EXPIRATION OR TERMINATION	3
		INDIVIDUAL SERVICES AGREEMENT	. 4
	7.	DEFINITIONS	4
II.	AI	DMINISTRATION OF CONTRACT	
	8.	NOTICES	5
		MAINTENANCE OF RECORDS	5
		SEVERABILITY CLAUSE	6
		SUCCESSORS IN INTEREST	6
		VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW	6
		MODIFICATIONS AND AMENDMENTS REQUIRED TO	
	10.	CONFORM TO LEGAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE GUIDELINES	6
	14.	TERMINATION	6
		INSURANCE	6
		INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS	9
		INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR	9
		SUBCONTRACTING	9
		CONFLICTS OF INTEREST	10
		NON-DISCRIMINATION	10
***	-	OMONETONAL BROCKAM	
111	. <u>El</u>	DUCATIONAL PROGRAM	
	21.	FREE AND APPROPRIATE PUBLIC EDUCATION	- 11
		GENERAL PROGRAM OF INSTRUCTION	11
		INSTRUCTIONAL MINUTES	12
		CLASS SIZE	12
		CALENDARS	13
		DATA REPORTING	14
		LEAST RESTRICTIVE ENVIRONMENT/DUAL ENROLLMENT	14
		STATEWIDE ACHIEVEMENT TESTING	14
		MANDATED ATTENDANCE AT LEA MEETINGS	14
	30.	POSITIVE BEHAVIOR INTERVENTIONS AND SUPPORTS	15
		STUDENT DISCIPLINE	16
		IEP TEAM MEETINGS	16
		SURROGATE PARENTS AND FOSTER YOUTH	17
			17
		+	17
		COMPLAINT PROCEDURES	17
		STUDENT PROGRESS REPORTS/REPORT CARDS AND ASSESSMENTS	18
		TRANSCRIPTS	
		STUDENT CHANGE OF RESIDENCE	18
		WITHDRAWAL OF STUDENT FROM PROGRAM	19
	40.	PARENT ACCESS	19

	41.	LICENSED CHILDREN'S INSTITUTION CONTRACTORS AND RESIDENTIAL TREATMENT CENTER CONTRACTORS
	42	STATE MEAL MANDATE
		MONITORING
	45.	MONTONING
IV	PE.	RSONNEL
	44.	CLEARANCE REQUIREMENTS
	45.	STAFF QUALIFICATIONS
	46.	VERIFICATION OF LICENSES, CREDENTIALS AND OTHER DOCUMENTS
	47.	STAFF ABSENCE
	48.	STAFF PROFESSIONAL BEHAVIOR
V.	HI	EALTH AND SAFETY MANDATES
	49.	HEALTH AND SAFETY
	50.	FACILITIES AND FACILITIES MODIFICATIONS
	51.	ADMINISTRATION OF MEDICATION
	52.	INCIDENT/ACCIDENT REPORTING
	53.	CHILD ABUSE REPORTING
	54.	SEXUAL HARASSMENT
	55.	REPORTING OF MISSING CHILDREN
VI.	FI	NANCIAL
	56.	ENROLLMENT, CONTRACTING, SERVICE TRACKING,
		ATTENDANCE REPORTING AND BILLING PROCEDURES
		RIGHT TO WITHHOLD PAYMENT
		PAYMENT FROM OUTSIDE AGENCIES
		PAYMENT FOR ABSENCES
		LEA and/or NONPUBLIC SCHOOL CLOSURE DUE TO EMERGENCY
	61.	INSPECTION AND AUDIT
		RATE SCHEDULE
	63.	DEBARMENT CERTIFICATION
EX	HIBI	IT A: RATES
		IT B: INDIVIDUAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

2019-2020

**NUMBER:** 

LOCAL EDUCATION AGENCY: Marysville Joint Unified School District

NONPUBLIC SCHOOL/AGENCY/RELATED SERVICES PROVIDER: Odyssey

Learning Center

# NONPUBLIC, NONSECTARIAN SCHOOL/AGENCY SERVICES MASTER CONTRACT

# AUTHORIZATION FOR MASTER CONTRACT AND GENERAL PROVISIONS

#### 1. MASTER CONTRACT

This Master Contract is entered into on September 16, 2019 between Marysville Joint Unified School District, hereinafter referred to as the local educational agency ("LEA"), a member of the Yuba County SELPA and Odyssey Learning Center (nonpublic, nonsectarian school or agency), hereinafter referred to as NPS/A or "CONTRACTOR" for the purpose of providing special education and/or related services to students with exceptional needs under the authorization of California Education Code sections 56157, 56361 and 56365 et seq. and Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 3000 et seq., AB490 (Chapter 862, Statutes of 2003) and AB1858 (Chapter 914, Statutes of 2004). It is understood that this agreement does not commit LEA to pay for special education and/or related services provided to any student, or CONTRACTOR to provide such special education and/or related services, unless and until an authorized LEA representative approves the provision of special education and/or related services by CONTRACTOR.

Upon acceptance of a student, LEA shall submit to CONTRACTOR an Individual Services Agreement (hereinafter referred to as "ISA"). Unless otherwise agreed in writing, these forms shall acknowledge CONTRACTOR's obligation to provide all services specified in the student's Individualized Education Plan (hereinafter referred to as "IEP"). The ISA shall be executed within ninety (90) days of a student's enrollment. LEA and CONTRACTOR shall enter into an ISA for each student served by CONTRACTOR. As available and appropriate, the LEA shall make available access to any electronic IEP system and/or electronic database for ISA developing including invoicing.

Unless placement is made pursuant to an Office of Administrative Hearings (hereinafter referred to as "OAH") order, a lawfully executed agreement between LEA and parent or authorized by LEA for a transfer student pursuant to California Education Code section 56325, LEA is not responsible for the costs associated with nonpublic school placement until the date on which an IEP team meeting is convened, the IEP team determines that a nonpublic school placement is appropriate, and the IEP is signed by the student's parent.

#### 2. CERTIFICATION AND LICENSES

CONTRACTOR shall be certified by the California Department of Education (hereinafter referred to as "CDE") as a nonpublic, nonsectarian school/agency. All nonpublic school and nonpublic agency services shall be provided consistent with the area of certification specified by CDE Certification and as defined in California Education Code, section 56366 et seq and within the professional scope of practice of each provider's license, certification and/or credential. A current copy of CONTRACTOR's nonpublic

school/agency certification or a waiver of such certification issued by the CDE pursuant to Education Code section 56366.2 must be provided to LEA on or before the date this contract is executed by CONTRACTOR. This Master Contract shall be null and void if such certification or waiver is expired, revoked, rescinded, or otherwise nullified during the effective period of this Master Contract. Total student enrollment shall be limited to capacity as stated on CDE certification and in Section 24 of the Master Contract.

In addition to meeting the certification requirements of the State of California, a CONTRACTOR that operates a program outside of this State shall be certified or licensed by that state to provide, respectively, special education and related services and designated instruction and related services to pupils under the federal Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (20 U.S.C. Sec. 1400 et seq.).

If CONTRACTOR is a licensed children's institution (hereinafter referred to as "LCI"), CONTRACTOR shall be licensed by the state, or other public agency having delegated authority by contract with the state to license, to provide nonmedical care to children, including, but not limited to, individuals with exceptional needs. The LCI must also comply with all licensing requirements relevant to the protection of the child, and have a special permit, if necessary, to meet the needs of each child so placed. If the CONTRACTOR operates a program outside of this State, CONTRACTOR must obtain all required licenses from the appropriate licensing agency in both California and in the state where the LCI is located.

With respect to CONTRACTOR's certification, failure to notify the LEA and CDE of any changes in: (1) credentialed/licensed staff; (2) ownership; (3) management and/or control of the agency; (4) major modification or relocation of facilities; or (5) significant modification of the program may result in the suspension or revocation of CDE certification and/or suspension or termination of this Master Contract by the LEA.

# 3. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS, STATUTES, REGULATIONS

During the term of this contract, unless otherwise agreed, CONTRACTOR shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local statutes, laws, ordinances, rules, policies and regulations. CONTRACTOR shall also comply with all applicable LEA policies and procedures unless, taking into consideration all of the surrounding facts and circumstances, a policy or policies or a portion of a policy does not reasonably apply to CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR hereby acknowledges and agrees that it accepts all risks and responsibilities for its failure to comply with LEA policies and shall indemnify LEA under the provisions of Section 16 of this Agreement for all liability, loss, damage and expense (including reasonable attorneys' fees) resulting from or arising out of CONTRACTOR's failure to comply with applicable LEA policies (e.g., those policies relating to; the provision of special education and/or related services, facilities for individuals with exceptional needs, student enrollment and transfer, student inactive status, corporal punishment, student discipline, and positive behavior interventions).

CONTRACTOR acknowledges and understands that LEA may report to the CDE any violations of the provisions of this Master Contract; and that this may result in the suspension and/or revocation of CDE nonpublic school/agency certification pursuant to California Education Code section 56366.4(a).

### 4. TERM OF MASTER CONTRACT

The term of this Master Contract shall be from September 16, 2019 to June 30, 2020 (Title 5 California Code of Regulations section 3062(a)) unless otherwise stated. Neither the CONTRACTOR nor the LEA is required to renew this Master Contract in subsequent contract years. However, the parties acknowledge that any subsequent Master Contract is to be re-negotiated prior to June 30, 2019. In the event the contract is not renegotiated by June 30<sup>th</sup>, an interim contract may be made available as mutually agreed upon for up to 90 days from July 1 of the new fiscal year. (Title 5 California Code of Regulations section 3062(d)) No Master Contract will be offered unless and until all of the contracting requirements have been satisfied. The offer of a Master Contract to a CONTRACTOR is at the sole discretion of the LEA.

The provisions of this Master Contract apply to CONTRACTOR and any of its employees or independent contractors. Notice of any change in CONTRACTOR's ownership or authorized representative shall be provided in writing to LEA within thirty (30) calendar days of change of ownership or change of authorized representative.

# 5. INTEGRATION/CONTINUANCE OF CONTRACT FOLLOWING EXPIRATION OR TERMINATION

This Master Contract includes each Individual Services Agreement and they are incorporated herein by this reference. This Master Contract supersedes any prior or contemporaneous written or oral understanding or agreement. This Master Contract may be amended only by written amendment executed by both parties.

CONTRACTOR shall provide the LEA with information as requested in writing to secure a Master Contract or a renewal.

At a minimum, such information shall include copies of teacher credentials and clearance, insurance documentation and CDE certification. The LEA may require additional information as applicable. If the application packet is not completed and returned to District, no Master Contract will be issued. If CONTRACTOR does not return the Master Contract to LEA duly signed by an authorized representative within ninety (90) calendar days of issuance by LEA, the new contract rates will not take effect until the newly executed Master Contract is received by LEA and will not be retroactive to the first day of the new Master Contract's effective date. If CONTRACTOR fails to execute the new Master Contract within such ninety day period, all payments shall cease until such time as the new Master Contract for the current school year is signed and returned to LEA by CONTRACTOR. (California Education Code section 56366(c)(1) and (2)). In the event that this Master Contract expires or terminates, CONTRACTOR shall continue to be bound to all of the terms and conditions of the most recent executed Master Contract between CONTRACTOR and LEA for so long as CONTRACTOR is servicing authorized students at the discretion of the LEA.

### 6. INDIVIDUAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

This contract shall include an ISA developed for each student to whom CONTRACTOR is to provide special education and/or related services. An ISA shall only be issued for students enrolled with the approval of the LEA pursuant to Education Code section 56366 (a)(2)(A). An ISA may be effective for more than one contract year provided that there is a concurrent Master Contract in effect. In the event that this Master Contract expires or terminates, CONTRACTOR, shall continue to be bound to all of the terms and conditions of the most recent executed ISAs between CONTRACTOR and LEA for so long as CONTRACTOR is servicing authorized students.

Any and all changes to a student's educational placement/program provided under this Master Contract and/or an ISA shall be made solely on the basis of a revision to the student's IEP. At any time during the term of this Master Contract, a student's parent, CONTRACTOR, or LEA may request a review of a student's IEP subject to all procedural safeguards required by law.

Unless otherwise provided in this Master Contract, the CONTRACTOR shall provide all services specified in the IEP unless the CONTRACTOR and the LEA agree otherwise in the ISA. (California Education Code sections 56366(a) (5) and 3062(e)). In the event the CONTRACTOR is unable to provide a specific service at any time during the life of the ISA, the CONTRACTOR shall notify the LEA in writing within five (5) business days of the last date a service was provided. CONTRACTOR shall provide any and all subsequent compensatory service hours awarded to student as a result of lack of provision of services while student was served by the nonpublic school or agency.

If a parent or LEA contests the termination of an ISA by initiating a due process proceeding with the OAH, CONTRACTOR shall abide by the "stay-put" requirement of state and federal law unless the parent agrees otherwise or an Interim Alternative Educational Setting is deemed lawful and appropriate by LEA or OAH consistent with Section 1415 (k)(1)(7) of Title 20 of the United States Code. CONTRACTOR shall adhere to all LEA requirements concerning changes in placement.

Disagreements between LEA and CONTRACTOR concerning the formulation of an ISA or the Master Contract may be appealed to the County Superintendent of Schools of the County where the LEA is located, or the State Superintendent of Public Instruction pursuant to the provisions of California Education Code section 56366(c) (2).

#### 7. **DEFINITIONS**

The following definitions shall apply for purposes of this contract:

- a. The term "CONTRACTOR" means a nonpublic, nonsectarian school/agency certified by the California Department of Education and its officers, agents and employees.
- b. The term "authorized LEA representative" means a LEA administrator designated to be responsible for nonpublic school/agencies. It is understood, a representative of the Special Education Local Plan Area (SELPA) of which the LEA is a member is an authorized LEA representative in collaboration with the LEA. The LEA maintains sole responsibility for the contract, unless otherwise specified in the contract.
- c. The term "credential" means a valid credential, life diploma, permit, or document in special education or pupil personnel services issued by, or under the jurisdiction of, the State Board of Education if issued prior to 1970 or the California Commission on Teacher Credentialing, which entitles the holder thereof to perform services for which certification qualifications are required as defined in Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 3001(g).
- d. The term "qualified" means that a person holds a certificate, permit or other document equivalent to that which staff in a public school are required to hold to provide special education and designated instruction and services and has met federal and state certification, licensing, registration, or other comparable requirements which apply to the area in which he or she is providing special education or related services, including those requirements set forth in Title 34 of the Code of Federal Regulations sections 200.56 and 200.58, and those requirements set forth in Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations Sections 3064 and 3065, and adheres to the standards of professional practice established in federal and state law or regulation, including the standards contained in the California Business and Professions Code.

Nothing in this definition shall be construed as restricting the activities in services of a graduate needing direct hours leading to licensure, or of a student teacher or intern leading to a graduate degree at an accredited or approved college or university, as authorized by state laws or regulations. (Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations Section 3001 (r)).

The term "license" means a valid non-expired document issued by a licensing agency within the Department of Consumer Affairs or other state licensing office authorized to grant licenses and authorizing the bearer of the document to provide certain professional services or refer to themselves using a specified professional title including but not limited to mental health and board and care services at a residential placement. If a license is not available through an appropriate state licensing agency, a certificate of registration with the appropriate professional organization at the national or state level which has standards established for the certificate that are equivalent to a license shall be deemed to be a license as defined in Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 3001(l).

f. "Parent" means:

- i. a biological or adoptive parent; unless the biological or adoptive parent does not have legal authority to make educational decisions for the child,
- ii. a guardian generally authorized to act as the child's parent or authorized to make educational decisions for the child,
- iii. an individual acting in the place of a biological or adoptive parent, including a grandparent, stepparent, or other relative with whom the child lives, or an individual who is legally responsible for the child's welfare,
- iv. a surrogate parent,
- v. a foster parent if the authority of the biological or adoptive parent to make educational decisions on the child's behalf has been specifically limited by court order in accordance with Code of Federal Regulations 300.30(b)(1) or (2).

Parent does not include the state or any political subdivision of government or the nonpublic school or agency under contract with the LEA for the provision of special education or designated instruction and services for a child. (California Education Code section 56028).

- g. The term "days" means calendar days unless otherwise specified.
- h. The phrase "billable day" means a school day in which instructional minutes meet or exceed those in comparable LEA programs.
- i. The phrase "billable day of attendance" means a school day as defined in California Education Code Section 46307, in which a student is in attendance and in which instructional minutes meet or exceed those in comparable LEA programs unless otherwise stipulated in an IEP or ISA.
- j. It is understood that the term "Master Contract" also means "Agreement" and is referred to as such in this document.

# ADMINISTRATION OF CONTRACT

### 8. NOTICES

All notices provided for by this contract shall be in writing. Notices shall be mailed or delivered by hand and shall be effective as of the date of receipt by addressee.

All notices mailed to LEA shall be addressed to the person and address as indicated on the signature page of the Master Contract. Notices to CONTRACTOR shall be addressed as indicated on signature page of this Master Contract.

### 9. MAINTENANCE OF RECORDS

All records shall be maintained by CONTRACTOR as required by state and federal laws and regulations. Notwithstanding the foregoing sentence, CONTRACTOR shall maintain all records for at least five (5) years after the termination of this Master Contract. For purposes of this Master Contract, "records" shall include, but not be limited to student records as defined by California Education Code section 49061(b) including electronically stored information; cost data records as set forth in Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 3061; registers and roll books of teachers and/or daily service providers; daily service logs and notes and other documents used to record the provision of related services including supervision; daily service logs and notes used to record the provision of services provided through additional instructional assistants, NPA behavior intervention aides, and bus aides; absence verification records (parent/doctor notes, telephone logs, and related documents) if the CONTRACTOR is funded for excused absences, however, such records are not required if positive attendance is required; bus rosters; staff lists specifying credentials held and documents evidencing other staff qualifications, social security numbers, dates of hire, and dates of termination; records of employee training and certification, staff time sheets; non-paid staff and volunteer sign-in sheets; transportation and other related services subcontracts; school calendars; bell/class schedules when applicable; liability and worker's compensation insurance



policies; state nonpublic school and/or agency certifications by-laws; lists of current board of directors/trustees, if incorporated; statement of income and expenses; general journals; cash receipts and disbursement books; general ledgers and supporting documents; documents evidencing financial expenditures; federal/state payroll quarterly reports; and bank statements and canceled checks or facsimile thereof.

CONTRACTOR shall maintain student records in a secure location to ensure confidentiality and prevent unauthorized access. CONTRACTOR shall maintain a current list of the names and positions of CONTRACTOR's employees who have access to confidential records. CONTRACTOR shall maintain an access log for each student's record which lists all persons, agencies, or organizations requesting or receiving information from the record. Such log shall be maintained as required by California Education Code section 49064 and include the name, title, agency/organization affiliation, and date/time of access for each individual requesting or receiving information from the student's record. Such log needs to record access to the student's records by: (a) the student's parent; (b) an individual to whom written consent has been executed by the student's parent; or (c) employees of LEA or CONTRACTOR having a legitimate educational interest in requesting or receiving information from the record. CONTRACTOR/LEA shall maintain copies of any written parental concerns granting access to student records. For purposes of this paragraph, "employees of LEA or CONTRACTOR" do not include subcontractors. CONTRACTOR shall grant parents access to student records, and comply with parents' requests for copies of student records, as required by state and federal laws and regulations. CONTRACTOR agrees, in the event of school or agency closure, to forward student records within ten (10) business days to LEA. These shall include, but not limited to, current transcripts, IEP/IFSPs, and reports. LEA and/or SELPA shall have access to and receive copies of any and all records upon request within five (5) business days.

#### 10. SEVERABILITY CLAUSE

If any provision of this agreement is held, in whole or in part, to be unenforceable for any reason, the remainder of that provision and of the entire agreement shall be severable and remain in effect.

#### 11. SUCCESSORS IN INTEREST

This contract binds CONTRACTOR's successors and assignees. CONTRACTOR shall notify the LEA of any change of ownership or corporate control.

### 12. VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and conditions of this contract with venue in the County where the LEA is located.

# 13. MODIFICATIONS AND AMENDMENTS REQUIRED TO CONFORM TO LEGAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE GUIDELINES

This Master Contract may be modified or amended by the LEA to conform to administrative and statutory guidelines issued by any state, federal or local governmental agency. The party seeking such modification shall provide the LEA and/or CONTRACTOR thirty (30) days' notice of any such changes or modifications made to conform to administrative or statutory guidelines and a copy of the statute or regulation upon which the modification or changes are based.

#### 14. TERMINATION

This Master Contract or Individual Service Agreement may be terminated for cause. The cause shall not be the availability of a public class initiated during the period of the contract unless the parent agrees to the transfer of the student to the public school program at an IEP team meeting. To terminate the contract either party shall give twenty (20) days prior written notice (California Education Code section 56366(a)(4)). At the time of termination, CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA any and all documents

31

CONTRACTOR is required to maintain under this Master Contract. ISAs are void upon termination of this Master Contract, as provided in Section 5 or 6. CONTRACTOR or LEA may terminate an ISA for cause. To terminate the ISA, either party shall give twenty (20) days prior written notice.

#### 15. INSURANCE

CONTRACTOR shall, at his, her, or its sole cost and expense, maintain in full force and effect, during the term of this Agreement, the following insurance coverage from a California licensed and/or admitted insurer with an A minus (A-), VII, or better rating from A.M. Best, sufficient to cover any claims, damages, liabilities, costs and expenses (including counsel fees) arising out of or in connection with CONTRACTOR's fulfillment of any of its obligations under this Agreement or either party's use of the work or any component or part thereof:

# PART I - INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR NONPUBLIC SCHOOLS AND AGENCIES

A. Commercial General Liability Insurance, including both bodily injury and property damage, with limits as follows:

\$2,000,000 per occurrence \$ 500,000 fire damage \$ 5,000 medical expenses \$1,000,000 personal & adv. Injury \$3,000,000 general aggregate \$2,000,000 products/completed operations aggregate

The policy may not contain an exclusion for coverage of claims arising from claims for sexual molestation or abuse. In the event that CONTRACTOR's policy should have an exclusion for sexual molestation or abuse claims, then CONTRACTOR shall be required to procure a supplemental policy providing such coverage.

- B. Workers' Compensation Insurance in accordance with provisions of the California Labor Code adequate to protect the RTC from claims that may arise from its operations pursuant to the Workers' Compensation Act (Statutory Coverage). The Workers' Compensation Insurance coverage must also include Employers Liability coverage with limits of \$1,000,000/\$1,000,000/\$1,000,000.
- C. Commercial Auto Liability Insurance for all owned, non-owned or hired automobiles with a \$1 million combined single limit.

If no owned automobiles, then only hired and non-owned is required.

If CONTRACTOR uses a vehicle to travel to/from school sites, between schools and/or to/from students' homes or other locations as approved service locations by the LEA, CONTRACTOR must comply with State of California auto insurance requirements.

D. Errors & Omissions (E & O)/Malpractice (Professional Liability) coverage, including Sexual Molestation and Abuse coverage, unless that coverage is afforded elsewhere in the Commercial General Liability policy by endorsement or separate policy, with the following limits:

\$1,000,000 per occurrence \$2,000,000 general aggregate

E. CONTRACTOR, upon execution of this contract and periodically thereafter upon request, shall furnish the LEA with certificates of insurance evidencing such coverage. The certificate of insurance shall include a ten (10) day non-renewal notice provision. The Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability policy shall name the LEA and the Board of

32

Education additional insured's premiums on all insurance policies and shall be paid by CONTRACTOR and shall be deemed included in CONTRACTOR's obligations under this contract at no additional charge.

- F. Any deductibles or self-insured retentions above \$100,000 must be declared to and approved by the LEA. At its option, LEA may require the CONTRACTOR, at the CONTRACTOR's sole cost, to: (a) cause its insurer to reduce to levels specified by the LEA or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retentions with respect to the LEA, its officials and employees, or (b) procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigation.
- G. For any claims related to the services, the CONTRACTOR's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects to the LEA, its subsidiaries, officials and employees. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the LEA, its subsidiaries, officials and employees shall be excess of the CONTRACTOR's insurance and shall not contribute with it.
- H. All Certificates of Insurance may reference the contract number, name of the school or agency submitting the certificate, and the location of the school or agency submitting the certificate on the certificate.

# PART II - INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR NONPUBLIC SCHOOLS AFFILIATED WITH A RESIDENTIAL TREATMENT FACILITY ("RTC")

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school affiliated with a residential treatment center (NPS/RTC), the following insurance policies are required:

A. Commercial General Liability including both bodily injury and property damage, with limits as follows:

\$3,000,000 per occurrence \$6,000,000 in General Aggregate.

The policy shall be endorsed to name the LEA and the Board of Education as *named* additional insured and shall provide specifically that any insurance carried by the LEA which may be applicable to any claims or loss shall be deemed excess and the RTC's insurance primary despite any conflicting provisions in the RTC's policy. Coverage shall be maintained with no Self-Insured Retention above \$100,000 without the prior written approval of the LEA.

- B. Workers' Compensation Insurance in accordance with provisions of the California Labor Code adequate to protect the RTC from claims that may arise from its operations pursuant to the Workers' Compensation Act (Statutory Coverage). The Workers' Compensation Insurance coverage must also include Employers Liability coverage with limits of \$1,000,000/\$1,000,000/\$1,000,000.
- C. Commercial Auto Liability coverage with limits of \$1,000,000 Combined Single Limit per Occurrence if the RTC does not operate a student bus service. If the RTC provides student bus services, the required coverage limit is \$5,000,000 Combined Single Limit per Occurrence.
- D. Fidelity Bond or Crime Coverage shall be maintained by the RTC to cover all employees who process or otherwise have responsibility for RTC funds, supplies, equipment or other assets. Minimum amount of coverage shall be \$250,000 per occurrence, with no self-insured retention.
- E. Professional Liability/Errors & Omissions/Malpractice coverage with minimum limits of \$3,000,000 per occurrence and \$6,000,000 general aggregate.



F. Sexual Molestation and Abuse Coverage, unless that coverage is afforded elsewhere in the Commercial General Liability or Professional liability policy by endorsement, with minimum limits of \$3,000,000 per occurrence and \$6,000,000 general aggregate.

If LEA or CONTRACTOR determines that a change in insurance coverage obligations under this section is necessary, either party may reopen negotiations to modify the insurance obligations.

## 16. INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS

To the fullest extent allowed by law, CONTRACTOR shall indemnify and hold LEA and its Board Members, administrators, employees, agents, attorneys, volunteers, and subcontractors ("LEA Indemnities") harmless against all liability, loss, damage and expense (including reasonable attorneys' fees) resulting from or arising out of this Master Contract or its performance, to the extent that such loss, expense, damage or liability was proximately caused by negligence, intentional act, or willful act or omission of CONTRACTOR, including, without limitation, its agents, employees, subcontractors or anyone employed directly or indirectly by it (excluding LEA and LEA Indemnities). The duty and obligation to defend shall arise immediately upon tender of a claim or lawsuit to the CONTRACTOR. The LEA and the Member District(s) shall have the right in their sole discretion to select counsel of its choice to provide the defense at the sole cost of the CONTRACTOR or the applicable insurance carrier.

To the fullest extent allowed by law, LEA shall indemnify and hold CONTRACTOR and its Board Members, administrators, employees, agents, attorneys, and subcontractors ("CONTRACTOR Indemnities") harmless against all liability, loss, damage and expense (including reasonable attorneys' fees) resulting from or arising out of this Master Contract or its performance, to the extent that such loss, expense, damage or liability was proximately caused by the negligent or willful act or omission of LEA, including, without limitation, its agents, employees, subcontractors or anyone employed directly or indirectly by it (excluding CONTRACTOR and/or any CONTRACTOR Indemnities).

LEA represents that it is self-insured in compliance with the laws of the state of California, that the self-insurance covers district employees acting within the course and scope of their respective duties and that its self-insurance covers LEA's indemnification obligations under this Master Contract.

### 17. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR

Nothing herein contained will be construed to imply a joint venture, partnership or principal-agent relationship between the LEA and CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall provide all services under this Agreement as an independent contractor, and neither party shall have the authority to bind or make any commitment on behalf of the other. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be deemed to create any association, partnership, joint venture or relationship of principal and agent, master and servant, or employer and employee between the parties or any affiliates of the parties, or between the LEA and any individual assigned by CONTRACTOR to perform any services for the LEA.

If the LEA is held to be a partner, joint venturer, co-principle, employer or co-employer of CONTRACTOR, CONTRACTOR shall indemnify and hold harmless the LEA from and against any and all claims for loss, liability, or damages arising from that holding, as well as any expenses, costs, taxes, penalties and interest charges incurred by the LEA as a result of that holding.

#### 18. SUBCONTRACTING

CONTRACTOR shall provide written notification to LEA before subcontracting for special education and/or related services pursuant to this Master Contract. In the event LEA determines that it can provide the subcontracted service(s) at a lower rate, LEA may elect to provide such service(s). If LEA elects to provide such service(s), LEA shall provide written notification to CONTRACTOR within five (5) days of receipt of CONTRACTOR's original notice and CONTRACTOR shall not subcontract for said service(s).

CONTRACTOR shall incorporate all of the provisions of this Master Contract in all subcontracts, to the fullest extent reasonably possible. Furthermore, when CONTRACTOR enters into subcontracts for the

34

provision of special education and/or related services (including, but not limited to, transportation) for any student, CONTRACTOR shall cause each subcontractor to procure and maintain insurance during the term of each subcontract. Such subcontractor's insurance shall comply with the provisions of Section 15. Each subcontractor shall furnish the LEA with original endorsements and certificates of insurance effecting coverage required by Section 15. The endorsements are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf. The endorsements are to be on forms as required by the LEA. All endorsements are to be received and approved by the LEA before the subcontractor's work commences. The Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability policies shall name the LEA/SELPA and the LEA Board of Education as additional insured.

As an alternative to the LEA's forms, a subcontractor's insurer may provide complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, including endorsements affecting the coverage required by this Master Contract. All Certificates of Insurance may reference the LEA contract number, name of the school or agency submitting the certificate, indication if NPS or NPA, and the location of the school or agency submitting the certificate. In addition, all subcontractors must meet the requirements as contained in Section 45 Clearance Requirements and Section 46 Staff Qualifications of this Master Contract.

## 19. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA upon request a copy of its current bylaws and a current list of its Board of Directors (or Trustees), if it is incorporated. CONTRACTOR and any member of its Board of Directors (or Trustees) shall disclose any relationship with LEA that constitutes or may constitute a conflict of interest pursuant to California Education Code section 56042 and including, but not limited to, employment with LEA, provision of private party assessments and/or reports, and attendance at IEP team meetings acting as a student's advocate. Pursuant to California Education code section 56042, an attorney or advocate for a parent of an individual with exceptional needs shall not recommend placement at CONTRACTOR's facility if the attorney or advocate is employed or contracted by the CONTRACTOR, or will receive a benefit from the CONTRACTOR, or otherwise has a conflict of interest.

Unless CONTRACTOR and LEA otherwise agree in writing, LEA shall neither execute an ISA with CONTRACTOR nor amend an existing ISA for a student when a recommendation for special education and/or related services is based in whole or in part on assessment(s) or reports provided by CONTRACTOR to the student without prior written authorization by LEA. This paragraph shall apply to CONTRACTOR regardless of when an assessment is performed or a report is prepared (i.e., before or after the student is enrolled in CONTRACTOR's school/agency) or whether an assessment of the student is performed or a report is prepared in the normal course of the services provided to the student by CONTRACTOR. To avoid conflict of interest, and in order to ensure the appropriateness of an Independent Educational Evaluation (hereinafter referred to as "IEE") and its recommendations, the LEA may, in its discretion, not fund an IEE by an evaluator who provides ongoing service(s) or is sought to provide service(s) to the student for whom the IEE is requested. Likewise, the LEA may, in its discretion, not fund services through the evaluator whose IEE the LEA agrees to fund. When no other appropriate assessor is available, LEA may request and if CONTRACTOR agrees, the CONTRACTOR may provide an IEE.

When CONTRACTOR is a Nonpublic Agency, CONTRACTOR acknowledges that its authorized representative has read and understands Education Code section 56366.3 which provides, in relevant part, that no special education and/or related services provided by CONTRACTOR shall be paid for by LEA if provided by an individual who was an employee of LEA within the three hundred and sixty five (365) days prior to executing this contract. This provision does not apply to any person who is able to provide designated instruction and services during the extended school year because he or she is otherwise employed for up to ten months of the school year by LEA.

CONTRACTOR shall not admit a student living within the jurisdictional boundaries of the LEA on a private pay or tuition free "scholarship" basis and concurrently or subsequently advise/request parent(s) to pursue funding for the admitted school year from the LEA through due process proceedings.



#### 20. NON-DISCRIMINATION

CONTRACTOR shall not, in employment or operation of its programs, unlawfully discriminate on the basis of gender, nationality, national origin, ancestry, race, color, ethnicity, ethnic group affiliation, religion, age, marital status, pregnancy or parental status, sex, sexual orientation, gender, gender identity or expression, physical or mental disability, genetic information or any other classification protected by federal or state law or the perception of one or more of such characteristics or association with a person or group with one or more of these actual or perceived characteristics.

### EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM

### 21. FREE AND APPROPRIATE PUBLIC EDUCATION (FAPE)

LEA shall provide CONTRACTOR with a copy of the IEP including the Individualized Transition Plan (hereinafter referred to as "ITP") of each student served by CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall provide to each student special education and/or related services (including transition services) within the nonpublic school or nonpublic agency consistent with the student's IEP and as specified in the ISA. If CONTRACTOR is a NPS, CONTRACTOR shall not accept a student if it cannot provide or ensure the provision of the services outlined in the student's IEP. If student services are provided by a third party (i.e. Related Services Provider), CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA if provision of services cease.

Unless otherwise agreed to between CONTRACTOR and LEA, CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for the provision of all appropriate supplies, equipment, and/or facilities for students, as specified in the student's IEP and ISA. CONTRACTOR shall make no charge of any kind to parents for special education and/or related services as specified in the student's IEP and ISA (including, but not limited to, screenings, assessments, or interviews that occur prior to or as a condition of the student's enrollment LEA shall provide low incidence equipment for eligible under the terms of this Master Contract). students with low incidence disabilities when specified in the student's IEP and ISA. Such equipment remains the property of the SELPA/LEA and shall be returned to the SELPA/LEA when the IEP team determines the equipment is no longer needed or when the student is no longer enrolled in the nonpublic school. CONTRACTOR shall ensure that facilities are adequate to provide LEA students with an environment which meets all pertinent health and safety regulations. CONTRACTOR may charge a student's parent(s) for services and/or activities not necessary for the student to receive a free appropriate public education after: (a) written notification to the student's parent(s) of the cost and voluntary nature of the services and/or activities; and (b) receipt by the LEA of the written notification and a written acknowledgment signed by the student's parent(s) of the cost and voluntary nature of the services and/or activities. CONTRACTOR shall adhere to all LEA requirements concerning parent acknowledgment of financial responsibility.

Voluntary services and/or activities not necessary for the student to receive a free appropriate public education shall not interfere with the student's receipt of special education and/or related services as specified in the student's IEP and ISA unless the LEA, CONTRACTOR, and PARENT agree otherwise in writing.

## 22. GENERAL PROGRAM OF INSTRUCTION

All nonpublic school and nonpublic agency services shall be provided consistent with the area of certification specified by CDE Certification and as defined in California Education Code section 56366 et seq., and shall ensure that facilities are adequate to provide LEA students with an environment, which meets all pertinent health and safety regulations.

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school, CONTRACTOR's general program of instruction shall: (a) utilize evidence-based practices and predictors and be consistent with LEA's standards regarding the particular course of study and curriculum; (b) include curriculum that addresses mathematics, literacy and the use of educational, assistive technology and transition services; (c) be consistent with CDE's

36

standards regarding the particular course of study and curriculum; (d) provide the services as specified in the student's IEP and ISA. Students shall have access to: (a) State Board of Education (SBE) - adopted Common Core State Standards ("CCSS") for curriculum and the same instructional materials for kindergarten and grades 1 to 8, inclusive; and provide standards — aligned core curriculum and instructional materials for grades 9 to 12, inclusive, used by a local education agency (LEA), that contracts with the nonpublic school: (b) college preparation courses; (c) extracurricular activities, such as art, sports, music and academic clubs; (d) career preparation and vocational training, consistent with transition plans pursuant to state and federal law and; (e) supplemental assistance, including individual academic tutoring, psychological counseling, and career and college counseling.

When CONTRACTOR serves students in grades nine through twelve inclusive, LEA shall provide to CONTRACTOR a specific list of the course requirements to be satisfied by the CONTRACTOR leading toward graduation or completion of LEA's diploma requirements. CONTRACTOR shall not award a high school diploma to students who have not successfully completed all of the LEA's graduation requirements.

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic agency and/or related services provider, CONTRACTOR's general program of instruction and/or services shall utilize evidence-based practices and predictors and be consistent with LEA and CDE guidelines and certification, and provided as specified in the student's IEP and ISA. The nonpublic agency providing Behavior Intervention services shall develop a written plan that specifies the nature of their nonpublic agency service for each student within thirty (30) days of enrollment and shall be provided in writing to the LEA. School-based services may not be unilaterally converted by CONTRACTOR to a substitute program or provided at a location not specifically authorized by the IEP team. Except for services provided by a CONTRACTOR that is a licensed children's institution, all services not provided in the school setting require the presence of a parent, guardian or adult caregiver during the delivery of services, provided such guardian or caregiver have a signed authorization by the parent or legal guardian to authorize emergency services as requested. Licensed Children's Institution (LCI) CONTRACTORS shall ensure that appropriate and qualified residential or clinical staff is present during the provision of services under this Master Contract. CONTRACTOR shall immediately notify LEA in writing if no parent, guardian or adult caregiver is present. CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA a written description of the services and location provided prior to the effective date of this Master Contract. CONTRACTORS providing Behavior Intervention services must have a trained behaviorist or trained equivalent on staff. It is understood that Behavior Intervention services are limited per CDE Certification and do not constitute as an instructional program.

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic agency, CONTRACTOR shall not provide transportation nor subcontract for transportation services for students unless the LEA and CONTRACTOR agree otherwise in writing.

#### 23. INSTRUCTIONAL MINUTES

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school, the total number of instructional minutes per school day provided by CONTRACTOR shall be at least equivalent to the number of instructional minutes per school day provided to students at like grade level attending LEA schools and shall be specified in the student's ISA developed in accordance with the student's IEP.

For students in grades kindergarten through 12 inclusive, unless otherwise specified in the student's IEP and ISA, the number of instructional minutes, excluding breakfast, recess, lunch and pass time shall be at the same level that Ed. Code prescribes for the LEA.

The total number of annual instructional minutes shall be at least equivalent to the total number of annual instructional minutes provided to students attending LEA schools in like grade level unless otherwise specified in the student's IEP.

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic agency and/or related services provider, the total number of minutes per school day provided by CONTRACTOR shall be specified in the student's ISA developed in accordance with the student's IEP.

#### 24. CLASS SIZE

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school, CONTRACTOR shall ensure that class size shall not exceed a ratio of one teacher per twelve (12) students, unless CONTRACTOR and LEA agree otherwise in writing. Upon prior written approval by an authorized LEA representative, class size may be temporarily increased by a ratio of 1 teacher to fourteen (14) students when necessary during the regular or extended school year to provide services to students with disabilities.

In the event a nonpublic school is unable to fill a vacant teaching position responsible for direct instruction to students, and the vacancy has direct impact on the California Department of Education Certification of that school, the nonpublic school shall develop a plan to assure appropriate coverage of students by first utilizing existing certificated staff. The nonpublic school and the LEA may agree to one 30 school day period per contract year where class size may be increased to assure coverage by an appropriately credentialed teacher. Such an agreement shall be in writing and signed by both parties. This provision does not apply to a nonpublic agency.

CONTRACTOR providing special education instruction for individuals with exceptional needs between the ages of three and five years, inclusive, shall also comply with the appropriate instructional adult to child ratios pursuant to California Education Code sections 56440 et seq.

#### 25. CALENDARS

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school, CONTRACTOR shall submit to the LEA/SELPA a school calendar with the total number of billable days not to exceed 180 days, plus extended school year billable days equivalent to the number of days determined by the LEA's extended school year calendar. Billable days shall include only those days that are included on the submitted and approved school calendar, and/or required by the IEP (developed by the LEA) for each student. CONTRACTOR shall not be allowed to change its school calendar and/or amend the number of billable days without the prior written approval of the LEA. Nothing in this Master Contract shall be interpreted to require the LEA to accept any requests for calendar changes.

Unless otherwise specified by the students' IEP, educational services shall occur at the school site. A student shall only be eligible for extended school year services if such are recommended by his/her IEP Team and the provision of such is specifically included in the ISA. Extended school year shall consist of twenty (20) instructional days, unless otherwise agreed upon by the IEP Team convened by the LEA. Any days of extended school year in excess of twenty (20) billable days must be mutually agreed to, in writing, prior to the start of the extended school year.

Student must have actually been in attendance during the regular school year and/or during extended school year and actually received services on a billable day of attendance in order for CONTRACTOR to be eligible for payment. It is specifically understood that services may not be provided on weekends/holidays and other times when school is not in session, unless agreed to by the LEA, in writing, in advance of the delivery of any nonpublic school service. Any instructional days provided without this written agreement shall be at the sole financial responsibility of the CONTRACTOR.

CONTRACTOR shall observe the same legal holidays as LEA. Those holidays are Labor Day, Veteran's Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day, New Year's Day, Martin Luther King, Jr. Day, President's Day, Memorial Day and Independence Day. With the approval of LEA, CONTRACTOR may revise the date upon which CONTRACTOR closes in observance of any of the holidays observed by the LEA.

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic agency, CONTRACTOR shall be provided with a LEA-developed/approved calendar prior to the initiation of services. CONTRACTOR herein agrees to observe



holidays as specified in the LEA-developed/approved calendar. CONTRACTOR shall provide services pursuant to the LEA-developed/approved calendar; or as specified in the LEA student's IEP and ISA. Unless otherwise specified in the LEA student's ISA, CONTRACTOR shall provide related services to LEA students on only those days that the LEA student's school of attendance is in session and the LEA student attends school. CONTRACTOR shall bill only for services provided on billable days of attendance as indicated on the LEA calendar unless CONTRACTOR and the LEA agree otherwise, in writing. Student must have actually been in attendance and/or received services on a billable day of attendance in order for CONTRACTOR to be eligible for payment. It is specifically understood that services may not be provided on weekends/holidays and other times when school is not in session, unless agreed to by the LEA, in writing, in advance of the delivery of any nonpublic agency service provided by CONTRACTOR. Any instructional days provided without this written agreement shall be at the sole financial responsibility of the CONTRACTOR.

#### 26. DATA REPORTING

CONTRACTOR shall agree to provide to the LEA all data related to student information and billing information with LEA. CONTRACTOR shall agree to provide all data related to any and all sections of this contract and requested by and in the format required by the LEA. It is understood that all nonpublic school and agencies shall utilize the LEA approved electronic IEP system for all IEP development and progress reporting, unless otherwise agreed to by the LEA. Additional progress reporting may be required by the LEA. The LEA shall provide the CONTRACTOR with appropriate software, user training and proper internet permissions to allow adequate access.

The LEA shall provide the CONTRACTOR with approved forms and/or format for such data including, but not limited to, invoicing, attendance reports and progress reports. The LEA may approve use of CONTRACTOR'S provided forms at their discretion.

#### 27. LEAST RESTRICTIVE ENVIRONMENT/DUAL ENROLLMENT

CONTRACTOR and LEA shall follow all LEA policies and procedures that support Least Restrictive Environment ("LRE") options and/or dual enrollment options if available and appropriate, for students to have access to the general curriculum and to be educated with their nondisabled peers to the maximum extent appropriate.

CONTRACTOR and LEA shall ensure that LRE placement options are addressed at all IEP team meetings regarding students for whom ISAs have been or may be executed. This shall include IEP team consideration of supplementary aids and services, goals and objectives necessary for placement in the LRE and necessary to enable students to transition to less restrictive settings.

When an IEP team has determined that a student should be transitioned into the public school setting, CONTRACTOR shall assist the LEA in implementing the IEP team's recommended activities to support the transition.

#### 28. STATEWIDE ACHIEVEMENT TESTING

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school, per implementation of Senate Bill 484, CONTRACTOR shall administer all Statewide assessments within the California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress ("CAASPP"), Desired Results Developmental Profile ("DRDP"), California Alternative Assessment ("CAA"), achievement and abilities tests (using LEA-authorized assessment instruments), the Fitness Gram, , the English Language Proficiency Assessments for California ("ELPAC"), and as appropriate to the student, and mandated by LEA pursuant to LEA and state and federal guidelines.

CONTRACTOR is subject to the alternative accountability system developed pursuant to Education Code section 52052, in the same manner as public schools. Each LEA student placed with CONTRACTOR by the LEA shall be tested by qualified staff of CONTRACTOR in accordance with that accountability program. LEA shall provide test administration training to CONTRACTOR'S qualified staff.



CONTRACTOR shall attend LEA test training and comply with completion of all coding requirements as required by LEA.

#### 29. MANDATED ATTENDANCE AT LEA MEETINGS

CONTRACTOR shall attend District mandated meetings when legal mandates, and/or LEA policy and procedures are reviewed, including but not limited to the areas of: curriculum, high school graduation, standards-based instruction, behavior intervention, cultural and linguistic needs of students with disabilities, dual enrollment responsibilities, LRE responsibilities, transition services, and standardized testing and IEPs. LEA shall provide CONTRACTOR with reasonable notice of mandated meetings. Attendance at such meetings does not constitute a billable service hour(s).

#### 30. POSITIVE BEHAVIOR INTERVENTIONS AND SUPPORTS

CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements of Education Code section 49005, et seq., 56521.1 and 56521.2. LEA students who exhibit behaviors that interfere with their learning or the learning of others must receive timely and appropriate assessments and positive supports and interventions in accordance with the federal law and it's implementing regulations. If the Individualized Education Program ("IEP") team determines that a student's behavior impedes his or her learning or the learning of others, the IEP team is required to consider the use of positive behavioral interventions and supports, and other strategies, to address that behavior, consistent with Section 1414(d)(3)(B)(i) and (d)(4) of Title 20 of the United States Code and associated federal regulations. This could mean that instead of developing a Behavior Intervention Plan ("BIP"), the IEP team may conclude it is sufficient to address the student's behavioral problems through the development of behavioral goals and behavioral interventions to support those goals.

CONTRACTOR shall maintain a written policy pursuant to California Education Code section 56521.1 regarding emergency interventions and behavioral emergency reports. CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all of its staff members are trained annually in crisis intervention and emergency procedures as related to appropriate behavior management strategies. Training includes certification with an approved SELPA crisis intervention program. Evidence of such training to applicable or relevant staff shall be submitted to the LEA at the beginning of the school year and within six (6) days of any new hire as referenced above.

Pursuant to Education Code section 56521.1, emergency interventions shall not be used as a substitute for a BIP, and shall not be employed longer than necessary to contain the behavior. Emergency interventions may only be used to control unpredictable, spontaneous behavior that poses clear and present danger of serious physical harm to the individual with exceptional needs, or others, and that cannot be immediately prevented by a response less restrictive than the temporary application of a technique used to contain the behavior. If a situation requires prolonged use of emergency intervention, staff must seek assistance from the school site administrator or a law enforcement agency.

CONTRACTOR shall complete a behavior emergency report when an emergency occurs that is defined as a serious, dangerous behavior that staff has determined to present a clear and present danger to others. It requires a non-violent physical intervention to protect the safety of student, self, or others and a physical intervention has been used; or a physical intervention has not been used, but an injury or serious property damage has occurred. Personal Safety Techniques may or may not have been used. Emergencies require a behavior emergency report form be completed and submitted to the LEA within twenty-four (24) hours for administrative action. CONTRACTOR shall notify Parent within twenty-four (24) hours via telephone. If the student's IEP does not contain a Behavior Intervention Plan ("BIP") or Positive Behavior Intervention Plan ("PBIP"), an IEP team shall schedule a meeting to review the behavior emergency report, determine if there is a necessity for a functional behavioral assessment, and to determine an interim plan. If the student already has a BIP, the IEP team shall review and modify the BIP if a new serious behavior has been exhibited or existing behavioral interventions have proven to be ineffective. CONTRACTOR shall schedule with LEA an IEP meeting within two (2) days.

Pursuant to Education Code section 56521.2, CONTRACTOR shall not authorize, order, consent to, or pay for the following interventions, or any other interventions similar to or like the following: (1) Any intervention that is designed to, or likely to, cause physical pain, including, but not limited to, electric-shock (2) An intervention that involves the release of noxious, toxic, or otherwise unpleasant sprays, mists, or substances in proximity to the face of the individual. (3) An intervention that denies adequate sleep, food, water, shelter, bedding, physical comfort, or access to bathroom facilities. (4) An intervention that is designed to subject, used to subject, or likely to subject, the individual to verbal abuse, ridicule, or humiliation, or that can be expected to cause excessive emotional trauma. (5) Restrictive interventions that employ a device, material, or objects that simultaneously immobilize all four extremities, including the procedure known as prone containment, except that prone containment or similar techniques may be used by trained personnel as a limited emergency intervention. (6) Locked seclusion, unless it is in a facility otherwise licensed or permitted by state law to use a locked room. (7) An intervention that precludes adequate supervision of the individual. (8) An intervention that deprives the individual of one or more of his or her senses. (b) In the case of a child whose behavior impedes the child's learning or that of others, the individualized education program team shall consider the use of positive behavioral interventions and supports, and other strategies, to address that behavior, consistent with Section 1414(d)(3)(B)(i) and (d)(4) of Title 20 of the United States Code and associated federal regulations.

All restraint practices must be reviewed and revised when they have an adverse effect on a student and are used repeatedly for an individual child, either on multiple occasions within the same classroom or multiple uses by the same individual. CONTRACTOR shall notify the student's parent/guardian when any type of physical or mechanical restraint or seclusion has been used. Upon the use of any type of physical or mechanical restraint or seclusions of a District student, CONTRACTOR shall complete a BER per the reporting and notification requirements listed above.

#### 31. STUDENT DISCIPLINE

CONTRACTOR shall maintain and abide by a written policy for student discipline that is consistent with state and federal law and regulations.

When CONTRACTOR seeks to remove a student from his/her current educational placement for disciplinary reasons, CONTRACTOR shall immediately submit a written discipline report to the LEA and a manifestation IEP team meeting shall be scheduled. Written discipline reports shall include, but not be limited to: the student's name; the time, date, and description of the misconduct; the disciplinary action taken by CONTRACTOR; and the rationale for such disciplinary action. A copy of the student's behavior plan, if any, shall be submitted with the written discipline report. CONTRACTOR and LEA agree to participate in a manifestation determination at an IEP meeting no later than the tenth (10<sup>th</sup>) day of suspension. CONTRACTOR shall notify and invite LEA representatives to the IEP team meeting where the manifestation determination will be made.

#### 32. IEP TEAM MEETINGS

An IEP team meeting shall be convened at least annually to evaluate: (1) the educational progress of each student placed with CONTRACTOR, including all state assessment results pursuant to the requirements of Education Code section 52052; (2) whether or not the needs of the student continue to be best met at the nonpublic school; and (3) whether changes to the student's IEP are necessary, including whether the student may be transitioned to a public school setting. (California Education Code sections 56366 (a) (2) (B) (i) and (ii)) and pursuant to California Education Code section 56345 (b) (4).)

If the LEA student is to be transferred from a NPS setting into a regular class setting in a public school for any part of the school day, the IEP team shall document, if appropriate, a description of activities provided to integrate the student into the regular education program, including the nature of each activity as well as the time spent on the activity each day or week and a description of the activities provided to support the transition of the student from the special education program into the regular education program. Each student shall be allowed to provide confidential input to any representative of his or her

IEP team. Except as otherwise provided in the Master Contract, CONTRACTOR and LEA shall participate in all IEP team meetings regarding students for whom ISAs have been or may be executed. At any time during the term of this Master Contract, the parent, the CONTRACTOR or the LEA may request a review of the student's IEP, subject to all procedural safeguards required by law, including reasonable notice given to, and participation of, the CONTRACTOR in the meeting. Every effort shall be made to schedule IEP team meetings at a time and place that is mutually convenient to parent, CONTRACTOR and LEA. CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA assessments and written assessment reports by service providers upon request and/or pursuant to LEA policy and procedures. It is understood that attendance at an IEP meeting is part of CONTRACTOR'S professional responsibility and is not a billable service under this Master Contract.

It is understood that the CONTRACTOR shall utilize the approved electronic IEP system of the LEA for all IEP planning and progress reporting at the LEA's discretion. The SELPA shall provide training for any NPS and NPA to assure access to the approved system. The NPS and/or NPA shall maintain confidentiality of all IEP data on the approved system and shall protect the password requirements of the system. When a student dis-enrolls from the NPS, the NPS/NPA shall discontinue use of the approved system for that student.

Changes in any student's educational program, including instruction, services, or instructional setting provided under this Master Contract, may only be made on the basis of revisions to the student's IEP. In the event that the CONTRACTOR believes the student requires a change of placement, the CONTRACTOR may request a review of the student's IEP for the purposes of consideration of a change in the student's placement. Student is entitled to remain in the last agreed upon and implemented placement unless parent agrees otherwise or an Interim Alternative Educational Setting is deemed lawful and appropriate by LEA or OAH consistent with Section 1415 (k)(1)(7) of Title 20 of the United States Code.

#### 33. SURROGATE PARENTS AND FOSTER YOUTH

CONTRACTOR shall comply with LEA surrogate parent assignments. A pupil in foster care shall be defined pursuant to California Education Code section 42238.01(b). The LEA shall annually notify the CONTRACTOR who the LEA has designated as the educational liaison for foster children. When a pupil in foster care is enrolled in a nonpublic school by the LEA any time after the completion of the pupil's second year of high school, the CONTRACTOR shall schedule the pupil in courses leading towards graduation based on the diploma requirements of the LEA unless provided notice otherwise in writing pursuant to Section 51225.1.

#### 34. DUE PROCESS PROCEEDINGS

CONTRACTOR shall fully participate in special education due process proceedings including mediations and hearings, as requested by LEA. CONTRACTOR shall also fully participate in the investigation and provision of documentation related to any complaint filed with the State of California, the Office of Civil Rights, or any other state and/or federal governmental body or agency. Full participation shall include, but in no way be limited to, cooperating with LEA representatives to provide complete answers raised by any investigator and/or the immediate provision of any and all documentation that pertains to the operation of CONTRACTOR's program and/or the implementation of a particular student's IEP/Individual and Family Service Plan ("IFSP").

#### 35. COMPLAINT PROCEDURES

CONTRACTOR shall maintain and adhere to its own written procedures for responding to parent complaints. These procedures shall include annually notifying and providing parents of students with appropriate information (including complaint forms) for the following: (1) Uniform Complaint Procedures pursuant to Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 4600 et seq.; (2) Nondiscrimination policy pursuant to Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 4960 (a); (3) Sexual Harassment Policy, California Education Code 231.5 (a) (b) (c); (4) Title IX Student Grievance

Procedure, Title IX 106.8 (a) (d) and 106.9 (a); and (5) Notice of Privacy Practices in compliance with Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act ("HIPAA"). CONTRACTOR shall include verification of these procedures to the LEA.

#### 36. STUDENT PROGRESS REPORTS/REPORT CARDS AND ASSESSMENTS

Unless LEA requests in writing that progress reports be provided on a monthly basis, CONTRACTOR shall provide to parents at least four (4) written progress reports/report cards. At a minimum, progress reports shall include progress over time towards IEP goals and objectives. A copy of the progress reports/report cards shall be maintained at the CONTRACTOR's place of business and shall be submitted to the LEA and LEA student's parent(s).

The CONTRACTOR shall also provide an LEA representative access to supporting documentation used to determine progress on any goal or objective, including but not limited to log sheets, observation notes, data sheets, pre/post tests, rubrics and other similar data collection used to determine progress or lack of progress on approved goals, objectives, transition plans or behavior intervention plans. The LEA may request such data at any time within five (5) years of the date of service. The CONTRACTOR shall provide this data supporting progress within five (5) business days of request. Additional time may be granted as needed by the LEA.

CONTRACTOR shall complete academic or other evaluations of the student ten (10) days prior to the student's annual or triennial review IEP team meeting for the purpose of reporting the student's present levels of performance at the IEP team meeting as required by state and federal laws and regulations and pursuant to LEA policies, procedures, and/or practices. CONTRACTOR shall provide sufficient copies of its reports, documents, and projected goals to share with members of the IEP team five (5) business days prior to the IEP meeting. CONTRACTOR shall maintain supporting documentation such as test protocols and data collection, which shall be made available to LEA within five (5) business days of request.

The CONTRACTOR is responsible for all evaluation costs regarding the updating of goals and objectives, progress reporting and development of present levels of performance. All assessments resulting from an assessment plan shall be provided by the LEA unless the LEA specifies in writing a request that CONTRACTOR perform such additional assessment. Any assessment and/or evaluation costs may be added to the ISA and/or approved separately by the LEA at the LEA's sole discretion.

It is understood that all billable hours must be in direct services to pupils as specified in the ISA. For Nonpublic Agency services, supervision provided by a qualified individual as specified in Title 5 Regulation, subsection 3065, shall be determined as appropriate and included in the ISA. Supervision means the direct observation of services, data review, case conferencing and program design consistent with professional standards for each professional's license, certification, or credential.

CONTRACTOR shall not charge the student's parent(s) or LEA for the provision of progress reports, report cards, evaluations conducted in order to obtain present levels of performance, interviews, and/or meetings. It is understood that all billable hours have limits to those specified on the ISA consistent with the IEP. It is understood that copies of data collection notes, forms, charts and other such data are part of the pupil's record and shall be made available to the LEA upon written request.

#### 37. TRANSCRIPTS

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school, CONTRACTOR shall prepare transcripts at the close of each semester, or upon student transfer, for students in grades nine (9) through twelve (12) inclusive, and submit them on LEA approved forms to the student's school of residence for evaluation of progress toward completion of diploma requirements as specified in LEA Procedures. CONTRACTOR shall submit to the LEA names of students and their schools of residence for whom transcripts have been submitted as specified by the LEA.

#### 38. STUDENT CHANGE OF RESIDENCE

Within five (5) school days after CONTRACTOR becomes aware of a student's change of residence, CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA of the student's change of residence as specified in LEA Procedures. Upon enrollment, CONTRACTOR shall notify parents in writing of their obligation to notify CONTRACTOR of the student's change of residence. CONTRACTOR shall maintain, and provide upon request by LEA, documentation of such notice to parents.

If CONTRACTOR had knowledge or should reasonably have had knowledge of the student's change of residence boundaries and CONTRACTOR fails to follow the procedures specified in this provision, LEA shall not be responsible for the costs of services delivered after the student's change of residence.

#### 39. WITHDRAWAL OF STUDENT FROM PROGRAM

CONTRACTOR shall immediately report electronically and in writing to the LEA within five (5) business days when an LEA student is withdrawn without prior notice from school and/or services, including student's change of residence to a residence outside of LEA service boundaries, and student's discharge against professional advice from a Nonpublic Schools/Residential Treatment Center ("NPS/RTC").

#### 40. PARENT ACCESS

CONTRACTOR shall provide for reasonable parental access to students and all facilities including, but not limited to, the instructional setting, recreational activity areas, meeting rooms and student living quarters. CONTRACTOR shall comply with any known court orders regarding parental visits and access to LEA students.

CONTRACTOR operating programs associated with a NPS/RTC shall cooperate with a parent's reasonable request for LEA student therapeutic visits in their home or at the NPS/RTC. CONTRACTOR shall require that parents obtain prior written authorization for therapeutic visits from the CONTRACTOR and the LEA at least thirty (30) days in advance. CONTRACTOR shall facilitate all parent travel and accommodations and for providing travel information to the parent as appropriate. Payment by LEA for approved travel-related expenses shall be made directly through the LEA.

CONTRACTOR providing services in the student's home as specified in the IEP shall assure that at least one parent of the child, or an adult caregiver with written and signed authorization to make decisions in an emergency, is present. The names of any adult caregiver other than the parent shall be provided to the LEA prior to the start of any home based services, including written and signed authorization in emergency situations. The parent shall inform the LEA of any changes of caregivers and provide written authorization for emergency situation. The adult caregiver cannot also be an employee or volunteer associated with the NPS/NPA service provider.

For services provided in a pupil's home as specified in the IEP, CONTRACTOR must assure that the parent or LEA approved responsible adult is present during the provision of services. All problems and/or concerns reported to parents, both verbal and written, shall also be provided to the LEA.

# 41. LICENSED CHILDREN'S INSTITUTION ("LCI") CONTRACTORS AND RESIDENTIAL TREATMENT CENTER ("RTC") CONTRACTORS

If CONTRACTOR is a licensed children's institution (hereinafter referred to as "LCI"), CONTRACTOR shall adhere to all legal requirements regarding educational placements for LCI students as stated in Education Code 56366 (a) (2) (C), 56366.9 (c) (1), Health and Safety Code section 1501.1(b), AB 1858 (2004), AB490 (Chapter 862, Statutes of 2003), AB 1261 (2005), AB 1166 Chapter 171 (2015), AB 167 Chapter 224 (2010), AB 216 Chapter 324 (2013), AB 379 Chapter 772 (2015), AB 1012 Chapter 703 (2015), and the procedures set forth in the LEA Procedures. An LCI shall not require that a pupil be placed in its nonpublic school as a condition of being placed in its residential facility.

If CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic, nonsectarian school that is owned, operated by, or associated with a residential treatment center (hereinafter referred to as "NPS/RTC"), CONTRACTOR shall adhere to all legal requirements under the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA), 20 U.S.C. section 1412(a)(1)(A) and Education Code section 56000, et seq.; amended and reorganized by the Individuals with Disabilities Education Improvement Act of 2004 (IDEIA), 20 U.S.C. section 1401(29); Education Code section 56031; Cal. Code Regs., Title 5, section 3001 et seq., Cal. Code Regs., Title 2, section 60100 et seq. regarding the provision of counseling services, including residential care for students to receive a FAPE as set forth in the LEA student's IEPs.

If CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic, nonsectarian school that is owned, operated by, or associated with a LCI, CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA, on a quarterly basis, a list of all students, including those identified as eligible for special education. For those identified special education students, the list shall include: 1) special education eligibility at the time of enrollment and; 2) the educational placement and services specified in each student's IEP at the time of enrollment.

Unless placement is made pursuant to an Office of Administrative Hearings order or a lawfully executed agreement between LEA and parent, LEA is not responsible for the costs associated with nonpublic school placement until the date on which an IEP team meeting is convened, the IEP team determines that a nonpublic school placement is appropriate, and the IEP is signed by the student's parent or another adult with educational decision-making rights.

In addition to meeting the certification requirements of the State of California, a CONTRACTOR that operates a program outside of this State shall be certified or licensed by that state to provide, respectively, special education and related services and designated instruction and related services to pupils under the federal Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (20 U.S.C. Sec. 1400 et seq.).

#### 42. STATE MEAL MANDATE

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school, CONTRACTOR and LEA shall satisfy the State Meal Mandate under California Education Code sections 49530, 49530.5 and 49550.

#### 43. MONITORING

CONTRACTOR shall allow LEA representatives access to its facilities for periodic monitoring of each student's instructional program and shall be invited to participate in the formal review of each student's progress. LEA shall have access to observe each student at work, observe the instructional setting, interview CONTRACTOR, and review each student's records and progress. Such access shall include unannounced monitoring visits. When making site visits, LEA shall initially report to CONTRACTOR's site administrative office. CONTRACTOR shall be invited to participate in the review of each student's progress.

If CONTRACTOR is also an LCI and/or NPS/RTC, the CDE shall annually evaluate whether CONTRACTOR is in compliance with Education Code section 56366.9 and Health and Safety Code section 1501.1(b).

The State Superintendent of Public Instruction ("Superintendent") shall monitor CONTRACTOR'S facilities, the educational environment, and the quality of the educational program, including the teaching staff, the credentials authorizing service, the standards-based core curriculum being employed, and the standard focused instructional materials used on a three-year cycle, as follows: (1) CONTRACTOR shall complete a self-review in year one; (2) the Superintendent shall conduct an onsite review in year two; and (3) the Superintendent shall conduct a follow-up visit in year three.

CONTRACTOR shall participate in any LEA and CDE compliance review, if applicable, to be conducted as aligned with the CDE Onsite Review and monitoring cycle in accordance with California Education Code section 56366.1(j). This review will address programmatic aspects of the nonpublic school,

compliance with relevant state and federal regulations, and Master Contract compliance. CONTRACTOR shall conduct any follow-up or corrective action procedures related to review findings.

CONTRACTOR understands that LEA reserves the right to institute a program audit with or without cause. The program audit may include, but is not limited to, a review of core compliance areas of health and safety; curriculum/instruction; related services; and contractual, legal, and procedural compliance.

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school, CONTRACTOR shall collect all applicable data and prepare the applicable portion of a School Accountability Report Card as appropriate in accordance with California Education Code Section 33126.

#### **PERSONNEL**

#### 44. CLEARANCE REQUIREMENTS

CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements of California Education Code sections 44237, 35021.1 and 35021.2 including, but not limited to: obtaining clearance from both the California Department of Justice (hereinafter referred to as "CDOJ") and clearance from the Federal Bureau of Investigation (hereinafter referred to as "FBI") for CONTRACTOR's employees and volunteers who will have or likely may have any direct contact with LEA students. CONTRACTOR hereby agrees that CONTRACTOR's employees and volunteers shall not come in contact with students until CDOJ and FBI clearance are ascertained. CONTRACTOR shall certify in writing to LEA that none of its employees, and volunteers, unless CONTRACTOR determines that the volunteers will have no direct contact with students, or subcontractors who may come into contact with students have been convicted of a violent or serious felony as those terms are defined in California Education Code section 44237(h), unless despite the employee's conviction of a violent or serious felony, he or she has met the criteria to be eligible for employment pursuant to California Education Code section 44237 (i) or (j). Clearance certification shall be submitted to the LEA.

The passage of AB 389 amends Education Code sections 44237 and 56366.1 as to the verification that the CONTRACTOR has received a successful criminal background check clearance and has enrolled in subsequent arrest notification service, as specified, for each owner, operator, and employee of the nonpublic, nonsectarian school or agency. Further this bill deletes the exemption for applicants possessing a valid California state teaching credential or who are currently licensed by another state agency that requires a criminal record summary, from submitting two (2) sets of fingerprints for the purpose of obtaining a criminal record summary from the Department of Justice and the Federal Bureau of Investigation. Notwithstanding the restrictions on sharing and destroying criminal background check information, CONTRACTOR, upon demand, shall make available to the LEA evidence of a successful criminal background check clearance and enrollment in subsequent arrest notification service, as provided, for each owner, operator, and employee of the nonpublic, nonsectarian school or agency. CONTRACTOR is required to retain the evidence on-site, as specified, for all staff, including those licensed or credentialed by another state agency. Background clearances and proof of subsequent arrest notification service, as required by California Penal Code section 11105.2, for all staff shall be provided to the LEA upon request.

#### 45. STAFF QUALIFICATIONS

CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all individuals employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired by CONTRACTOR to provide classroom and/or individualized instruction or related services hold a license, certificate, permit, or other document equivalent to that which staff in a public school are required to hold in the service rendered consistent with Education Code section 56366.1(n)(1) and are qualified pursuant to Title 34 of the Code of Federal Regulations sections 200.56 and 200.58, and Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations sections 3001(y), 3064 and 3065. Such qualified staff may only provide related services within the scope of their professional license, certification or credential and ethical standards set by each profession, and not assume responsibility or authority for another related services provider or special education teacher's scope of practice.

CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all staff are appropriately credentialed to provide instruction and services to students with the disabling conditions placed in their program/school through documentation provided to the CDE (5 CCR 3064 (a)).

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school, an appropriately qualified person shall serve as curricular and instructional leader, and be able to provide leadership, oversight and professional development. CONTRACTOR shall comply with personnel standards and qualifications regarding instructional aides and teacher assistants respectively pursuant to federal requirements and California Education Code sections 45340 et seq. and 45350 et seq. Specifically, all paraprofessionals, including but not limited to, instructional aides and teacher assistants, employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired or subcontracted by CONTRACTOR to provide classroom and/or individualized instruction or related services, shall possess a high school diploma (or its recognized equivalent) and at least one of the following qualifications: (a) completed at least two (2) years of study at an institution of higher education; or (b) obtained an associate's (or higher) degree; or (c) met a rigorous standard of quality and can demonstrate, through a formal state or local assessment (i) knowledge of, and the ability to assist in instructing, reading, writing, and mathematics; or (ii) knowledge of, and the ability to assist in instructing, reading readiness, writing readiness, and mathematics readiness, as appropriate. CONTRACTOR shall comply with all laws and regulations governing the licensed professions, including but not limited to, the provisions with respect to supervision.

In addition to meeting the certification requirements of the State of California, a CONTRACTOR that operates a program outside of this state and serving a student by this LEA shall be certified or licensed by that state to provide special education and related services to pupils under the federal Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (20 U.S.C. Sec. 1400 et seq.).

#### 46. VERIFICATION OF LICENSES, CREDENTIALS AND OTHER DOCUMENTS

CONTRACTOR shall submit to LEA a staff list, and copies of all current licenses, credentials, certifications, permits and/or other documents which entitle the holder to provide special education and/or related services by individuals employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired or sub-contracted by CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all licenses, credentials, permits or other documents are on file at the office of the County Superintendent of Schools. CONTRACTOR shall provide the LEA with the verified dates of fingerprint clearance, Department of Justice clearance and Tuberculosis Test clearance for all employees, approved subcontractors and/or volunteers prior to such individuals starting to work with any student.

CONTRACTOR shall monitor the status of licenses, credentials, certifications, permits and/or other documents for all individuals employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired by CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA and CDE in writing within forty-five (45) days when personnel changes occur which may affect the provision of special education and/or related services to LEA students. CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA within forty-five (45) days if any such licenses, certifications or waivers are expired, suspended, revoked, rescinded, challenged pursuant to an administrative or legal complaint or lawsuit, or otherwise nullified during the effective period of this Master Contract. The LEA shall not be obligated to pay for any services provided by a person whose such licenses, certifications or waivers are expired, suspended, revoked, rescinded, or otherwise nullified during the period which such person is providing services under this Master Contract. Failure to notify the LEA and CDE of any changes in credentialing/licensed staff may result in suspension or revocation of CDE certification and/or suspension or termination of this Master Contract by the LEA.

#### 47. STAFF ABSENCE

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic agency and/or related services provider, and CONTRACTOR's service provider is absent, CONTRACTOR shall provide a qualified (as defined in Section 7 of this agreement and as determined by LEA) substitute, unless LEA provides appropriate coverage in lieu of CONTRACTOR's service providers. It is understood that the parent of a student shall not be deemed to

be a qualified substitute for their student. LEA will not pay for services unless a qualified substitute is provided and/or CONTRACTOR provides documentation evidencing the provision of "make-up" services by a qualified service provider within thirty (30) calendar days from the date on which the services should have been provided. CONTRACTOR shall not "bank" or "carry over" make up service hours under any circumstances, unless otherwise agreed to in writing by CONTRACTOR and authorized LEA representative.

# 48. STAFF PROFESSIONAL BEHAVIOR WHEN PROVIDING SERVICES AT SCHOOL OR SCHOOL RELATED EVENTS OR AT SCHOOL FACILITY AND/OR IN THE HOME

It is understood that all employees, subcontractors, and volunteers of any certified nonpublic school or agency shall adhere to the customary professional and ethical standards when providing services. All practices shall only be within the scope of professional responsibility as defined in the professional code of conduct for each profession as well as any LEA professional standards as specified in Board policies and/or regulations when made available to the CONTRACTOR.

For services provided on a public school campus, sign in/out procedures shall be followed by nonpublic school or agency providers working in a public school classroom along with all other procedures for being on campus consistent with school and district policy. Such policies and procedures shall be made available to the CONTRACTOR upon request. It is understood that the public school credentialed classroom teacher is responsible for the instructional program.

CONTRACTOR providing services outside of the student's school as specified in the IEP shall ensure that at least one parent of the child or an adult caregiver with written and signed authority to make decisions in an emergency is present during provision of services. The names of any adult caregiver other than the parent shall be provided to the LEA prior to the start of any home-based services, including written and signed authorization in emergency situations. The adult caregiver cannot also be an employee or volunteer associated with the NPS/NPA service provider. All problems and/or concerns reported by CONTRACTOR to parents or guardians, in either verbal or written form, shall be reported to the LEA.

#### HEALTH AND SAFETY MANDATES

#### 49. HEALTH AND SAFETY

CONTRACTOR shall comply with all applicable federal, state, local, and LEA laws, regulations, ordinances, policies, and procedures regarding student and employee health and safety. CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements of California Education Code sections 35021 et. seq., 49406, and Health and Safety Code Section 3454(a) regarding the examination of CONTRACTOR's employees and volunteers for tuberculosis. CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA documentation for each individual volunteering, employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired by CONTRACTOR of such compliance before an individual comes in contact with a student.

CONTRACTOR shall comply with OSHA Blood-Borne Pathogens Standards, 29 code of Federal Regulations (CFR) section 1910.1030, when providing medical treatment or assistance to a student. CONTRACTOR further agrees to provide annual training regarding universal health care precautions and to post required notices in areas designated in the California Health and Safety Code.

#### 50. FACILITIES AND FACILITIES MODIFICATIONS

CONTRACTOR shall provide special education and/or related services to students in facilities that comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, regulations, and ordinances related, but not limited to: disability access; fire, health, sanitation, and building standards and safety; fire warning systems; zoning permits; and occupancy capacity. When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school, CONTRACTOR shall conduct fire drills as required by Title 5 California Code of Regulations section 550. CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for any structural changes and/or modifications to CONTRACTOR's facilities as required complying with applicable federal, state, and local laws,

regulations, and ordinances. Failure to notify the LEA and CDE of any changes in, major modification or relocation of facilities may result in the suspension or revocation of CDE certification and/or suspension or termination of this Master Contract by the LEA.

#### 51. ADMINISTRATION OF MEDICATION

CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements of California Education Code section 49423 when CONTRACTOR serves a student that is required to take prescription and/or over-the-counter medication during the school day. CONTRACTOR may designate personnel to assist the student with the administration of such medication after the student's parent(s) provides to CONTRACTOR: (a) a written statement from a physician detailing the type, administration method, amount, and time schedules by which such medication shall be taken; and (b) a written statement from the student's parent(s) granting CONTRACTOR permission to administer medication(s) as specified in the physician's statement. CONTRACTOR shall maintain, and provide to LEA upon request, copies of such written statements. CONTRACTOR shall maintain a written log for each student to whom medication is administered. Such written log shall specify the student's name; the type of medication; the date, time, and amount of each administration; and the name of CONTRACTOR's employee who administered the medication. CONTRACTOR maintains full responsibility for assuring appropriate staff training in the administration of such medication consistent with physician's written orders. Any change in medication type, administration method, amount or schedule must be authorized by both a licensed physician and parent.

#### 52. INCIDENT/ACCIDENT REPORTING

CONTRACTOR shall submit within 24 hours, electronically, any accident or incident report to the LEA. CONTRACTOR shall properly submit required accident or incident reports pursuant to the procedures specified in LEA Procedures.

#### 53. CHILD ABUSE REPORTING

CONTRACTOR hereby agrees to annually train all staff members, including volunteers, so that they are familiar with and agree to adhere to its own child and dependent adult abuse reporting obligations and procedures as specified in California Penal Code section 11164 et seq. and Education Code 44691. To protect the privacy rights of all parties involved (i.e. reporter, child and alleged abuser), reports will remain confidential as required by law and professional ethical mandates. A written statement acknowledging the legal requirements of such reporting and verification of staff adherence to such reporting shall be submitted to the LEA.

#### 54. SEXUAL HARASSMENT

CONTRACTOR shall have a Sexual and Gender Identity harassment policy that clearly describes the kinds of conduct that constitutes sexual harassment and that is prohibited by the CONTRACTOR's policy, as well as federal and state law. The policy should include procedures to make complaints without fear of retaliation, and for prompt and objective investigations of all sexual harassment complaints. CONTRACTOR further agrees to provide annual training to all employees regarding the laws concerning sexual harassment and related procedures pursuant to Government Code 12950.1.

#### 55. REPORTING OF MISSING CHILDREN

CONTRACTOR assures LEA that all staff members, including volunteers, are familiar with and agree to adhere to requirements for reporting missing children as specified in California Education Code section 49370. A written statement acknowledging the legal requirements of such reporting and verification of staff adherence to such reporting shall be properly submitted to the LEA. The written statement shall be submitted as specified by the LEA.

#### **FINANCIAL**

## 56. ENROLLMENT, CONTRACTING, SERVICE TRACKING, ATTENDANCE REPORTING, AND BILLING PROCEDURES

CONTRACTOR shall assure that the school or agency has the necessary financial resources to provide an appropriate education for the students enrolled and will distribute those resources in such a manner to implement the IEP and ISA for each and every student.

CONTRACTOR shall comply with all LEA procedures concerning enrollment, contracting, attendance reporting, service tracking and billing including requirements of electronic billing as specified by the LEA Procedures. CONTRACTOR shall be paid for the provision of special education and/or related services specified in the student's IEP and ISA. All payments by LEA shall be made in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Master Contract and governed by all applicable federal and state laws.

CONTRACTOR shall maintain separate registers for the basic education program, each related service, and services provided by instructional assistants, behavior intervention aides and bus aides. Original attendance forms (i.e., roll books for the basic education program, service tracking documents and notes for instructional assistants, behavioral intervention aides, bus aides, and each related service) shall be completed by the actual service provider whose signature shall appear on such forms and shall be available for review, inspection, or audit by LEA during the effective period of this contract and for a period of five (5) years thereafter. CONTRACTOR shall verify the accuracy of minutes of reported attendance that is the basis of services being billed for payment.

CONTRACTOR shall submit invoices and related documents to LEA for payment, for each calendar month when education or related services were provided. Invoices and related documents shall be properly submitted electronically and in addition, on an LEA form with signatures in the manner prescribed by LEA in the LEA Procedures. At a minimum, each invoice must contain the following information: month of service; specific days and times of services coordinated by the LEA approved calendar unless otherwise specified in the IEP or agreed to by the LEA; name of staff who provided the service; approved cost of each invoice; total for each service and total for the monthly invoice; date invoice was mailed; signature of NPS/NPA administrator authorizing that the information is accurate and consistent with the ISA, CDE certificates and staff notification; verification that attendance report is attached as appropriate; indication of any made-up session consistent with this contract; verification that progress reports have been provided consistent with the ISA (monthly or quarterly unless specified otherwise on the ISA); and name or initials of each student for when the service was provided.

In the event services were not provided, rationale for why the services were not provided shall be included.

Such an invoice is subject to all conditions of this contract. At the discretion of the LEA, an electronic invoice may be required provided such notice has been made in writing and training provided to the CONTRACTOR at no additional charge for such training.

Invoices shall be submitted no later than thirty (30) days after the end of the attendance accounting period in which the services were rendered. LEA shall make payment to CONTRACTOR based on the number of billable days of attendance and hours of service at rates specified in this contract within forty-five (45) days of LEA's receipt of properly submitted hard copy of invoices prepared and submitted as specified in California Education Code Section 56366.5 and the LEA. CONTRACTOR shall correct deficiencies and



submit rebilling invoices no later than thirty (30) calendar days after the invoice is returned by LEA. LEA shall pay properly submitted re-billing invoices no later than forty-five (45) days after the date a completely corrected re-billing invoice is received by LEA.

In no case shall initial payment claim submission for any Master Contract fiscal year (July through June) extend beyond December 31<sup>st</sup> after the close of the fiscal year. In no case shall any rebilling for the Master Contract fiscal year (July through June) extend beyond six (6) months after the close of the fiscal year unless approved by the LEA to resolve billing issues including re-billing issues directly related to a delay in obtaining information from the Commission on Teacher Credentialing regarding teacher qualification, but no later than twelve (12) months from the close of the fiscal year. If the billing or rebilling error is the responsibility of the LEA, then no limit is set provided that the LEA and CONTRACTOR have communicated such concerns in writing during the 12-month period following the close of the fiscal year. LEA will not pay mileage for NPA employee.

#### 57. RIGHT TO WITHHOLD PAYMENT

LEA may withhold payment to CONTRACTOR when: (a) CONTRACTOR has failed to perform, in whole or in part, under the terms of this contract; (b) CONTRACTOR has billed for services rendered on days other than billable days of attendance or for days when student was not in attendance and/or did not receive services; (c) CONTRACTOR was overpaid by LEA as determined by inspection, review, and/or audit of its program, work, and/or records; (d) CONTRACTOR has failed to provide supporting documentation with an invoice, as required by EC 56366(c)(2); (e) education and/or related services are provided to students by personnel who are not appropriately credentialed, licensed, or otherwise qualified; (f) LEA has not received prior to school closure or contract termination, all documents concerning one or more students enrolled in CONTRACTOR's educational program; (g) CONTRACTOR fails to confirm a student's change of residence to another district or confirms the change or residence to another district, but fails to notify LEA within five (5) days of such confirmation; or (h) CONTRACTOR receives payment from Medi-Cal or from any other agency or funding source for a service provided to a student. It is understood that no payments shall be made for any invoices that are not received by six (6) months following the close of the prior fiscal year, for services provided in that year.

Final payment to CONTRACTOR in connection with the cessation of operations and/or termination of a Master Contract will be subject to the same documentation standards described for all payment claims for regular ongoing operations. In addition, final payment may be withheld by the LEA until completion of a review or audit, if deemed necessary by the LEA. Such review or audit will be completed within ninety (90) days. The final payment may be adjusted to offset any previous payments to the CONTRACTOR determined to have been paid in error or in anticipation of correction of documentation deficiencies by the CONTRACTOR that remain uncorrected.

The amount which may be withheld by LEA with respect to each of the subparagraphs of the preceding paragraph are as follows: (a) the value of the service CONTRACTOR failed to perform; (b) the amount of overpayment; (c) the entire amount of the invoice for which satisfactory documentation has not been provided by CONTRACTOR; (d) the amount invoiced for services provided by the individual not appropriately credentialed, licensed, or otherwise qualified; (e) the proportionate amount of the invoice related to the applicable pupil for the time period from the date the violation occurred and until the violation is cured; or (f) the amount paid to CONTRACTOR by Medi-Cal or another agency or funding source for the service provided to the student.

If LEA determines that cause exists to withhold payment to CONTRACTOR, LEA shall, within ten (10) business days of this determination, provide to CONTRACTOR written notice that LEA is withholding payment. Such notice shall specify the basis or bases for LEA's withholding payment and the amount to be withheld. Within thirty (30) days from the date of receipt of such notice, CONTRACTOR shall take all necessary and appropriate action to correct the deficiencies that form the basis for LEA's withholding payment or submit a written request for extension of time to correct the deficiencies. Upon receipt of CONTRACTOR's written request showing good cause, LEA shall extend CONTRACTOR's time to correct deficiencies (usually an additional thirty (30) days), otherwise payment will be denied.

If after subsequent request for payment has been denied and CONTRACTOR believes that payment should not be withheld, CONTRACTOR shall send written notice to LEA specifying the reason it believes payment should not be withheld. LEA shall respond to CONTRACTOR's notice within thirty (30) business days by indicating that a warrant for the amount of payment will be made or stating the reason LEA believes payment should not be made. If LEA fails to respond within thirty (30) business days or a dispute regarding the withholding of payment continues after the LEA's response to CONTRACTOR's notice, CONTRACTOR may invoke the following escalation policy.

After forty-five (45) business days: The CONTRACTOR may notify the Authorized LEA's Representative of the dispute in writing. The LEA Authorized Representative shall respond to the CONTRACTOR in writing within fifteen (15) business days.

After sixty (60) business days: Disagreements between the LEA and CONTRACTOR concerning the Master Contract may be appealed to the County Superintendent of Schools or the State Superintendent of Public Instruction pursuant to the provisions of California Education Code Section 56366(c) (2).

#### 58. PAYMENT FROM OUTSIDE AGENCIES

CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA when Medi-Cal or any other agency is billed for the costs associated with the provision of special education and/or related services to students. Upon request, CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA any and all documentation regarding reports, billing, and/or payment by Medi-Cal or any other agency for the costs associated with the provision of special education and/or related services to students.

#### 59. PAYMENT FOR ABSENCES

#### NONPUBLIC SCHOOL STAFF ABSENCE

Whenever a classroom teacher employed by CONTRACTOR is absent, CONTRACTOR shall provide an appropriately credentialed substitute teacher in the absent teacher's classroom in accordance with California Education Code section 56061. CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA documentation of substitute coverage pursuant to the LEA Procedures. Substitute teachers shall remain with their assigned class during all instructional time. LEA will not pay for instruction and/or services unless said instruction or service is provided by an appropriately credentialed substitute teacher.

Whenever a related service provider is absent, CONTRACTOR shall provide a qualified (as defined in Section 7 of this agreement and as determined by LEA) substitute. LEA will not pay for services unless a qualified substitute is provided and/or CONTRACTOR provides documentation evidencing the provision of "make-up" services by a qualified service provider within thirty (30) calendar days from the date on which the services should have been provided unless otherwise agreed in student's IEP.

#### NONPUBLIC SCHOOL STUDENT ABSENCE

If CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school, no later than the tenth (10<sup>th</sup>) cumulative day of a student's unexcused absence, CONTRACTOR shall notify the LEA of such absence as specified in the LEA Procedures.

Criteria for a billable day for payment purposes is one (1) day of attendance as defined in California Education Code, sections 46010, 46010.3 and 46307. LEA shall not pay for services provided on days that a student's attendance does not qualify for Average Daily Attendance (ADA) reimbursement under state law. *Per Diem* rates for students whose IEPs authorize less than a full instructional day may be adjusted on a pro rata basis in accordance with the actual proportion of the school day the student was served. LEA shall not be responsible for payment of related services for days on which a student's attendance does not qualify for Average Daily Attendance ("ADA") reimbursement under state law, nor shall student be eligible for make-up services.

NONPUBLIC AGENCY STAFF ABSENCE

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic agency and CONTRACTOR's service provider is absent, CONTRACTOR shall provide a qualified (as defined in Section 7 of this agreement and as determined by LEA) substitute, unless LEA provides appropriate coverage in lieu of CONTRACTOR's service providers. LEA shall not pay for services unless a qualified substitute is provided and/or CONTRACTOR provides documentation evidencing the provision of "make-up" services by a qualified service provider within thirty (30) calendar days from the date on which the services should have been provided. CONTRACTOR shall not "bank" or "carry over" make up service hours under any circumstances, unless otherwise agreed to in writing by CONTRACTOR and LEA. In the event services were not provided, reasons for why the services were not provided shall be included.

#### NONPUBLIC AGENCY STUDENT ABSENCE

If CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic agency, it shall notify LEA of the absence of a student no later than the fifth (5<sup>th</sup>) consecutive service day of the student's absence, as specified in the LEA Procedures. LEA shall not be responsible for the payment of services when a student is absent.

#### 60. LEA and/or NONPUBLIC SCHOOL CLOSURE DUE TO EMERGENCY

The following shall apply in the event of a LEA or NPS school closure due to an emergency consistent with guidelines followed by LEAs under Education Code Section 41422:

- a. If CONTRACTOR remains open during an emergency and serves students appropriately as delineated in the ISA, CONTRACTOR shall receive payment, regardless of whether a sending LEA is open or closed.
- b. NPS School Closure- If the LEA is able to obtain alternative placement for the student, CONTRACTOR shall not receive payment for days the student is not in attendance due to school closure. If the LEA is unable to obtain an alternative placement, CONTRACTOR shall receive payment consistent with the signed ISA, as though the student were continuing in their regular attendance, until alternative placement can be found.
- c. LEA and NPS School Closure- On days the LEA is funded, CONTRACTOR shall receive payment consistent with the signed ISA, until alternative placement can be found. If the LEA is able to obtain alternative placement for the student, CONTRACTOR shall not receive payment for days the student is not in attendance due to school closure.

When the emergency school closure is lifted, CONTRACTOR shall notify the LEAs it serves of any lost instructional minutes. CONTRACTOR and LEAs shall work collaboratively to determine the need for make-up days or service changes, and shall work together to amend IEP and ISA paperwork as appropriate.

#### 61. INSPECTION AND AUDIT

The CONTRACTOR shall maintain and the LEA shall have the right to examine and audit all of the books, records, documents, accounting procedures and practices and other evidence that reflect all costs claimed to have been incurred or fees claimed to have been earned under this Agreement.

CONTRACTOR shall provide access to LEA to all records including, but not limited to: student records as defined by California Education Code section 49061(b); registers and roll books of teachers; daily service logs and notes or other documents used to record the provision of related services; Medi-Cal/daily service logs and notes used to record provision of services provided by instructional assistants, behavior intervention aides, bus aides, and supervisors; absence verification records (parent/doctor notes, telephone logs, and related documents); bus rosters; staff lists specifying credentials held, business licenses held, documents evidencing other qualifications, , dates of hire, and dates of termination; staff time sheets; non-paid staff and volunteer sign-in sheets; transportation and other related service subcontracts; school calendars; bell/class schedules when applicable; liability and worker's compensation



insurance policies; state nonpublic school and/or agency certifications; by-laws; lists of current board of directors/trustees, if incorporated; other documents evidencing financial expenditures; federal/state payroll quarterly reports Form 941/DE3DP; and bank statements and canceled checks or facsimile thereof. Such access shall include unannounced inspections by LEA. CONTRACTOR shall make available to LEA all budgetary information including operating budgets submitted by CONTRACTOR to LEA for the relevant contract period being audited.

CONTRACTOR shall make all records available at the office of LEA or CONTRACTOR's offices (to be specified by LEA) at all reasonable times and without charge. All records shall be provided to LEA within five (5) working days of a written request from LEA. CONTRACTOR shall, at no cost to LEA, provide assistance for such examination or audit. LEA's rights under this section shall also include access to CONTRACTOR's offices for purposes of interviewing CONTRACTOR's employees. If any document or evidence is stored in an electronic form, a hard copy shall be made available to the LEA, unless the LEA agrees to the use of the electronic format.

CONTRACTOR shall obtain from its subcontractors and suppliers written agreements to the requirements of this section and shall provide a copy of such agreements to LEA upon request by LEA.

If an inspection, review, or audit by LEA, a state agency, a federal agency, and/or an independent agency/firm determines that CONTRACTOR owes LEA monies as a result of CONTRACTOR's over billing or failure to perform, in whole or in part, any of its obligations under this Master Contract, LEA shall provide to CONTRACTOR written notice demanding payment from CONTRACTOR and specifying the basis or bases for such demand. Unless CONTRACTOR and LEA otherwise agree in writing, CONTRACTOR shall pay to LEA the full amount owed as a result of CONTRACTOR's over billing and/or failure to perform, in whole or in part, any of its obligations under this Master Contract, as determined by an inspection, review, or audit by LEA, a state agency, a federal agency, and/or an independent agency/firm. CONTRACTOR shall make such payment to LEA within thirty (30) days of receipt of LEA's written notice demanding payment.

#### 62. RATE SCHEDULE

The attached rate schedule (Exhibit A) limits the number of students that may be enrolled and maximum dollar amount of the contract. It may also limit the maximum number of students that can be provided specific services. Per Diem rates for students whose IEPs authorize less than a full instructional day may be adjusted proportionally. In such cases only, the adjustments in basic education rate shall be based on the required minimum number of minutes per grade level as noted in California Education Code Section 46200-46208.

Special education and/or related services offered by CONTRACTOR shall be provided by qualified personnel as per State and Federal law, and the codes and charges for such educational and/or related services during the term of this contract, shall be as stated in Exhibit A.

#### 63. DEBARMENT CERTIFICATION

By signing this agreement, the CONTRACTOR certifies that:

- (a) The CONTRACTOR and any of its shareholders, partners, or executive officers are <u>not</u> presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, or declared ineligible for the award of contracts by any Federal agency, and
- (b) Have not, within a three-year period preceding this contract, been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against them for: commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a Federal, state or local government contract or subcontract; violation of Federal or state antitrust statutes relating to the submission of offers; or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, tax evasion, or receiving stolen property; and are not presently indicted for, or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a Government entity with, commission of any of

these offenses.

The parties hereto have executed this Contract by and through their duly authorized agents or representatives. This contract is effective on the 22nd day of August 2019 and terminates at 5:00 P.M. on June 30, 2020, unless sooner terminated as provided herein.

CO	N	TI	₹A	$\mathbf{C}'$	$\mathbf{\Gamma}\mathbf{C}$	R

Odyssey Learning Center

LEA

Marysville Joint Unified School District

Nonpoblic School/Agency	LEA Name		
X() XV @ 27 000			
By: 9-27-2019	Ву:		Data
Signature Date	Signature		Date
-Lovina Robinson, Director	Gary Cena, Supe	<u>erintendent</u>	
Name and Title of Authorized	Name and Title	of Authorized	
Representative	Representative		
Notices to CONTRACTOR shall be addressed to:	Notices to	LEA shall be add	dressed to:
Name and Title Lovina Robinson, Director  Shaw Sloga + Director	Name and Title Toni Vernier, Execut	ive Director	
Nonpublic School/Agency/Related Service Provider	LEA	,	
Odyssey Learning Center	Marysville Joint U	nified School L	District
Address 7150 Santa Juanita	Address 1919 B Street		
CityStateZipOrangvaleCA95662	City Marysville	State CA	<b>Zip</b> 95901
Phone Fax 916-988-0258	Phone 530-749-6180	Fax 530-74	11-7850
Email lovinarobinson@odysseylearningcenter.org	Email tvernier@mjusd.com	m	
Show slave @ odystey learny Certa, osg		ional LEA Notific	
J	Name and Title		
	Address		1
	City	State	Zip
	Phone	Fax	
	Email		



#### EXHIBIT A: 2019-2020 RATES

Audiological Services (720)

4.1	RATE SCHEDULE FOR CONTRACT YEAR								
The COI	NTRACTOR: Odyssey Learning Center NTRACTOR CDS NUMBER: 34-67447-6914246								
PER ED	CODE 56366 – TEACHER-TO-PUPIL RATIO:1:12		1100						
Maximur	m Contract Amount: \$33,948.00								
Educatio	on service(s) offered by the CONTRACTOR and the charg	ges for such service(s) during t	the term of this contract shall be as follows:						
1)	Daily Basic Education Rate: \$159.84 per day								
2)	Inclusive Education Program (Includes Educational Counseling (not ed related men Planning, and Occupational Therapy as specified on the	tal health) services, Speech & e student's IEP.) DAILY RATE:	Language services, Behavior Intervention						
3)	Related Services								
SERVIC	<u>E</u>	RATE	PERIOD						
Intensive	e Individual Services (340)	\$30.00	hr						
Languaç	ge and Speech (415)	\$120.00	hr						
Adapted	Physical Education (425)	<del></del>	<del>2</del>						
Health a	nd Nursing: Specialized Physical Health Care (435)		- 11						
Health a	and Nursing: Other Services (436)								
Assistive	e Technology Services (445)		<del>2</del>						
Occupat	tional Therapy (450)	\$120.00	hr						
<u>Physical</u>	Therapy (460)		11/1						
Individua	al Counseling (510)	\$90.00	<u>hr //</u>						
Counsel	ling and Guidance (515)	\$90.00	N_//\frac{1}{2}						
Parent C	Counseling (520)	\$90.00	-NIA						
Social V	Vork Services (525)		<del></del>						
Psychol	ogical Services (530)	1111	7 <u> </u>						
Behavio	r Intervention Services (535)	\$120.00	hr						
Speciali	zed Services for Low Incidence Disabilities (610)	-	<del></del>						
Speciali	zed Deaf and Hard of Hearing (710)		<del></del>						
Interpre	ter Services (715)								

Specialized Vision Services (725)		
Orientation and Mobility (730)	<del></del>	
Specialized Orthopedic Services (740)	-	
Reader Services (745)		
Transcription Services (755)	-	
Recreation Services, Including Therapeutic (760)		. <del>,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,</del>
College Awareness (820)		
Work Experience Education (850)		-
Job Coaching (855)	Name	
Mentoring (860)		
Travel Training (870)	<del></del>	
Other Transition Services (890)		
BEST model (900)		
Transportation (900)	\$45.00	_day/rt

#### **EXHIBIT B: 2019-2020 ISA**

# INDIVIDUAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (ISA) FOR NONPUBLIC, NONSECTARIAN SCHOOL SERVICES (Education Code Sections 56365 et seq.)

This agreement is effective on <u>September 16, 2019</u> or the date student begins attending a nonpublic school or receiving services from a nonpublic agency, if after the date identified, and terminates at 5:00 P.M. on June 30, 2020, unless sooner terminated as provided in the Master Contract and by applicable law.

Local Education Agency Marysville Joint U	nified School	District		Nonpublic School Odyssey Learning Center			
LEA Case Manager: Name Adam Pitts		Phone	Number <u>530-74</u>	1-6150			
Pupil Name(Last)					Sex	c □ M x□ F	Grade: 10
Address :et (Fig.				City Plumas Lake	(141.1.7	State/Zip	CA/95961
DOB Residential Setting							
Parent/GuardianAddress(If different from study	( ) State/Zip						
AGREEMENT TERMS:  1. Nonpublic School: The average number of minutes in the instructional day will be:  2. Nonpublic School: The number of school days in the calendar of the school year are:  2. Nonpublic School: The number of school days in the calendar of the school year are:  2. Nonpublic School: The number of school days in the calendar of the school year are:  2. Nonpublic School: The number of school days in the calendar of the school year are:  2. Nonpublic School: The number of school days in the calendar of the school year are:  2. Nonpublic School: The number of school days in the calendar of the school year are:  2. Nonpublic School: The number of school days in the calendar of the school year are:  2. Nonpublic School: The number of school days in the calendar of the school year are:  2. Nonpublic School: The number of school days in the calendar of the school year are:  2. Nonpublic School: The number of school days in the calendar of the school year are:  2. Nonpublic School: The number of school days in the calendar of the school year are:  2. Nonpublic School: The number of school days in the calendar of the school year are:  2. Nonpublic School: The number of school days in the calendar of the school year are:  2. Nonpublic School: The number of school days in the calendar of the school year are:  2. Nonpublic School: The number of school days in the calendar of the school year are:  2. Nonpublic School: The number of school days in the calendar of the school year are:  2. Nonpublic School: The number of school days in the calendar of the school year are:  2. Nonpublic School: The number of school days in the calendar of the school year are:  2. Nonpublic School: The number of school days in the calendar of the school year are:  2. Nonpublic School: The number of school days in the calendar of the school year are:  2. Nonpublic School: The number of school days in the calendar of the school year are:  2. Nonpublic School: The number of school days in the calendar of the school year are:  2. Non							
Educational services as specified in the     A. INCLUSIVE AND/OR BASIC EL     Estimated Number of Days 200     B. RELATED SERVICES:	DUCATION F	PROGRAM	л RATE: (Applie	es to nonpublic schools o	only): Daily	Rate:	0
	154	Provide NPS	other	# of Times per	Cost per	Maximum	Estimated MaxImum
SERVICE	LEA	NPS	Specify	wk/mo/yr., Duration; or per IEP; or as needed	session	Number of Sessions	Total Cost for Contracted Period
Intensive Individual Services (340)							
Language/Speech Therapy (415) a. Individual b. Group		x		30 mins per month	120/hr	11	\$660.00
Adapted Physical Ed. (425)							
Health and Nursing: Specialized Physical Health Care (435)							
Health and Nursing Services: Other (436)							
Assistive Technology Services (445)							
Occupational Therapy (450)							
Physical Therapy (460)							
Individual Counseling (510)							
Counseling and guidance (515).							
Parent Counseling (520)							

0557/105	154	Provide	OTHER	# of Times per	Cost per	Maximum	Estimated Maximum
SERVICE	LEA	NPS	Specify	wkimolyr., Duration; or per IEP; or as needed	session	Number of Sessions	Total Cost for Contracted Period
Social Work Services (525)							
Psychological Services (530)							
Behavior Intervention Services (535)		x		60 mins/month	120/hr	11	\$1,320
Specialized Services for Low Incidence Disabilities (610)							
Specialized Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services (710)							
Interpreter Services (715)							
Audiological Services (720)							
Specialized Vision Services (725)							
Orientation and Mobility (730)							
Braille Transcription (735)							
Specialized Orthopedic Service (740)							
Reader Services (745)	L						
Note Taking Services (750)							
Transcription Services (755)							
Recreation Services (760)							
College Awareness Preparation (820)							
Vocational Assessment, Counseling, Guidance and Career Assessment (830)							
Career Awareness (840)							
Work Experience Education (850)							
Mentoring (860)							
Agency Linkages (865)							
Travel Training (870)							
Other Transition Services (890)							
Other (900)J							
Other (900)							
Transportation-Emergency b. Transportation-Parent							
Bus Passes							
Other							



#### TOTAL ESTIMATED MAXIMUM BASIC EDUCATION AND RELATED SERVICES COSTS \$33,948.00

5. MASTER CONTRACT APPROVED BY THE GOVER	NING BOARD ON		
6.Progress Reporting <u>x</u> Quarterly Requirements:		Other (Specify)	
e parties hereto have executed this Individual Servic ow.  -CONTRACTOR-	es Agreement by an	d through their duly authorized agent -LEA/SI	
yssly Learning Center amolof Nonpublic School/Agency)	<ul> <li>Complete the complete the compl</li></ul>	Marysville Joint Unified Scho (Name of LEA/SELPA)	ool <u>District</u>
mature)	(Date)	(Signature)	(Date)
hawn Sloane, Wilector		Gary Cena, Superintendent	

#### **Placer County SELPA** Master Contract - Rate Sheet Nonpublic School/Agency Services 2019-2020

**EXHIBIT A: RATES** 

CONTRACTOR: Odyssey Learning Center
6. Please initial and return with signature page of contract
CONTRACTOR NUMBER: 34-67447-6914246
NONPUBLIC SCHOOL NONPUBLIC AGENCY
Per CDE Certification, total enrollment may not exceed
Rate Schedule. This rate schedule limits the number of students that may be enrolled and the maximum dollar amount of the Master Contract. It may also limit the maximum number of students that can be provided specific services. Special education and/or related services offered by CONTRACTOR, and the charges for such educational and/or related services during the term of the Master Contract shall be as
follows: ૧૯૦૦ હતા કહ્યું કે પુત્ર ફિલ્મ ફિલ્મ કે માટે માટે માટે કે માટે કે જોઈ કે જોઈ છે. જો કે જો જોઈ છે.
Payment under this contract may not exceed common of the longer process of the second
The Old Till The Light A complete and partially are the complete and a specific and the complete and the com
A. Basic Education Program/Special Education Instruction  Basic Education Program/ESY  A. Basic Education Program/ESY  Basic Educati
Per diem rates for students whose IEPs authorize less than a full instructional day shall be adjusted proportionally.  B. Related Services  1. Transportation (755)  a. Round Trip - NPS Only b. One Way - NPS Only c. Dual Enrollment - NPS Only d. Parent*  2. Educational Counseling**  a. Individual (510) b. Counseling & guidance (515) c. Parent (520) d. Social Worker Services (525) e. Psychological Services (530) f. Group of  3. Adapted Physical Education (425) a. Individual
b. Group of
CONTRACTOR OF THE CONTRACTOR O

AUBICITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

#### Placer County SELPA Master Contract – Rate Sheet Nonpublic School/Agency Services 2019-2020

		4.	Language and Speech Therapy (415)		
,			a. Individual	\$120.00	Hour
			b. Group of		-
			c. Consultation	200	DOCCUES 1
			d. Assessment Afternative Argunitative /	2001	per assessand
11		5.	Intensive Individual Services (340) (must be authorized on IEP)		•
			a. Individual	<u>\$30.00</u>	<u>Hour</u>
			b. Group of		
12. 1		6.	Specialized Academic Instruction**** (330)		
20			a. Individual		
			b. Group of	-	
		7.	Occupational Therapy (450)		
			a. Individual	<u>\$120.00</u>	<u>Hour</u>
		ŧ	b. Group of		
×			c. Consultation		C
4		4	d. Assessment		The Distriction of the Districti
		8.	Physical Therapy (460)		
			a. Individual		
			b. Group of		
0.00		· ·	c. Consultation		
			d. Assessment		
0.7		9.	Behavior Intervention Services (535)	4.7 x	4 7 7 7
		F 1	a. Design	11/2 IV 2.15	
			1. Bachelors Level	\$120.00	Hour
			2. Masters Level	-	
			b. Implementation		
		. ) s	1. Bachelors Level		
			2. Masters Level		
			c. Consultation/Collaboration		
			d. Assessment Nursing Services (435/436)		0 117
		10.	Nursing Services (435/436)		
			a. LVN		·
gardi			b. RN		<del></del>
1.87	* 3.		Residential Board and Care		
			Residential Mental Health Services		<del></del>
		13.	Other-	- X	
	C.	Otl	her Services (in lieu of)		e 31 474
		Th	e NPA CONTRACTOR shall provide services at a DAILY/H.	ALF DAY rate (	circle one)
		ino	luding attendance at IEP meetings, records review, etc. at LE	A discretion, W	hen performing
		1110	ch services, the CONTRACTOR must continue to comply with	h all Master Con	tract provisions.
a ::		inc	cluding, but not limited to, Article 25. CONTRACTOR shall pragraph at the following DAILY/HALF DAY rate (circle one)	provide the servi	ces listed in this
		har	agraph at the following Diffe (thing)	. —	

Parent transportation relimbursement rates are to be determined by the LEA.
 Provided by qualified personnel per 5 CCR 3065(f)(f): MFT, supervised MFT intern, LCSW, supervised LCSW intern, LEP, Licensed Psychologist, School Counselor or School Psychologist.
 By credentialed Special Education Teacher.



### 2019-20 SCHOOL CALENDAR

JULY									
Su	M	Tu	W	Th	F	Sa			
	1	2	3	4	5	6			
7	8	9	10	11	12	13			
14	15	16	17	18	19	20			
21	22	23	24	25	26	27			
28	29	30	31						

AUGUST									
Su	М	Tu	W	Th	F	Sa			
				1	2	3			
4	5	6	7	8	9	10			
11	12	13	14	15	16	17			
18	19	20	21	22	23	24			
25	26	27	28	29	30	31			

	SEPTEMBER									
Su	M	Tu	W	Th	F	Sa				
1	2	3	4	5	6	7				
8	9	10	11	12	13	14				
15	16	17	18	19	20	21				
22	23	24	25	26	27	28				
29	30									

OCTOBER									
Su M Tu W Th F Sa									
		1	2	3	A	5			
6	7	8	9	10	111	12			
13	14	15	16	17	18	19			
20	21	22	23	24	25	26			
27	28	29	30	31					

	NOVEMBER									
Su	M	Tu	W	Th	F	Sa				
					1	2				
3	4	.5	6	7	8	9				
10	11	12	13	14	15	16				
17	18	19	20	21	22	23				
24	25	26	27	28	29	30				

DECEMBER								
Su M Tu W Th F Sa								
1	2	3	4	5	6	7		
8	9	10	11	12	13	14		
15	16	17	18	19	20	21		
22	23	24	25	26	27	28		
29	30	31						

JANUARY									
Su M Tu W Th F Sa									
			1	2	3	4			
5	6	7	8	9	10	11			
12	13	14	15	16	17	18			
19	20	21	22	23	24	25			
26	27	28	29	30	31				

FEBRUARY									
Su M Tu W Th F Sa									
						1			
2	3	4	5	6	7	8			
9	10	11	12	13	14	15			
16	17	18	19	20	21	22			
23	24	25	26	27	28	29			

MARCH									
Su	M	Tu	W	Th	F	Sa			
1	2	3	4	5	6	7			
8	9	10	11	12	13	14			
15	16	17	18	19	20	21			
22	23	24	25	26	27	28			
29	30	31							

		APRIL	•		
М	Tu	W	Th	F	Sa
		1	2	3	4
6	7	8	9	10	11
13	14	15	16	17	18
20	21	22	23	24	25
27	28	29	30		
	6 13 20	6 7 13 14 20 21	1 6 7 8 13 14 15 20 21 22	6 7 8 9 13 14 15 16 20 21 22 23	6         7         8         9         10           13         14         15         16         17           20         21         22         23         24

MAY								
Su M Tu W Th F Sa								
					1	2		
3	4	5	6	7	8	9		
10	11	12	13	14	15	16		
17	18	19	20	21	22	23		
24	25	26	27	28	29	30		
31								

JUNE									
Su	M	Tu	W	Th	F	Sa			
	1	2	3	4	5	6			
7	8	9	10	11	12	13			
14	15	16	17	18	19	20			
21	22	23	24	25	26	27			
28	29	30							
		4							

School is closed

Extended School Year (20 Days) (Minimum Days)

All staff inservice days

First and last days of school

Teacher Prep Days (no school)

Revised: 5/9/2019

Holidays

Sept. 2nd Labor Day

Oct. 14th Columbus Day

Nov. 11th Veteran's Day

Nov. 28th Thanksgiving Day

Dec. 25th Christimas Day

Jan. 1st

New Year's Day

Jan. 20th

Martin Luther King Day

Feb. 17th

President's Day May 25th Memorial Day

#### STATE OF CALIFORNIA

# EMERGENCY FOOD ASSISTANCE PROGRAM (EFAP) DISTRIBUTION AGREEMENT USDA Pantry

This agreement is between <u>Marysville Joint Unified School District</u> (Member Agency) and The Yuba-Sutter Food Bank for the period of October 18, 2019 through June 30, 2020.

- 1. The member agency agrees to distribute United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) commodities, hereafter referred to as commodities, to eligible recipients who live within the member agency's defined geographical service area.
- 2. If a recipient from out of the member agency's service area requests food, the member agency will serve them on a one time exception basis and will advise the recipient of their proper distribution member agency.
- 3. Recipients must self-certify that they are income eligible by signing the EFA-7 sign-in sheet.
- 4. The member agency agrees to provide provisions for people incapable of signing their own name on the EFA-7 sign-in sheet.
- 5. The member agency agrees to require an Alternate Pick Up form or note from income eligible recipients unable to attend the physical distribution. The individual picking up commodities for these recipients must possess the form or note, and/or any other documents the distribution member agency or food bank may require. The form or note should be maintained with the EFA-7 sign in sheet. Recipients are required to provide a new Alternate Pick Up form or note every 30 days.
- 6. In the event the member agency is providing commodities to homebound recipients, the member agency agrees to ensure that these recipients sign the EFA-7 sign-in sheet.
- 7. The member agency agrees to have prominently displayed in clear sight of recipients the following signage at times whenever commodities are distributed:
  - a. "And Justice for All" poster Form AD-475C (Last updated April 2016)
  - b. CDSS established Income Guidelines (Last updated April 2016)
- 8. The member agency agrees to notify the food bank immediately of any changes in distribution location(s), distribution hours, or days of operation. A representative of the member agency must be present during the scheduled hours of each distribution to direct recipients to an alternate emergency food pantry in the event that all of the available food is distributed before the scheduled end time.
- 9. The member agency agrees to not charge recipients for any commodities they receive, nor shall they be asked or solicited for payment or donations of any kind in conjunction with receiving commodities.
- 10. The member agency agrees never to sell or trade commodities.
- 11. The member agency agrees not to redistribute commodities to other member agencies, or any other entity without prior written approval from the food bank.
- 12. The member agency agrees to obtain prior written approval from the food bank before conducting closed distributions.
- 13. The member agency agrees that no political, religious, or any other non-related activity can be conducted as a condition of, or in conjunction with, receiving commodities or prepared meals containing commodities.
- 14. If storing commodities, the member agency's storage area must meet the following conditions:
  - a. Storage area must be sanitary and free from infestation
  - b. Commodities must be maintained at proper storage temperatures
  - c. Commodities must be stocked separately, in an identifiable manner
  - d. Commodities must be stored off the floor, in a manner to allow for adequate ventilation.
  - e. Storage area must be safeguarded against theft, spoilage, loss, or misuse
- 15. The member agency agrees to allow storage facilities to be inspected by Federal, State, and local authorities for health requirements.
- 16. The member agency agrees to check quality and quantities received, and to sign for receipt of commodities when delivered or picked up from the food bank.
- 17. Either party may terminate this agreement by giving 30 days written notice to the other party. The food bank or the State may cancel this agreement immediately upon receipt of evidence that the member agency is not in compliance with the terms and conditions referenced in aforementioned terms.
- 18. The food bank, USDA and EFAP retain the right to visit and inspect the member agency without prior notice.
- 19. The member agency agrees to abide by any addendums the Food Bank requires.
- 20. The member agency will operate the program in accordance with Title 7, Code of Federal Regulations (CFR), Parts 250 and 251 (see attached excerpt from Section 5 of the TEFAP Policy and Procedure Manual) that pertain to the Emergency Food Assistance Program.

Authorized Member Agency Representative	Date	Superintendent Approval Signature:
Ella Elementary School 4850 Olivehurst Avenue, Olivehurst CA 95961 Distribution Address	65	Date: 8-27-19
Patrick Hamilton Chief Operations YSFB  Yuha-Sutter Food Bank Representative	Date <u>9/26/19</u>	

# Valenzuela/CAHSEE Lawsuit Settlement Quarterly Report on Williams Uniform Complaints [Education Code § 35186(d)] 2019-2020

District	MARYSVILLE JOINT UNIFI	ED SC	HOOL DISTRICT
	oleting this form; Ramiro G. C	Carreón	Title: Asst. Supt/Personnel Services
(check one)	port Submission Date:		October 2019-1 <sup>st</sup> quarter (7/1/19-9/30/19) January 2020-2 <sup>nd</sup> quarter (10/1/19-12/31/19) April 2019-3 <sup>rd</sup> quarter (1/1/20-3/31/20) July 2020-4 <sup>th</sup> quarter (4/1/20-6/30/20)
Date for infor	mation to be reported publicly	at gov	erning board meeting: October 8, 2019
Please check	the box that applies:		
Ø	No complaints were filed with indicated above.	n any so	chool in the district during the quarter
	Complaints were filed with s above. The following chart s complaints.	chools ummari	in the district during the quarter indicated izes the nature and resolution of these

General Subject Area	Total # of Complaints	# Resolved	# Unresolved
Textbooks and Instructional Materials	0		
Teacher Vacancy or Misassignment	0		
Facilities Conditions	0		
CAHSEE Intensive Instruction and Services	0		
TOTALS	0		

Print Name of District Superintendent	Gary J. Cena	
X/0X6m		October 1, 2019
Signature ODistrict Superintendent	66	Date

# CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION REQUEST FOR ALLOWANCE OF ATTENDANCE DUE TO EMERGENCY CONDITIONS FORM J-134, REVISED DECEMBER 2017

# SECTION A: REQUEST INFORMATION

- This form is used to obtain approval of attendance and instructional time credit pursuant to Education Code (EC) sections 41422, 46200, 46391, 46392 and California Code of Regulations (CCR), Title 5, Section 488.
  - Only schools that report Principal Apportionment average daily attendance (ADA) for the purpose of calculating a K-12 Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) entitlement should submit this form.
    - Refer to the instructions and frequently asked questions at https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/pa/j13a.asp for information regarding the completion of this form.

BER (IF APPLICABLE):

PARI I: LOCAL EDUCATIONAL AGENCY (LEA)	:A)			
LEA NAME:		COUNTY CODE:	DISTRICT CODE:	CHARTER NIM
Marysville Joint Unified School District	ol District	58	72736	
LEA SUPERINTENDENT OR ADMINISTRATOR NAME:	AME:			FISCAL YEAR
Gary Cena				2019-20
ADDRESS:			COLINTY NAME:	
1919 B Street			Yuba	
CITY;		STATE		7IP CODE
Marysville		CA		95901
CONTACT NAME:	TITLE:	PHONE	E-MAIL:	
Jennifer Passaglia	Director of Fiscal Services	(530)749-6125	ipassaglia@miusd.com	usd.com

PART II: LEA TYPE AND SCHOOL SITE INFORMATION APPLICABLE TO THIS REQUEST (Choose only one LEA type): ☐ COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION (COE) Choose one of the following: ☐ All COE school sites ☐ Select COE school sites Select district school sites Choose one of the following:
☐ All district school sites SCHOOL DISTRICT

CHARTER SCHOOL

PART III: CONDITION(S) APPLICABLE TO THIS REQUEST:

ADA (per EC Section 41422) without applicable penalty and obtain credit for instructional time for the days and the instructional minutes that would have been regularly offered on those days pursuant to EC Section school(s) without regard to the fact that the school(s) were closed on the dates listed, due to the nature of the emergency. Approval of this request authorizes the LEA to disregard these days in the computation of SCHOOL CLOSURE: When one or more schools were closed because of conditions described in EC Section 41422. LCFF apportionments should be maintained and instructional time credited in Section B for the 46200, et seq.

☐ There was a Declaration of a State of Emergency by the Governor of California during the dates associated with this request.

include all school sites within the school district must demonstrate that the school district as a whole experienced a material decrease in attendance. Material decrease requests for one or more but not all sites within the school MATERIAL DECREASE: When one or more schools were kept open but experienced a material decrease in attendance pursuant to EC Section 46392 and CCR, Title 5, Section 428. Material decrease requests that district must show that each site included in the request experienced a material decrease in attendance pursuant to EC Section 46392 and CCR, Title 5, Section 428. The request for substitution of estimated days of attendance is in accordance with the provisions of EC Section 46392. Approval of this request will authorize use of the estimated days of attendance in the computation of LCFF apportionments for the described school(s) and dates in Section C during which school attendance was materially decreased due to the nature of the emergency,

☐ There was a Declaration of a State of Emergency by the Governor of California during the dates associated with this request.

LOST OR DESTROYED ATTENDANCE RECORDS: When attendance records have been lost or destroyed as described in EC Section 46391. Requesting the use of estimated attendance in lieu of attendance that cannot be verified due to the loss or destruction of attendance records. This request is made pursuant to EC Section 46391:

shall be shown to the satisfaction of the Superintendent of Public Instruction by the affidavits of the members of the governing board of the district and the county superintendent of schools, the Superintendent of Public Instruction shall estimate the average daily attendance of such district. The estimated average daily attendance shall be deemed to be the actual average daily attendance for that fiscal year for the making of apportionments to the school district from the State School Fund." "Whenever any attendance records of any district have been lost or destroyed, making it impossible for an accurate report on average daily attendance for the district for any fiscal year to be rendered, which fact

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
REQUEST FOR ALLOWANCE OF ATTENDANCE DUE TO EMERGENCY CONDITIONS
FORM J-13A, REVISED DECEMBER 2017
SECTION B: SCHOOL CLOSURE

PG & E shut off power to our foothill schools on 9/24/	I schools on 9/	/24/19 an	d 9/25/19 o	due to a red	I flag warnin	/19 and 9/25/19 due to a red flag warning in Yuba County.		
			65					
PART II: SCHOOL INFORMATION (Use the supplemental Excel form at https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/pa/f13a.asp if more than 10 lines are needed for this request. Attach a copy of a school calendar, If the request is for multiple school sites, and the sites have differing school calendars, attach a copy of each different school calendar to the request.)	ital Excel form at https calendars, attach a co	://www.cde.ca.	gov/fg/aa/pa/j13a erent school cale	asp if more than 1	10 lines are neede st.)	d for this request. Attach a copy	of a school calendar. If the	request is for
A	В	O	۵	Ш	L	ဗ	I	
School Name	School Code	Site Type	Days in School Calendar	by Days	Built In Emergency Days Used	Date(s) of Emergency Closure	Closure Dates Reguested	Total Number of Days Requested
Browns Valley School	6099014	Traditional	180	0	0	09/24/19 and 09/25/19	09/24/19 and 09/25/19	2
Dobbins Elementary School	6056675	Traditional	180	0	0	09/24/19 and 09/25/19	09/24/19 and 09/25/19	2
Foothill Intermediate School	6056691	Traditional	180	0	0	09/24/19 and 09/25/19	09/24/19 and 09/25/19	2
Loma Rica Elementary School	6056725	Traditional	180	0	0	09/24/19 and 09/25/19	09/24/19 and 09/25/19	2
Yuba Feather Elementary School	6056782	Traditional	180	0	0	09/24/19 and 09/25/19	09/24/19 and 09/25/19	2
PART III: CLOSURE HISTORY (List closure history for all schools in Part II.	all schools in Part II.	Refer to the ins	to the instructions for an example.)	example.)				
A	В	O		Q		Ш		Щ
School Name	School Code	Fiscal Year		Closure Dates		Nature	ည	Weather Related
Dobbins Elementary School	6056675	18-19		10/15/18	ď	Red Flag Warning		No
Foothill Intermediate School	6056691	18-19		10/15/18	α.	Red Flag Warning		S S
Loma Rica Elementary School	6056725	18-19		10/15/18	ж	Red Flag Warning		S N
Yuba Feather Elementary School	6056782	18-19		10/15/18	R	Red Flag Warning		<u>8</u>
Foothill Intermediate School	6056691	17-18		10-16-17	0	Cascade Fire		S S
Yuba Feather Elementary School	6056782	17-18		10-16-17	0	Cascade Fire		2
Dobbins Elementary School	6056675	17-18	70	02/17/17-02/21/17	让	Failure of Oroville Spillway		Yes
Foothill Intermediate School	6056691	17-18	70	02/17/17-02/21/17	L	Failure of Oroville Spillway		Yes
Loma Rica Elementary School	6056725	17-18	00	02/17/17-02/21/17	4	Failure of Oroville Spillway		Yes
Yuba Feather Elementary School	6056782	17-18	0	02/17/17-02/21/17	Ш	Failure of Oroville Spillway		Yes



0.00

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
REQUEST FOR ALLOWANCE OF ATTENDANCE DUE TO EMERGENCY CONDITIONS
FORM J-13A, REVISED DECEMBER 2017

SECTION C: MATERIAL DECREASE	NIA 4 1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1
NATION OF EMPONENCY AND STATE OF THE STATE O	In Not Applicable (Proceed to Section D)
ANT I. MATORE OF EMERGENCT (DESCRIBE IN GETAIL.)	Supplemental Page(s) Attached
	DO TO THE WAY OF THE PARTY OF T
PART II: MATERIAL DECREASE CALCULATION (Use the supplemental Excel fi	ne supplemental Excel file at https://www.cde.ca.nov/fin/aa/na/i/3a acn if more than 40 lines are not an act at the second for this account.

on completing the form including the definition of "normal" attendance.)

A	ca	ر	-				
			0	П		<b>්</b> ප	æ
School Name	School Code	"Nomal" Attendance (October/May)	Dates Used for Determining "Normal" Attendance	Date of Emergency	Actual Attendance	Qualifier: 90% or	Net
						-	-
			0.07			0.00%	00 0
			٠			%00.0	000
			.•			%00.0	00.0
			ř			0.00%	0.00
			•			0.00%	0.00
			*			0.00%	0.00
	×		٠			0.00%	0.00
			4			0.00%	0.00
						0.00%	0.00
	Total:	0.00			c		00.0

PART III: MATERIAL DECREASE CALCULATION FOR CONTINUATION HIGH SCHOOLS (Provide the attendance in hours. Use the supplemental Excel file at https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/pa/f13a.asp if more than 5 lines are needed for this request. Refer to the instructions for information on completing the form including the definition of "normal" attendance.)

			a commission of morning allering allering allering	2000			
A	В	O	C	<u></u>	ı	č	
				,		ָרָ <u>י</u>	I
School Name	School Code	"Normal" Attendance Hours	Uate Used for Determining "Normal" Attendance	Date of Emergency	Actual Attendance	Qualifier: 90% or	Net Increase of Hours
				CHOROUS CONT	CINCIE	Less (T/C)	7.5
						7000	C
						0.00.0	0.00
						/0000	000
						0.00.0	00.0
						/0000	
						0.00.0	0.00
						U 00%	
						9/00:0	0.00
						%000	000
	1					200:0	00.0
	Total:	0.00			0.00		00.0
							00:0

\*Qualifier should be 90% or less except when the governor declares a state of emergency or in the case of a Necessary Small School (NSS) site.



■ Not Applicable (Proceed to Section E) up to and including PART III: PROPOSAL (Describe below the proposal to reconstruct attendance records or estimate attendance in the absence of records.) PART I: PERIOD OF REQUEST The entire period covered by the lost or destroyed records commences with. PART II: CIRCUMSTANCES (Describe below circumstances and extent of records lost or destroyed.) SECTION D: LOST OR DESTROYED ATTENDANCE RECORDS

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION REQUEST FOR ALLOWANCE OF ATTENDANCE DUE TO EMERGENCY CONDITIONS FORM J-13A, REVISED DECEMBER 2017

Form J-13A | 5

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
REQUEST FOR ALLOWANCE OF ATTENDANCE DUE TO EMERGENCY CONDITIONS
FORM J-13A, REVISED DECEMBER 2017
SECTION E: AFFIDAVIT
PART I: AFFIDAVIT OF SCHOOL DISTRICT, COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION OR CHARTE

$\vdash$
=
Ø
匝
IL
AF
ய்
=
$\leq$
O
$\equiv$
ics.
$\sim$

-
:
4
-
8
ò
4
Ē
2
4
<u>;</u>
ā
4 0
<u>:</u>
30
V.
SS
/BE
ME.
8
OA
Ö
Ž
띮
õ
7
호 오
SC
뮸
4RT
곳
S.
NO.
Ĭ
2
9
FICE
TY OFF
OUN
٦, C
SCT
STF
L
00
SG.
OF S
) <u> </u>
DAV
I: A
RT
⋖

We members constituting a maiority of the conversion board of Marysville Joint USD	CHARLER SCHOOL GOVERNING BOARD MEMBERS - All applicable sections below must be completed to process this J-13A request.  JSD
	nereby swear (or affirm) that the foregoing statements are true and are based on official records.
Randy L.Rasmussen	<u>Board Members Signatures</u>
Susan E. Scott	
Paul F. Allison	
Randy L. Davis	
Frank L. Crawford	
Jim C. Flurry	
Jeff D. Boom	
At least a majority of the members of the governing board shall execute this affidavit.	
Subscribed and sworn (or affirmed) before me, this 8th day of October 20	2019
Witness: Gary Cena	
(Name) (Signature)	
PART II: APPROVAL BY SUPERINTENDENT OF CHARTER SCHOOL AUTHORIZER (Only applicable to charter school requests)	
Superintendent (or designee):	Authorizina I EA Momos
(Name) (Signature)	Addiviting LEA Name.
PART III: AFFIDAVIT OF COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS	
The information and statements contained in the foregoing request are true and correct to the best of my knowledge and belief.	
County Superintendent of Schools (or designee):	
(Name)	(Sonature)
Subscribed and sworn (or affirmed) before me, this day of	
COE contact/individual responsible for completing this section:	of County, California
99	
- Linite	E-mail;



# Solution Tree, Inc. Purchase Agreement

Effective September 19, 2019, Solution Tree, Inc. ("Solution Tree") located at 555 N. Morton St., Bloomington, IN 47404 and Marysville Joint Unified School District - Lindhurst High School ("Customer") located at 4446 Olive Ave Olivehurst, CA US 95961 agree as follows:

 Summary of Products and Services: Customer will purchase the following Solution Tree products and services ("Products") Additional Products may be added in a mutually agreed upon written Addendum.

Products and Services		Total	
Onsite Professional Development		\$6,500.00	
Resources, including shipping and handling		\$ 392.32	
	Total	\$6,892.32	

2. Payment Terms: Customer will provide Solution Tree with a purchase order made out to Solution Tree, 555 N. Morton St., Bloomington, IN 47404, for the full amount due under this Agreement upon execution of this Agreement (the "Purchase Order Due Date"). A non-refundable deposit of 20% of the Onsite Professional Development amount will be invoiced upon execution of this Agreement. The total includes any travel, lodging, and incidental expenses incurred by Solution Tree. All payments are due net 30 days from the actual date of invoice. All past due invoices are subject to a finance charge of 1.5% monthly. Solution Tree will invoice Customer off of the purchase order based on the following schedule:

Description	Payment	Expected Invoice Date
20% Deposit (non-refundable)	\$1,378.46	Upon execution of Agreement
Resources	\$ 313.86	Upon execution of Agreement
Onsite Professional Development	\$5,200.00	November 1, 2019

#### 3. Onsite Professional Development

- 3.1. Description of Services: Solution Tree agrees to provide a speaker, Doug Lillydahl ("Associate"), to disseminate information for Customer on the topic of *Grading* on November 1, 2019.
- 3.2. Presentation Materials: Customer will reproduce any handouts and other print materials related to the services and will notify the Associate directly of any deadlines for reproduction.
- 3.3. Venue and Audio/Visual Equipment: Customer will provide a venue, audio/video equipment, and technical support for all sessions.

Page 1 of 4

v17.1.1

72

nature:



4. Resources: Customer will purchase the following resources. Solution Tree will ship all resources after an invoice has been generated. Solution Tree will not ship any resources without a purchase order or full payment.

Title	Quantity	Price	Total
Proficiency-Based Grading	12	\$30.36*	\$364.32
Shipping and handling	<b>-</b>	••	\$28.00
*Price denotes 20% discount Resources Total			\$392.32

#### 5. General Terms

- 5.1. Intellectual Property: Customer acknowledges that Solution Tree or Associate owns the copyrights to all tangible or electronic presentation materials, handouts, and/or program books used in conjunction with services performed under this Agreement and that no materials will be developed specifically for Customer. Solution Tree will retain all copyrights owned prior to entering this Agreement, and Customer may not reproduce any materials not designated reproducible without the express written permission of Solution Tree. All audio, video, and digital recording of the services by Customer is prohibited.
- **5.2. Force Majeure:** If events beyond the parties' control make it impossible to perform under this Agreement, the party unable to perform will not have any liability to the other party for the prevented performance. All obligations unaffected by such an event will remain in place.
- **5.3. Termination:** Solution Tree may terminate this Agreement if Solution Tree has not received a purchase order by the Purchase Order Due Date.
  - a. Onsite Professional Development: If Customer cancels any Onsite Professional Development Services within 90 days of the scheduled date for any reason but Force Majeure, Customer will reimburse Solution Tree for any reasonable business expenses incurred in anticipation of performance of this Agreement that exceed the amount of the deposit. If events beyond the parties' control make performance on the scheduled dates impossible, the parties will make a good faith effort to reschedule the Onsite Professional Development Services.
  - b. Resource Returns and Refunds: Resource returns and refunds will be handled by the Return Policy outlines at https://www.solutiontree.com/customer-service/product-orders.
- 5.4. Entire Agreement: This Agreement and any exhibits attached hereto constitute the entire agreement of the parties and supersede any prior or contemporaneous written or oral understanding or agreement. No waiver or modification of any of the terms of the Agreement will be effective unless made in writing and signed by both parties, and the unenforceability, invalidity, or illegality of any provision of this Agreement will not render the other provisions unenforceable, invalid, or illegal. Any waiver by either party of any default or breach hereunder will not constitute a waiver of any provision of this Agreement or of any subsequent default or breach of the same or a different kind.

Page 2 of 4



This Agreement is acknowledged and accepted by Customer and Solution Tree:

Gary Cena

Date

Superintendent

Marysville Joint Unified School District

Ali Cummins

9/23/19

**Director of Professional Development** 

Solution Tree, Inc.

Please email this Agreement to Michael Richter at michael.richter@solutiontree.com or fax to 866.308.3135.



## **CONTACT INFORMATION**

## Please provide the following information.

Who will	bê thê o	onisch der johren World weren der johren der			
Contact:	Christine Vahldick				
Title:	Assistant Principal				
Phone:	(530)741-6150 Ext. 2505				
Email:	cvahldick@mjusd.k12.ca.us				
Cell #:	(707)599-4972				
Fax:		741-6171			
MANY LONG TO SERVICE AND ADDRESS OF	20100-12400-124				
Who will	receive)	and pay the Invoices?			
Contact:	Angela Salcido				
Title:	Business Services				
Phone:	(530)749-6114				
Email:	asalcido@mjusd.k12.ca.us				
Fax:					
		*			
Shipping	informa	tion (required for resource delivery)			
Shipping	Contact:	Melanie Stanaland			
Shipping a	Address:	4446 Olive Avenue			
City, State	e, Zip:	Olivehurst, CA 95961			
Phone:		(530) 741-6150 Ext. 2502			
Delivery D	Date:				
Delivery T	imes:	7:00 a.m. to 3:00 p.m.			
Oleman		Do you have a Delivery Dock? No			
Choose o	ne;	Do you have double doors (for pallet)? N/A  Do you require inside delivery? Yes			
		Do you require inside delivery? Yes			

# Marysville Joint USD Board Policy



**Education For English Language Learners** 

BP 6174
Instruction

The Board of Education intends to provide English language learners with challenging curriculum and instruction that develop proficiency in English as rapidly and effectively as possible in order to assist students in accessing the full educational program and achieving the district's academic standards. The district's program shall be based on sound instructional theory and shall be adequately supported so that English language learners can achieve results at the same academic level as their English-proficient peers in the regular course of study.

The Board encourages staff to exchange information with staff in other districts and the county office of education about programs, options and strategies for English language learners that succeed under various demographic conditions.

(cf. 4112.22 - Staff Teaching Students of Limited English Proficiency)

The Superintendent or designee shall maintain procedures which provide for the identification, assessment and placement of English language learners and for their redesignation based on criteria adopted by the Board and specified in administrative regulations.

To evaluate program effectiveness, the Superintendent or designee shall regularly examine program results, including reports of the English language learners' academic achievement, their progress towards proficiency in English and the progress of students who have been redesignated as fluent English proficient.

(cf. 6190 - Evaluation of the Instructional Program)

Type of Instruction

Students who are English language learners shall be educated through "sheltered English immersion" or "structured English immersion" during a temporary transition period not normally intended to exceed one year. "Nearly all" of the classroom instruction in the district's sheltered English immersion program shall be in English, but with the curriculum and presentation designed for students who are learning the language. (Education Code 305, 306)

The district has defined the term "nearly all" as follows:

All classroom instruction is to be conducted in English except for clarification, explanation, and support as needed.



When an English language learner has acquired a reasonable level of English proficiency as measured by any of the state-designated assessments approved by the California Department of Education or any locally developed assessments and using other criteria developed by the district, he/she shall be transferred from a structured English immersion classroom to an English language mainstream classroom in which the instruction is "overwhelmingly" in English. (Education Code 305; 5 CCR 11301)

An English language learner has acquired a "reasonable level of English proficiency" when he/she has achieved the following:

CELDT level 4, 5 and parent(s)/guardian(s) request.

(cf. 6011 - Academic Standards) (cf. 6162.5 - Student Assessment) (cf. 6171 - Title I Programs)

Upon the request of his/her parent/guardian, a student shall be placed in an English language mainstream classroom. (5 CCR 11301)

Parental Exception Waivers

At any time during the school year, the parent/guardian of an English language learner may have his/her child moved into an English language mainstream program.

Parent/guardian requests for waivers from Education Code 305 regarding placement in a sheltered English immersion program shall be granted in accordance with law and administrative regulation.

### Legal Reference:

**EDUCATION CODE** 

300-340 English language education for immigrant children

430-446 English Learner and Immigrant Pupil Federal Conformity Act

33308.5 CDE guidelines not binding

44253.5-44253.10 Certification for bilingual-cross-cultural competence

48985 Notices to parents in language other than English

51101 Rights of parents to information

51101.1 Rights for parents of English learners

52130-52135 Impacted languages act of 1984

52160-52178 Bilingual Bicultural Act

52180-52186 Bilingual teacher training assistance program

54000-54028 Programs for disadvantaged children

60810-60812 Assessment of language development

62001-62005.5 Evaluation and sunsetting of programs

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5

4320 Determination of funding to support program to overcome the linguistic difficulties of

English learners

11300-11316 English Language Learner Education

11510-11517 California English Language Development Test

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20

1701-1705 Equal Educational Opportunities Act

6312 Local education agency plans

6801-6871 Title III, Language instruction for limited English proficient and immigrant students COURT DECISIONS

Valeria G. v. Wilson, (9th Circuit) 2002 U.S. App. Lexis 20956

California Teachers Association et al. v. State Board of Education et al., (9th Circuit, 2001) 271 F.3d 1141

McLaughlin v. State Board of Education, (1999) 75 Cal. App. 4th 196

Teresa P. et al v. Berkeley Unified School District et al, (1989) 724 F.Supp. 698

Casteneda v. Pickard, (5th Cir. 1981) 648 F.2d 989

ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS

83 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 40 (2000)

Management Resources:

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS

Guidelines for Reclassification of English Learners, September 2002

Accommodations for the California English Language Development Test, Revised 8/13/01

WEB SITES

CDE: http://www.cde.ca.gov CSBA: http://www.csba.org

Policy MARYSVILLE JT. UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

adopted: March 11, 2008 Marysville, California

# Marysville Joint USD



## **Board Policy**

**Education For English Language Learners** 

BP 6174
Instruction

The Governing Board intends to provide English learners with challenging curriculum and instruction that maximize the attainment of high levels of proficiency in English, advance multilingual capabilities, and facilitate student achievement in the district's regular course of study.

English learners shall be provided differentiated English language development instruction which is targeted to their English proficiency level. Such instruction shall be based on sound instructional theory, be aligned with state content standards, emphasize inquiry-based learning and critical thinking skills, and be integrated across all subject areas.

(cf. 6011 - Academic Standards)

(cf. 6141 - Curriculum Development and Evaluation)

(cf. 6161.1 - Selection and Evaluation of Instructional Materials)

(cf. 6161.11 - Supplementary Instructional Materials)

(cf. 6171 - Title I Programs)

No middle or high school student who is an English learner shall be denied enrollment in any of the following: (Education Code 60811.8)

1. Courses in the core curriculum areas of reading/language arts, mathematics, science, and history-social science, courses required to meet state and local high school graduation requirements, or courses required for middle school grade promotion

However, an English learner may be denied participation in any such course if the student has been enrolled in a school in the United States for less than 12 months or is enrolled in a program designed to develop the basic English skills of newly arrived immigrant students, and the course of study provided to the student is designed to remedy academic deficits incurred during participation and to enable the student to attain parity of participation in the standard instructional program within a reasonable length of time after the student enters the school system.

- 2. A full course load of courses specified in item #1 above
- 3. Other courses that meet the "a-g" course requirements for college admission or are advanced courses such as honors or Advanced Placement courses, on the sole basis of the student's classification as an English learner

```
(cf. 0415 - Equity)
(cf. 6141.4 - International Baccalaureate Program)
(cf. 6141.5 - Advanced Placement)
```

The district shall identify in its local control and accountability plan (LCAP) goals and specific actions and services to enhance student engagement, academic achievement, and other outcomes for English learners.

```
(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan) (cf. 3100 - Budget)
```

The Superintendent or designee shall encourage parent/guardian and community involvement in the development and evaluation of programs for English learners. The Superintendent or designee may also provide an English development literacy training program for parents/guardians and community members so that they may better support students' English language development.

```
(cf. 0420 - School Plans/Site Councils)
(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees)
(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement)
```

Staff Qualifications and Training

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all staff employed to teach English learners possess the appropriate authorization from the Commission on Teacher Credentialing.

```
(cf. 4112.22 - Staff Teaching English Learners)
```

The district shall provide effective professional development to teachers (including teachers in classroom settings that are not the settings of language instruction educational programs), administrators, and other school or community-based organization personnel to improve the instruction and assessment of English learners and enhance staff's ability to understand and use curricula, assessment, and instructional strategies for English learners. Such professional development shall be of sufficient intensity and duration to produce a positive and lasting impact on teachers' performance in the classroom. (20 USC 6825)

```
(cf. 4131 - Staff Development)
(cf. 4231 - Staff Development)
(cf. 4331 - Staff Development)
```



Staff development shall also address the sociocultural needs of English learners and provide opportunities for teachers to engage in supportive, collaborative learning communities.

#### Identification and Assessment

The Superintendent or designee shall maintain procedures for the early identification of English learners and an assessment of their proficiency using the state's English Language Proficiency Assessments for California (ELPAC). To oversee test administration, the Superintendent or designee shall annually designate a district ELPAC coordinator and a site coordinator for each test site in accordance with 5 CCR 11518.40-11518.45.

Once identified as an English learner, a student shall be annually assessed for language proficiency until the student is reclassified based on criteria specified in the accompanying administrative regulation.

In addition, English learners' academic achievement in English language arts, mathematics, science, and any additional subject required by law shall be assessed using the California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress. As necessary, the test shall be administered with testing variations in accordance with 5 CCR 854.1-854.3. English learners who are in their first 12 months of attending a school in the United States shall be exempted from taking the English language arts assessment to the extent allowed by federal law. (Education Code 60603, 60640; 5 CCR 854.1-854.3)

(cf. 6162.51 - State Academic Achievement Tests)

Formative assessments may be utilized to analyze student performance and appropriately adapt teaching methodologies and instructions.

(cf. 6162.5 - Student Assessment)

## Language Acquisition Programs

The district shall offer research-based language acquisition programs that are designed to ensure English acquisition as rapidly and as effectively as possible and that provide instruction to students on the state-adopted academic content standards, including the English language development standards. (Education Code 306; 5 CCR 11300)

At a minimum, the district shall offer a structured English immersion program which includes designated and integrated English language development. In the structured English immersion program, nearly all of the classroom instruction shall be provided in English, but with the curriculum and presentation designed for students who are learning English. (Education Code 305-306; 5 CCR 11309)

For the purpose of determining the amount of instruction to be conducted in English in the structured English immersion program, "nearly all" means that all classroom instruction shall be conducted in English except for clarification, explanation, and support as needed.

The district's language acquisition programs for grades K-3 shall comply with class size requirements specified in Education Code 42238.02. (Education Code 310)

(cf. 6151 - Class Size)

In establishing the district's language acquisition programs, the Superintendent or designee shall consult with parents/guardians and the community during the LCAP development process. The Superintendent or designee shall also consult with administrators, teachers, and other personnel with appropriate authorizations and experience in establishing a language acquisition program. (Education Code 305)

At the beginning of each school year or upon a student's enrollment, parents/guardians shall be provided information on the types of language acquisition programs available to students enrolled in the district, including, but not limited to, a description of each program, the process to be followed in making a program selection, identification of any language to be taught in addition to English when the program includes instruction in another language, and the process to request establishment of a language acquisition program. (Education Code 310; 5 CCR 11310)

(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications)

Whenever a student is identified as an English learner based on the results of the ELPAC, the student's parents/guardians may choose a language acquisition program that best suits their child. To the extent possible, any language acquisition program requested by the parents/guardians of 30 or more students at the school or by the parents/guardians of 20 or more students at any grade level shall be offered by the school. (Education Code 310; 5 CCR 11311)

### Reclassification

When an English learner is determined based on state and district reclassification criteria to have acquired a reasonable level of English proficiency pursuant to Education Code 313 and 52164.6, or upon request by the student's parent/guardian, the student shall be transferred from a language acquisition program into an English language mainstream classroom.

## **Program Evaluation**

To evaluate the effectiveness of the district's educational program for English learners, the Superintendent or designee shall report to the Board, at least annually, regarding:

1. Progress of English learners towards proficiency in English



- 2. The number and percentage of English learners reclassified as fluent English proficient
- 3. The number and percentage of English learners who are or are at risk of being classified as long-term English learners in accordance with Education Code 313.1
- 4. The achievement of English learners on standards-based tests in core curricular areas
- 5. For any language acquisition program that includes instruction in a language other than English, student achievement in the non-English language in accordance with 5 CCR 11309
- 6. Progress toward any other goals for English learners identified in the district's LCAP
- 7. A comparison of current data with data from at least the previous year in regard to items #1-6 above
- 8. A comparison of data between the different language acquisition programs offered by the district

The Superintendent or designee shall also provide the Board with regular reports from any district or schoolwide English learner advisory committees.

## Legal Reference:

**EDUCATION CODE** 

300-340 English language education, especially:

305-310 Language acquisition programs

313-313.5 Assessment of English proficiency

430-446 English Learner and Immigrant Pupil Federal Conformity Act

33050 State Board of Education waiver authority

42238.02-42238.03 Local control funding formula

44253.1-44253.11 Qualifications for teaching English learners

48980 Parental notifications

48985 Notices to parents in language other than English

52052 Accountability; numerically significant student subgroups

52060-52077 Local control and accountability plan

52160-52178 Bilingual Bicultural Act

56305 CDE manual on English learners with disabilities

60603 Definition, recently arrived English learner

60640 California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress

60811-60812 Assessment of English language development

62002.5 Continuation of advisory committee after program sunsets

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5

854.1-854.3 CAASPP and universal tools, designated supports, and accommodations

854.9 CASSPP and unlisted resources for students with disabilities

11300-11316 English learner education

11517.6-11519.5 English Language Proficiency Assessments for California

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20

1412 Individuals with Disabilities Education Act; state eligibility

1701-1705 Equal Educational Opportunities Act

6311 Title I state plan

6312 Title I local education agency plans

6801-7014 Title III, language instruction for English learners and immigrant students

7801 Definitions

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34

100.3 Discrimination prohibited

200.16 Assessment of English learners

**COURT DECISIONS** 

Valeria O. v. Davis, (2002) 307 F.3d 1036

California Teachers Association v. State Board of Education et al., (9th Circuit, 2001) 271 F.3d 1141

McLaughlin v. State Board of Education, (1999) 75 Cal. App. 4th 196

Teresa P. et al v. Berkeley Unified School District et al, (1989) 724 F.Supp. 698

ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS

83 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 40 (2000)

## Management Resources:

## **CSBA PUBLICATIONS**

English Learners in Focus: The English Learner Roadmap: Providing Direction for English Learner Success, Governance Brief, February 2018

English Learners in Focus, Issue 4: Expanding Bilingual Education in California after Proposition 58, Governance Brief, March 2017

English Learners in Focus, Issue 1: Updated Demographic and Achievement Profile of California's English Learners, Governance Brief, rev. September 2016

English Learners in Focus, Issue 3: Ensuring High-Quality Staff for English Learners, Governance Brief, July 2016

English Learners in Focus, Issue 2: The Promise of Two-Way Immersion Programs, Governance Brief, September 2014

## CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS

California Practitioners' Guide for Educating English Learners with Disabilities, 2019

California English Learner Roadmap: Strengthening Comprehensive Educational Policies, Programs and Practices for English Learners, 2018

Matrix One: Universal Tools, Designated Supports, and Accommodations for the California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress for 2017-18, rev. August 2017

Reclassification Guidance for 2017-18, CDE Correspondence, April 28, 2017

Integrating the CA ELD Standards into K-12 Mathematics and Science Teaching and Learning, December 2015

Next Generation Science Standards for California Public Schools, Kindergarten through Grade Twelve, rev. March 2015

English Language Arts/English Language Development Framework for California Public Schools: Transitional Kindergarten Through Grade Twelve, 2014

Common Core State Standards for Mathematics, rev. 2013

English Language Development Standards for California Public Schools: Kindergarten

Through Grade Twelve, 2012

THE EDUCATION TRUST- WEST PUBLICATIONS

Unlocking Learning II: Math as a Lever for English Learner Equity, March 2018

Unlocking Learning: Science as a Lever for English Learner Equity, January 2017

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS

Accountability for English Learners Under the ESEA, Non-Regulatory Guidance, January 2017 Innovative Solutions for Including Recently Arrived English Learners in State Accountability

Systems: A Guide for States, January 2017

English Learner Tool Kit for State and Local Educational Agencies (SEAs and LEAs), rev.

November 2016

English Learners and Title III of the Elementary and Secondary Education Act (ESEA), as Amended by the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA), Non-Regulatory Guidance, September 23, 2016

Dear Colleague Letter: English Learner Students and Limited English Proficient Parents,

January 7, 2015

WEB SITES

CSBA: http://www.csba.org

California Association for Bilingual Education: http://www.gocabe.org

California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/el

National Clearinghouse for English Language Acquisition: http://www.ncela.us

The Education Trust-West: http://west.edtrust.org U.S. Department of Education: http://www.ed.gov

Policy MARYSVILLE JT. UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

adopted: March 11, 2008 Marysville, California

revised: October 8, 2019

# **Marysville Joint USD**

## **Administrative Regulation**

**Education For English Language Learners** 

AR 6174
Instruction



## **Definitions**

English learner means a student who does not speak English or whose native language is not English and who is not currently able to perform ordinary classroom work in English, also known as a limited English proficient or LEP child. (Education Code 306)

English language classroom means a classroom in which the language of instruction used by the teaching personnel is overwhelmingly the English language, and in which such teaching personnel possess a good knowledge of the English language. (Education Code 306)

English language mainstream classroom means a classroom in which the students either are native English language speakers or already have acquired reasonable fluency in English. (Education Code 306)

Sheltered English immersion or structured English immersion means an English language acquisition process in which nearly all classroom instruction is in English but with the curriculum and presentation designed for students who are learning the language. (Education Code 306)

Bilingual education/native language instruction means a language acquisition process for students in which much or all instruction, textbooks, and teaching materials are in the student's native language. (Education Code 306)

#### Identification and Assessment

Upon enrollment, each student's primary language shall be determined through use of a home language survey. (5 CCR 11307)

Within 30 calendar days of their initial enrollment, students who are identified as having a primary language other than English, as determined by the home language survey, and for whom there is no record of results from an English language development test shall be assessed using the California English Language Development Test (CELDT). (5 CCR 11511)

All students shall have sufficient time to complete the CELDT as provided in the directions for test administration. (5 CCR 11516)

Any student with a disability shall take the CELDT with those accommodations for testing that



the student has regularly used during instruction and classroom assessment as delineated in the student's individualized education program (IEP) or Section 504 plan that are appropriate and necessary to address the student's individual needs. (5 CCR 11516.5)

(cf. 6159 - Individualized Education Program) (cf. 6164.6 - Identification and Education under Section 504)

The district shall notify parents/guardians of their child's results on the CELDT within 30 calendar days. (5 CCR 11511.5)

(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications)

Within 90 days of initial enrollment, students identified as having limited English proficiency shall be further assessed for primary language proficiency in comprehension, speaking, reading and writing. The Superintendent or designee shall develop criteria for determining student needs on the basis of these assessments. (former Education Code 52164.1, 62002)

Before students are enrolled in a program for English language learners, parents/guardians shall receive information about the program and their opportunities for parental involvement. This information shall include the fact that an individual student's participation in the program is voluntary on the part of the parent/guardian. (Education Code 52173)

Not later than 30 calendar days after the beginning of the school year, each parent/guardian of a student participating in, or identified for participation in, a language instruction program supported by federal Title III funds shall receive notification of the assessment of his/her child's English proficiency. The notice shall include all of the following: (Education Code 440; 20 USC 6312)

- 1. The reason for the student's classification as English language learner
- 2. The level of English proficiency
- 3. A description of the program for English language development instruction, including a description of all of the following:
- a. The manner in which the program will meet the educational strengths and needs of the student
- b. The manner in which the program will help the student develop his/her English proficiency and meet age-appropriate academic standards
- c. The specific exit requirements for the program, the expected rate of transition from the program into classrooms not tailored for English language learner students, and the expected rate of graduation from secondary school if Title I funds are used for students in secondary schools
- d. Where the student has been identified for special education, the manner in which the

program meets the requirements of the student's IEP

- 4. Information regarding a parent/guardian's option to decline to allow the student to become enrolled in the program or to choose to allow the student to become enrolled in an alternative program
- 5. Information designed to assist a parent/guardian in selecting among available programs, if more than one program is offered

Parent/guardians also shall be notified of the results of any reassessments. (Education Code 52164.3)

Parental Exception Waivers

At the beginning of each school year, parents/guardians shall be informed of the placement of their children in a structured English immersion program and shall be notified of an opportunity to apply for a parental exception waiver. (Education Code 310; 5 CCR 11309)

A parent/guardian may request that the district waive the requirements of Education Code 305, pertaining to the placement of a student in a structured English immersion program if the one of the following circumstances exists:

- 1. Students who already know English: The student already possesses good English language skills, as measured by standardized tests of English vocabulary comprehension, reading and writing, in which the student scores at or above the state average for his/her grade level or at or above the fifth-grade average, whichever is lower. (Education Code 311(a))
- 2. Older students: The student is age 10 years or older, and it is the informed belief of the school principal and educational staff that an alternate course of study would be better suited to the student's rapid acquisition of basic English skills. (Education Code 311(b))
- 3. Students with special needs: The student already has been placed, for a period of not less than 30 calendar days during that school year, in an English language classroom and it is subsequently the informed belief of the school principal and educational staff that the student has special physical, emotional, psychological or educational needs and that an alternate course of educational study would be better suited to the student's overall educational development. (Education Code 311(c))

The parent/guardian shall personally visit the school to apply for the waiver. (Education Code 310)

Upon request for a waiver, the Superintendent or designee shall provide to the parents/guardians: (Education Code 310, 311; 5 CCR 11309)

1. A full written description, and a spoken description upon request, of the intent and content of the structured English immersion program, any alternative courses of study and all



educational opportunities offered by the district and available to the student, and the educational materials to be used in the different educational program choices

2. For a request for waiver pursuant to Education Code 311(c) for students with special needs, notification that the student must be placed for a period of not less than 30 calendar days in an English language classroom and that the Superintendent must approve the waiver pursuant to Board of Education guidelines

Pursuant to Education Code 311(b) and 311(c), the principal and educational staff may recommend a waiver to a parent/guardian for a student 10 years or older and a student with special needs. Parents/guardians shall be informed in writing of any recommendation for an alternative program made by the principal and staff and shall be given notice of their right to refuse to accept the recommendation. The notice shall include a full description of the recommended alternative program and the educational materials to be used for the alternative program as well as a description of all other programs available to the student. If the parent/guardian elects to request the alternative program recommended by the principal and educational staff, the parent/guardian shall comply with district procedures and requirements otherwise applicable to a parental exception waiver, including Education Code 310. (5 CCR 11309)

When evaluating waiver requests pursuant to Education Code 311(a) for students who already know English and other waiver requests for those students for whom standardized assessment data are not available, other equivalent assessment measures may be used. These equivalent measures may include local assessments, local standards and teacher evaluations.

Parental exception waivers pursuant to Education Code 311(b) for students 10 years or older shall be granted if it is the informed belief of the principal and educational staff that an alternate course of educational study would be better suited to the student's rapid acquisition of basic English language skills. (Education Code 311)

Parental exception waivers pursuant to Education Code 311(c) for students with special needs shall be granted if it is the informed belief of the principal and educational staff that, due to the student's special physical, emotional, psychological or educational needs, an alternate course of educational study would be better suited to the student's overall educational development. (Education Code 311)

Each waiver shall be considered on its individual merits with great deference given to parental preference for student placement.

The principal or designee shall act upon all parental exception waivers within 20 instructional days of submission to the principal. However, parental waiver requests pursuant to Education Code 311(c) for students with special needs shall not be acted upon during the 30-day placement in an English language classroom. These waivers shall be acted upon no later than 10 calendar days after the expiration of that 30-day English language classroom placement or within 20 instructional days of submission of the waiver to the principal, whichever is later. (5 CCR 11309)

All parental exception waivers shall be granted unless the principal and educational staff have determined that an alternative program offered at the school would not be better suited for the overall educational development of the student. (5 CCR 11309)

Individual schools in which 20 students or more of a given grade level receive a waiver shall be required to offer such a class; otherwise they must allow the students to transfer to a public school in which such a class is offered. (Education Code 310)

Students wishing to transfer shall be subject to the district's intradistrict and interdistrict attendance policies and administrative regulations. Students wishing to transfer to another district shall also be subject to the receiving district's interdistrict attendance policies and administrative regulations.

(cf. 5116.1 - Intradistrict Open Enrollment) (cf. 5117 - Interdistrict Attendance)

In cases where a parental exception waiver pursuant to Education Code 311(b) or (c) is denied, the parent/guardian shall be informed in writing of the reason(s) for the denial and advised that he/she may appeal the decision to the Board if the Board authorizes such an appeal, or to the court. (5 CCR 11309)

Waiver requests shall be renewed annually by the parent/guardian. (Education Code 310)

Reclassification/Redesignation

The district shall continue to provide additional and appropriate educational services to English language learners for the purposes of overcoming language barriers until the English language learners have: (5 CCR 11302)

- 1. Demonstrated English language proficiency comparable to that of the district's average native English language speakers
- 2. Recouped any academic deficits which may have been incurred in other areas of the core curriculum as a result of language barriers

English language learners shall be redesignated as fluent English proficient when they are able to comprehend, speak, read and write English well enough to receive instruction in the regular program and make academic progress at a level substantially equivalent to that of students of the same age or grade whose primary language is English and who are in the regular course of study. (Education Code 52164.6)

The following measures shall be used to determine whether an English language learner shall be reclassified as fluent English proficient: (5 CCR 11303)

1. Assessment of English language proficiency utilizing the CELDT as the primary

criterion, and objective assessment of the student's English reading and writing skills

- 2. Participation of the student's classroom teacher and any other certificated staff with direct responsibility for teaching or placement decisions
- 3. Parent/guardian opinion and consultation during a redesignation interview

Parents/guardians shall receive notice and a description of the redesignation process, including notice of their right to participate in the process. Parent/guardian participation in the process shall be encouraged.

- 4. Student performance on a statewide assessment of basic skills in English.
- 5. Objective data on the student's academic performance in English

The Superintendent or designee shall provide subsequent monitoring and support for redesignated students, including but not limited to monitoring the performance of redesignated students in the core curriculum in comparison with their native-English speaking peers, monitoring the rate of redesignation, and ensuring correct classification and placement.

The Superintendent or designee shall develop a process to monitor the effectiveness of the district's program for English language learners. The district's program shall be modified as needed to help ensure language and academic success for each English language learner.

## **Advisory Committees**

At the district level when there are more than 50 English language learners in the district and at each school with more than 20 English language learners, parent/guardian advisory committees shall be maintained to serve the advisory functions specified in law. (5 CCR 11308)

Parents/guardians of English language learners shall constitute committee membership in at least the same percentage as their children represent of the total number of students in the school. (Education Code 52176)

The district's English language advisory committee shall advise the Board on at least the following tasks: (5 CCR 11308)

- 1. The development of a district master plan of education programs and services for English learners, taking into consideration the school site plans for English learners
- 2. The districtwide needs assessment on a school-by-school basis
- 3. Establishment of a district program, goals and objectives for programs and services for English learners
- 4. Development of a plan to ensure compliance with applicable teacher or aide requirements

- 5. Administration of the annual language census
- 6. Review of and comment on the district's reclassification procedures
- 7. Review of and comments on the written notification required to be sent to parents/guardians pursuant to 5 CCR 11300-11316
- (cf. 0420 School Plans/Site Councils)
- (cf. 1220 Citizen Advisory Committees)
- (cf. 5020 Parent Rights and Responsibilities)
- (cf. 6020 Parent Involvement)

In order to assist advisory members in carrying out their responsibilities, the Superintendent or designee shall ensure that committee members receive appropriate training and materials. This training shall be planned in full consultation with the members. (5 CCR 11308)

Regulation MARYSVILLE JT. UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

approved: March 11, 2008 Marysville, California

revised: May 13, 2014

# Marysville Joint USD Administrative Regulation



**Education For English Language Learners** 

AR 6174 Instruction

## **Definitions**

English learner means a student who is age 3-21 years, who is enrolled or is preparing to enroll in an elementary or secondary school, and whose difficulties in speaking, reading, writing, or understanding the English language may be sufficient to deny the student the ability to meet state academic standards, the ability to successfully achieve in classrooms where the language of instruction is English, or the opportunity to participate fully in society. An English learner may include a student who was not born in the United States or whose native language is a language other than English; a student who is Native American or Alaska Native, or a native resident of the outlying areas, who comes from an environment where a language other than English has had a significant impact on the individual's level of English language proficiency; or a student who is migratory, whose native language is a language other than English, and who comes from an environment where a language other than English is dominant. (Education Code 306; 20 USC 7801)

Designated English language development means instruction provided during a time set aside in the regular school day for focused instruction on the state-adopted English language development standards to assist English learners to develop critical English language skills necessary for academic content learning in English. (5 CCR 11300)

Integrated English language development means instruction in which the state-adopted English language development standards are used in tandem with the state-adopted academic content standards. Integrated English language development includes specially designed academic instruction in English. (5 CCR 11300)

Native speaker of English means a student who has learned and used English at home from early childhood and English has been the primary means of concept formation and communication. (Education Code 306)

Identification and Assessments

Upon enrollment in the district, each student's primary language shall be determined through the use of a home language survey. (Education Code 52164.1; 5 CCR 11307)

Any student who is identified as having a primary language other than English as determined by the home language survey, and who has not previously been identified as an English learner by a California public school or for whom there is no record of results from an administration of an English language proficiency test, shall be initially assessed for English proficiency using the English Language Proficiency Assessments for California (ELPAC). (Education Code 313, 52164.1; 5 CCR 11518.5)

Each year after a student is identified as an English learner and until the student is redesignated as English proficient, the summative assessment of the ELPAC shall be administered to the student during a four-month period after January 1 as determined by the California Department of Education. (Education Code 313)

Administration of the ELPAC, including the use of variations and accommodations in test administration when authorized, shall be conducted in accordance with test publisher instructions and 5 CCR 11518.5-11518.35.

(cf. 6159 - Individualized Education Program)

(cf. 6162.51 - State Academic Achievement Tests)

(cf. 6164.6 - Identification and Education Under Section 504)

The Superintendent or designee shall notify parents/guardians of their child's results on the ELPAC within 30 calendar days following receipt of the results from the test contractor or, if the results are received from the test contractor after the last day of instruction for the school year, within 15 working days of the start of the next school year. (Education Code 52164.1; 5 CCR 11518.15)

(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications)

The parent/guardian of a student participating in, or identified for participation in, a language instruction program supported by federal Title I or Title III funds shall receive notification of the assessment of the student's English proficiency. Such notice shall be provided not later than 30 calendar days after the beginning of the school year or, if the student is identified for program participation during the school year, within two weeks of the student's placement in the program. The notice shall include all of the following: (Education Code 313.2, 440; 20 USC 6312)

- 1. The reason for the identification of the student as an English learner and the need for placement in a language acquisition program
- 2. The level of English proficiency, how the level was assessed, and the status of the student's academic achievement
- 3. A description of the language acquisition program in which the student is, or will be, participating, including a description of all of the following:
- a. The methods of instruction used in the program and in other available programs,

including how such programs differ in content, instructional goals, and the use of English and a native language in instruction

- b. The manner in which the program will meet the educational strengths and needs of the student
- c. The manner in which the program will help the student develop English proficiency and meet age-appropriate academic standards for grade promotion and graduation
- d. The specific exit requirements for the program, the expected rate of transition from the program into classes not tailored for English learners, and the expected rate of graduation from secondary school if applicable
- e. Where the student has been identified for special education, the manner in which the program meets the requirements of the student's IEP
- 4. As applicable, the identification of a student as a long-term English learner or at risk of becoming a long-term English learner, as defined in Education Code 313.1, and the manner in which the program for English language development instruction will meet the educational strengths and needs of such students and help such students develop English proficiency and meet age-appropriate academic standards
- 5. Information about the parent/guardian's right to have the student immediately removed from a program upon the parent/guardian's request
- 6. Information regarding a parent/guardian's option to decline to enroll the student in the program or to choose another program or method of instruction, if available
- 7. Information designed to assist a parent/guardian in selecting among available programs, if more than one program or method is offered

## Language Acquisition Programs

Whenever parents/guardians of enrolled students, and those enrolled for attendance in the next school year, request that the district establish a specific language acquisition program in accordance with Education Code 310, such requests shall be addressed through the following process: (5 CCR 11311)

- 1. The school shall make a written record of each request, including any request submitted verbally, that includes the date of the request, the names of the parent/guardian and student making the request, a general description of the request, and the student's grade level on the date of the request. As needed, the school shall assist the parent/guardian in clarifying the request. All requests shall be maintained for at least three years from the date of the request.
- 2. The school shall monitor requests on a regular basis and notify the Superintendent or designee when the parents/guardians of at least 30 students enrolled in the school, or at least 20

students in the same grade level, request the same or a substantially similar type of language acquisition program. If the requests are for a multilingual program model, the district shall consider requests from parents/guardians of students enrolled in the school who are native English speakers in determining whether this threshold is reached.

- 3. If the number of parents/guardians described in item #2 is attained, the Superintendent or designee shall:
- a. Within 10 days of reaching the threshold, notify the parents/guardians of students attending the school, the school's teachers, administrators, and the district's English learner parent advisory committee and parent advisory committee, in writing, of the requests for a language acquisition program
- b. Identify costs and resources necessary to implement any new language acquisition program, including, but not limited to, certificated teachers with the appropriate authorizations, necessary instructional materials, pertinent professional development for the proposed program, and opportunities for parent/guardian and community engagement to support the proposed program goals
- c. Within 60 calendar days of reaching the threshold number of parents/guardians described in item #2 above, determine whether it is possible to implement the requested language acquisition program and provide written notice of the determination to parents/guardians of students attending the school, the school's teachers, and administrators
- d. If a determination is made to implement the language acquisition program, create and publish a reasonable timeline of actions necessary to implement the program. If a determination is made that it is not possible to implement the program, provide a written explanation of the reason(s) the program cannot be provided.

The district shall notify parents/guardians at the beginning of each school year or upon the student's enrollment regarding the process to request a language acquisition program, including a dual-language immersion program, for their child. The notice shall also include the following: (5 CCR 11309, 11310)

- 1. A description of the programs provided, including structured English immersion
- 2. Identification of any language to be taught in addition to English when the program includes instruction in a language other than English
- 3. The manner in which the program is designed using evidence-based research and includes both designated and integrated English language development
- 4. The manner in which the district has allocated sufficient resources to effectively implement the program, including, but not limited to, certificated teachers with the appropriate authorizations, necessary instructional materials, pertinent professional development, and opportunities for parent/guardian and community engagement to support the program goals

- 5. The manner in which the program will, within a reasonable period of time, lead to language proficiency and achievement of the state-adopted content standards in English and, when the program includes instruction in another language, in that other language
- 6. The process to request establishment of a language acquisition program not offered at the school
- 7. For any dual-language immersion program offered, the specific languages to be taught. The notice also may include the program goals, methodology used, and evidence of the proposed program's effectiveness.

## Reclassification/Redesignation

The district shall continue to provide additional and appropriate educational services to English learners for the purposes of overcoming language barriers until they: (5 CCR 11302)

- 1. Demonstrate English language proficiency comparable to that of the district's average native English language speakers
- 2. Recoup any academic deficits which may have been incurred in other areas of the core curriculum as a result of language barriers

English learners shall be reclassified as fluent English proficient when they are able to comprehend, speak, read, and write English well enough to receive instruction in an English language mainstream classroom and make academic progress at a level substantially equivalent to that of students of the same age or grade whose primary language is English and who are in the regular course of study. (Education Code 52164.6)

The procedures used to determine whether an English learner shall be reclassified as fluent English proficient shall include, but not be limited to: (Education Code 313, 52164.6; 5 CCR 11303)

- 1. Assessment of English language proficiency using an objective assessment instrument, including, but not limited to, the ELPAC
- 2. Participation of the student's classroom teacher and any other certificated staff with direct responsibility for teaching or placement decisions related to the student
- 3. Parent/guardian involvement, including:
- a. Notice to parents/guardians of language reclassification and placement, including a description of the reclassification process and the parent/guardian's opportunity to participate
- b. Encouragement of parent/guardian participation in the district's reclassification procedure, including seeking parent/guardian opinion and consultation during the reclassification

### process

4. Student performance on an objective assessment of basic skills in English that shows whether the student is performing at or near grade level

The Superintendent or designee shall monitor the progress of reclassified students to ensure their correct classification and placement. (5 CCR 11304)

The Superintendent or designee shall monitor students for at least four years following their reclassification to determine whether any additional academic support is needed.

## **Advisory Committee**

A parent/guardian advisory committee shall be established at the district level when there are more than 50 English learners in the district and at the school level when there are more than 20 English learners at the school. Parents/guardians of English learners shall constitute committee membership in at least the same percentage as English learners represent of the total number of students in the school. (Education Code 52176; 5 CCR 11308)

The district's English language advisory committee shall advise the Governing Board on at least the following tasks: (5 CCR 11308)

- 1. The development of a plan for education programs and services for English learners, taking into consideration the school site plans for English learners
- 2. The districtwide needs assessment on a school-by-school basis
- 3. Establishment of a district program, goals, and objectives for programs and services for English learners
- 4. Development of a plan to ensure compliance with applicable teacher or aide requirements
- 5. Administration of the annual language census
- 6. Review of and comment on the district's reclassification procedures
- (cf. 0420 School Plans/Site Councils)
- (cf. 1220 Citizen Advisory Committees)
- (cf. 5020 Parent Rights and Responsibilities)
- (cf. 6020 Parent Involvement)

In order to assist the advisory committee in carrying out its responsibilities, the Superintendent or designee shall ensure that committee members receive appropriate training and materials. This training shall be planned in full consultation with the members. (5 CCR 11308)

## LCAP Advisory Committee

When there are at least 15 percent English learners in the district, with at least 50 students who are English learners, a district-level English learner parent advisory committee shall be established to review and comment on the district's local control and accountability plan (LCAP) in accordance with BP 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan. The committee shall be composed of a majority of parents/guardians of English learners. (Education Code 52063; 5 CCR 11301, 15495)

(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan)

The advisory committee established pursuant to 5 CCR 11308, as described in the section "Advisory Committee" above, could serve as the LCAP English learner advisory committee if its composition includes a majority of parents/guardians of English learners.

Regulation MARYSVILLE JT. UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

approved: March 11, 2008 Marysville, California

revised: May 13, 2014 revised: October 8, 2019

# **Marysville Joint USD**

# OLD (Currently Board Approved)

## **Board Policy**

**Standardized Testing And Reporting Program** 

BP 6162.51 **Instruction** 

The Superintendent or designee shall administer mandatory student assessments within the state Standardized Testing and Reporting (STAR) Program as required by law and in accordance with Board policy and administrative regulation.

(cf. 6162.5 - Student Assessment) (cf. 6162.54 - Test Integrity/Test Preparation)

The Board of Education strongly encourages all students at the applicable grade levels to participate in the STAR assessments in order to maximize the usefulness of the data and enable the district to meet participation levels required for state and federal accountability systems. The Superintendent or designee shall notify students and parents/guardians about the importance of these assessments and shall develop strategies to encourage student participation. Students shall be exempted from participation only in accordance with law and administrative regulation.

(cf. 0520.2 - Title I Program Improvement Schools) (cf. 0520.3 - Title I Program Improvement Districts)

The Board desires to use the results of the achievement tests to evaluate the performance of district students against the state's academic standards, the performance of students in other districts across the state, and national norms.

(cf. 6011 - Academic Standards)

The Board shall annually examine STAR results by school, grade level, and student subgroup in the Board's discussion of each school's ranking on the statewide Academic Performance Index. If the STAR performance level of the school is below the Board's established expectations, the Board may conduct an assessment by grade level of the reasons for the performance results and may adopt an improved performance plan in accordance with Education Code 52056.

(cf. 0500 - Accountability) (cf. 0520.1 - High Priority Schools Grant Program)

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
51041 Evaluation of educational program

52056 Board discussion of Academic Performance Index rankings, including STAR results

56345 Individualized education program, contents

60600-60630 Assessment of academic achievement

60640-60649 Standardized Testing and Reporting Program

60660-60663 Electronic learning assessment resources

60810 Assessment of language development

99300-99301 Early Assessment Program

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5

850-870 Standardized Testing and Reporting Program

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20

1412(a)(17) Participation of students with disabilities in state assessments

6311 Adequate yearly progress

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34

200.1 Standards and assessment

## Management Resources:

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS

Matrix of Test Variations, Accommodations and Modifications for Administration of California Statewide Assessments

CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY PUBLICATIONS

The Early Assessment Program: Handbook for School Site Leaders, 2008

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS

The Use of Tests as Part of High-Stakes Decision-Making for Students: A Resource Guide for

Educators and Policy-Makers, December 2000

**WEB SITES** 

CSBA: http://www.csba.org

California Department of Education, STAR Program: http://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/tg/sr

California Learning Resources Network: http://clrn.org

California State University, Early Assessment Program: http://www.calstate.edu/eap

U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights:

http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr/index.html

Policy MARYSVILLE JT. UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

adopted: March 11, 2008 Marysville, California

## **Marysville Joint USD**

## NEW (With Revisions)

## **Board Policy**

**State Academic Achievement Tests** 

BP 6162.51 **Instruction** 

The Governing Board recognizes that state achievement test results provide an indication of student progress in achieving state academic standards and may be used to promote high-quality teaching and learning. The Superintendent or designee shall administer mandatory student assessments within the California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress (CAASPP) as required by law and in accordance with Board policy and administrative regulation.

(cf. 6011 - Academic Standards)

(cf. 6162.5 - Student Assessment)

(cf. 6162.54 - Test Integrity/Test Preparation)

(cf. 9321 - Closed Session Purposes and Agendas)

(cf. 9321.1 - Closed Session Actions and Reports)

The Board strongly encourages all students at the applicable grade levels to participate in the state assessments in order to maximize the usefulness of the data and enable the district to meet participation levels required for state and federal accountability systems. The Superintendent or designee shall notify students and parents/guardians about the importance of these assessments and shall develop strategies to encourage student participation. Students shall be exempted from participation only in accordance with law and administrative regulation.

The Board shall annually examine state assessment results by school, grade level, and student subgroup as one measure of the district's progress in attaining its student achievement goals and shall revise the local control and accountability plan and other district or school plans as necessary to improve student achievement for underperforming student groups.

(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan) (cf. 0500 - Accountability)

## Legal Reference:

**EDUCATION CODE** 

49076 Student records; access

51041 Evaluation of educational program

52052 Accountability; numerically significant student subgroups

52060-52077 Local control and accountability plan

56345 Individualized education program, contents

60600-60630 Assessment of academic achievement

60640-60649 California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress

60660-60663 Electronic learning assessment resources

99300-99301 Early Assessment Program

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5

850-864 State assessments

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20

1412 Participation of students with disabilities in state assessments

6311 Adequate yearly progress

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34

200.1 Standards and assessment

## Management Resources:

**CSBA PUBLICATIONS** 

Supporting Student Achievement: Student Assessment System in Flux, Governance Brief, June 2013

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS

Assembly Bill 484 Ouestions and Answers

CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY PUBLICATIONS

The Early Assessment Program: Handbook for School Site Leaders, 2008

SMARTER BALANCED ASSESSMENT CONSORTIUM PUBLICATIONS

Usability, Accessibility, and Accommodations Guidelines, September 2013

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS

The Use of Tests as Part of High-Stakes Decision-Making for Students: A Resource Guide for

Educators and Policy-Makers, December 2000

WEB SITES

CSBA: http://www.csba.org

California Department of Education, Testing and Accountability: http://www.cde.ca.gov/ta

California Learning Resources Network: http://clrn.org

California State University, Early Assessment Program: http://www.calstate.edu/eap

Smarter Balanced Assessment Consortium: http://www.smarterbalanced.org

U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights: http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr

Policy MARYSVILLE JT. UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

adopted: March 11, 2008 Marysville, California

revised: October 8, 2019



## Marysville Joint USD

## Administrative Regulation

**Standardized Testing And Reporting Program** 

AR 6162.51 **Instruction** 

The district shall administer the following assessments in the Standardized Testing and Reporting (STAR) Program:

- 1. A nationally norm-referenced achievement test in basic academic skills designated by the State Board of Education (SBE) pursuant to Education Code 60642, to each student in grades 3 and 7. (Education Code 60640)
- 2. Standards-based achievement tests, as designated by the SBE pursuant to Education Code 60642.5, to each student in grades 3-11. (Education Code 60640)
- 3. A designated primary language test (DPLT) for any limited-English-proficient student in grades 3-11 who either receives instruction in his/her primary language or has been enrolled in a California public school for less than 12 months, if such a test is available. This test shall be administered in addition to any applicable norm-referenced achievement test and standards-based achievement test. (Education Code 60640)

(cf. 6174 - Education for English Language Learners)

Following the first year of enrollment in a California public school, English language learners may continue to take, in addition to the tests in English, the DPLT, to the extent that such a test is available and the Superintendent or designee determines that such test results would provide useful information about students' performance.

4. An alternate assessment for any special education student who is unable to take the standards-based achievement tests even with accommodations or modifications. The individualized education program (IEP) team shall determine whether a student shall take the alternate assessment. (Education Code 56345, 60640; 5 CCR 850)

Any special education student who is an English learner may be tested with the DPLT in accordance with item #3 above, unless the IEP specifically exempts him/her from such testing. (Education Code 56345)

(cf. 6159 - Individualized Education Program) (cf. 6164.6 - Identification and Education under Section 504)

**Testing Period** 

The designated achievement test and the standards-based achievement tests shall be administered to students during a testing window of 21 instructional days that includes 10 instructional days before and after completion of 85 percent of the school's, track's, or program's instructional days. Testing for all students, including make-up testing, shall be completed within this 21 instructional day window unless all or part of the 21 instructional day period falls after any statutorily specified deadline. (Education Code 60640; 5 CCR 855)

The STAR writing assessment shall be administered only on the day specified annually by the Superintendent of Public Instruction. (Education Code 60640; 5 CCR 855)

The Superintendent or designee shall arrange for at least two make-up days for the testing of students who were absent during the period that any school administered the designated achievement test and the standards-based achievement test. All make-up testing shall occur within five instructional days of the last date that the district administered the tests, but not later than the 21 instructional day window established above. (Education Code 60640; 5 CCR 855)

Any DPLT shall be administered between March 15 and May 14 of each school year. The Superintendent or designee shall provide for at least two make-up days for students who were absent during the period. All make-up testing shall occur within 10 instructional days of the last date that the district administered the primary language assessment, but not later than May 25 of each school year, whichever is earlier. (5 CCR 855)

## Exemptions

A parent/guardian may submit to the school a written request to excuse his/her child from any or all parts of any test. District employees may discuss the STAR program with parents/guardians and may inform them of the availability of exemptions under Education Code 60615. However, the district and its employees shall not solicit or encourage any written exemption request on behalf of any student or group of students. (5 CCR 852)

### **Testing Variations**

The designated achievement test, standards-based achievement tests, and DPLT shall be administered in accordance with the manuals or other instructions provided by the test contractor, unless a testing variation, accommodation, or modification is specifically allowed pursuant to 5 CCR 853.5. (5 CCR 853, 853.5)

All students may be provided with the following variations: (5 CCR 853.5)

- 1. Simplified or clarified test directions
- 2. For grades 2-11, write-in test booklets (e.g., underlining, working math problems)

Any marks other than those in response circles for grades 2 and 3 must be erased to ensure that the tests can be scored.

3. On the standards-based achievement test, as much time as needed within a single sitting to complete a test or test part

In addition, all students shall be provided with the following testing variations if such variations are regularly used in the classroom: (5 CCR 853.5)

- 1. Special adaptive furniture
- 2. Special lighting, special acoustics, or visual magnifying or audio amplification equipment
- 3. An individual carrel or study enclosure
- 4. Individual testing in a separate testing room provided that a district employee who has signed the STAR Test Security Affidavit directly supervises the student
- 5. Colored overlay, masks, or other means to maintain visual attention to the test or test questions
- 6. Manually Coded English or American Sign Language to communicate directions for test administration

Identified English learners shall be provided with the following testing variations if such variations are regularly used in the classroom or for assessment: (5 CCR 853.5)

- 1. Flexible setting: testing in a separate room with other English learners provided that a district employee who has signed the Test Security Affidavit directly supervises the student.
- 2. Flexible schedule: additional supervised breaks following each section within a test part provided that the test section is completed within a testing day. A test section is identified by a "STOP" at the end of it.
- 3. Translated directions: hearing the test directions printed in the test administration manual translated into their primary language. English learners shall have the opportunity to ask clarifying questions about any test directions presented orally in their primary language.
- 4. Glossaries: access to translation glossaries/word lists for the standards-based achievement tests in mathematics, science, and history/social science (English to primary language). The translation glossaries/word lists are to include only the English words or phrases with the corresponding primary language words or phrases. The glossaries/word lists shall not include definitions or formulas.

Students with disabilities shall be permitted to take the assessments with any of the testing variations listed in 5 CCR 853.5, provided the variations are specified in their IEP or Section 504 plan. These variations may include, but are not limited to, accommodations in the presentation or setting of the test administration or in how a student is allowed to respond, and/or modifications in accordance with 5 CCR 853.5. (5 CCR 850, 853, 853.5)



#### District and Test Site Coordinators

Each year the Superintendent or designee shall designate a district coordinator who shall serve as the district representative and liaison with the California Department of Education (CDE) for all matters relating to the STAR program. The Superintendent or designee also shall designate a coordinator at each test site. (5 CCR 857-858)

In addition to the duties prescribed in 5 CCR 857-858, the district coordinator shall establish guidelines to help ensure that the test contractor is provided complete student information, as specified in 5 CCR 861 and 870, for purposes of the Academic Performance Index.

## (cf. 3553 - Free and Reduced Price Meals)

After receiving summary reports and files from the test contractor, the district STAR coordinator shall review the files and reports for completeness and accuracy, and shall notify the test contractor and the CDE of any errors, discrepancies, or incomplete information. (5 CCR 857)

## Report of Test Results

The Superintendent or designee shall forward the student report provided by the test contractor to the student's parents/guardians within 20 working days of receiving the report from the contractor. If these reports are received from the contractor after the last day of instruction in the school year, each student's results shall be mailed to his/her parents/guardians. (5 CCR 863)

The report shall include a clear explanation of the purpose of the test, the student's score, and its intended use by the district. (Education Code 60641)

#### (cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications)

An individual student's scores shall also be reported to his/her school and teachers and shall be included in his/her student record. (Education Code 60641)

## (cf. 5125 - Student Records)

Districtwide, school-level, and grade-level results shall be reported to the Board of Education at a regularly scheduled meeting. The Board shall not receive individual students' scores or the relative position of any individual student. (Education Code 60641)

#### (cf. 9321.1 - Closed Session Actions and Reports)

Individual test results shall not be released without the written consent of the adult student or the minor student's parents/guardians to any person other than a parent/guardian; a teacher, counselor or administrator directly involved with the student; or to a postsecondary educational institution for the purposes of credit, placement, or admission. (Education Code 60607, 60641)

Regulation MARYSVILLE JT. UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT approved: March 11, 2008 Marysville, California

## **Marysville Joint USD**



## **Administrative Regulation**

**State Academic Achievement Tests** 

AR 6162.51 **Instruction** 

The Superintendent or designee shall administer the California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress (CAASPP) to all district students at applicable grade levels, except those students exempted by law.

The students of any charter school that receives its state funding allocation through the district shall be tested in coordination with the testing of district students. In addition, the Superintendent or designee shall arrange for the testing of students in any alternative education program or program conducted off campus, including, but not limited to, non-classroom based programs, continuation schools, independent study, community day schools, county community schools, juvenile court schools, or nonpublic, nonsectarian schools. No test shall be administered in a home or hospital except by a test administrator or test examiner. (5 CCR 851)

(cf. 0420.4 - Charter School Authorization)

(cf. 0420.41 - Charter School Oversight)

(cf. 6158 - Independent Study)

(cf. 6159.2 - Nonpublic, Nonsectarian School and Agency Services for Special Education)

(cf. 6181 - Alternative Schools/Programs of Choice)

(cf. 6183 - Home and Hospital Instruction)

(cf. 6184 - Continuation Education)

(cf. 6185 - Community Day School)

On or before July 1 of each year, the Superintendent or designee shall identify any district school(s) with students who are unable to access the computer-based assessment of a CAASPP test and shall report the number of such students to the test contractor. If available, a paper and pencil version of the assessment may be administered to such students. (5 CCR 853, 857)

On or before July 1 of each year, the Superintendent or designee shall designate a district coordinator who shall oversee all matters related to the testing program and serve as the district representative and liaison with the test contractor and the California Department of Education (CDE). The Superintendent or designee shall also designate a coordinator for each test site. The duties of the district and site test coordinators shall include those specified in 5 CCR 857-858. (5 CCR 857-858)

The Superintendent or designee also shall appoint trained test administrator(s) to administer the CAASPP achievement tests and test examiner(s) to administer the California Alternate Assessments. A test examiner shall be a certificated or licensed employee of the district or county office of education. (5 CCR 850)

```
(cf. 4112.2 - Certification)
(cf. 4113 - Assignment)
```

As appropriate, the Superintendent or designee shall assign a specially trained district employee to serve as a test proctor to assist the test examiner; a specially trained district employee, or other person supervised by a district employee, to serve as a translator to translate the test directions into a student's primary language; and a district employee to serve as a scribe to transcribe a student's responses to the format required by the test. A student's parent/guardian or sibling shall not be eligible to be that student's translator or scribe. (5 CCR 850)

All test administrators, test examiners, proctors, translators, scribes, district and site test coordinators, and other persons having access to any of the CAASPP achievement tests and corresponding test materials, assessment technology platform, or tests administered pursuant to Education Code 60640 shall acknowledge the limited purpose of their access to the achievement tests by signing a test security affidavit. In addition, all district and site test coordinators shall sign a test security agreement before receiving any CAASPP achievement tests and corresponding test materials. The test security affidavit and test security agreement shall be those set forth in 5 CCR 859. (5 CCR 850, 859)

Tests Included in the State Assessment System

The district shall administer the following CAASPP assessments: (Education Code 60640; 5 CCR 851.5)

1. The CAASPP achievement tests for English language arts and mathematics in grades 3-8 and 11, except that:

```
(cf. 6142.91 - Reading/Language Arts Instruction) (cf. 6142.92 - Mathematics Instruction)
```

a. Recently arrived English learners, defined pursuant to Education Code 60603 as English learners who are in their first 12 months of attending a school in the United States, shall be exempted from taking the English language arts assessment to the extent allowed by federal law. A recently arrived English learner may be administered the test upon request by his/her parent/guardian.

(cf. 6174 - Education for English Learners)

b. Students with disabilities who are unable to participate in the English language arts and mathematics assessments, even with the resources described in the section "Testing Variations" below, shall be provided an alternate test when designated in their individualized education program (IEP), as provided in item #3 below.

```
(cf. 6159 - Individualized Education Program)
(cf. 6164.6 - Identification and Education Under Section 504)
```



2. Science assessments at grades 5, 8, and once in high school in grade ten, eleven or twelve.

However, students with disabilities who are unable to participate in the science assessments, even with the resources described in the "Testing Variations" section below, shall be provided an alternate test when designated in their IEP, as provided in item #3 below.

(cf. 6142.93 - Science Instruction)

- 3. For students with disabilities who are unable to take the tests specified in items #1-2 above, even with appropriate accommodations or other testing resources, and who have an IEP that designates the use of alternate tests at the applicable grade levels:
- a. California Alternate Assessment in English language arts, mathematics, and science for students with significant cognitive disabilities

In addition, the Superintendent or designee may administer a primary language assessment to English learners. Administration of this test shall not replace the administration of the above tests, administered in English, to English learners. (Education Code 60640)

## Exemptions

Each year the Superintendent or designee shall notify parents/guardians of their child's participation in the CAASPP and of the provisions of Education Code 60615 related to exemptions from testing. (5 CCR 852)

(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications)

A parent/guardian may annually submit to the school a written request to excuse his/her child from any or all parts of the CAASPP assessments for the school year, and such a request shall be granted by the Superintendent or designee. However, district employees shall not solicit or encourage any exemption request on behalf of any student or group of students. (Education Code 60615; 5 CCR 852)

If a parent/guardian submits an exemption request after testing has begun, any test(s) completed before the request is submitted will be scored and the results reported to the parent/guardian and included in the student's records. (5 CCR 852)

## **Testing Period**

The Superintendent or designee shall establish testing days for district students within the following available testing windows: (5 CCR 855)

1. Assessments in English language arts, mathematics and science shall be administered

between the date on which at least 66 percent of the school's annual instructional days have been completed and the last day of instruction for the regular annual calendar of the school.

- 2. The California Alternative Assessments for Science, shall be administered during the testing window identified yearly by the California Department of Education.
- 3. The primary language assessment shall be administered to English learners each year between February 1<sup>st</sup> and May 31<sup>st</sup>.

Within the above testing windows, the Superintendent or designee may designate one testing period for each school or track or, if a school has multiple tracks, a selected testing period for each track. The district shall not exceed six selected testing periods within the available testing window. The testing period shall be no fewer than 25 consecutive instructional days and may be extended up to an additional 10 consecutive instructional days if still within the available testing window set forth in items #1 above. (5 CCR 855)

Students who are absent during testing shall be provided an opportunity to take the tests within the testing window.

## **Testing Variations**

CAASPP achievement tests and the primary language test shall be administered in accordance with the manuals or other instructions provided by the test contractor or CDE except that, as appropriate, the following testing variations may be used: (5 CCR 850, 853-853.8)

- 1. Universal tools specified in 5 CCR 853.5 may be used with any student.
- 2. Designated supports specified in 5 CCR 853.5 and, if an English learner, in 5 CCR 853.7, may be used with a student for whom the need has been indicated by an educator or team of educators, with parent/guardian and student input as appropriate, or for whom the need is specified in the student's IEP or Section 504 plan.
- 3. Accommodations specified in 5 CCR 853.5 may be used with a student with disabilities when included in the student's IEP or Section 504 plan as resources that are regularly used in the classroom for the student's instruction and/or assessment(s). Such accommodations shall be either utilized in the assessment environment or consist of changes in procedures or materials that increase equitable access during the assessment.
- 4. An unlisted resource that has not been specifically identified as an approved universal tool, designated support, or accommodation may be used with a student who has an IEP or Section 504 plan provided that the resource is one that is regularly used in the classroom for instruction and/or assessment and the CDE has approved its use. At least 10 business days prior to the student's first day of CAASPP testing, the district or school site test coordinator may electronically submit a request to the CDE for approval to use that unlisted resource during that year. If the CDE determines that the unlisted resource changes the construct being measured, the unlisted resource may nevertheless be used with the student in order to generate an individual

score report even though the student shall not be counted in the participation rate for accountability measures. (5 CCR 853.8)

In the administration of the CAA to a student with significant cognitive disabilities, the student may have all instructional supports that may be used in daily instruction or assessment, including language and physical supports, with the exception of any inappropriate test practices listed in test administration manuals. (5 CCR 850, 853.6)

## Report of Test Results

For any state assessments that produce valid individual student results, the Superintendent or designee shall forward or transmit the student's test results to his/her parents/guardians within 20 working days from receipt of the results from the test contractor or, if the district receives the results from the contractor after the last day of instruction for the school year, then within the first 20 working days of the next school year. The report shall include a clear explanation of the purpose of the test, the student's score, and its intended use by the district. An individual student's scores shall also be reported to his/her school and teacher(s) and shall be included in his/her student record. (Education Code 60641; 5 CCR 863)

## (cf. 5125 - Student Records)

With parent/guardian consent, the Superintendent or designee may release a student's test results to a postsecondary educational institution for the purposes of credit, placement, determination of readiness for college-level coursework, or admission. (Education Code 60641)

The Superintendent or designee shall present districtwide, school-level, and grade-level results to the Governing Board at a regularly scheduled meeting. The Board shall not receive individual students' scores or the relative position of any individual student. (Education Code 49076, 60641)

Regulation MARYSVILLE JT. UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

approved: March 11, 2008 Marysville, California

revised: October 8, 2019